














(A) Results ¥4&

2021 2020
US$ million  US$ million ~ Change %
ELESS BEER #3E/K

Revenue HER 168.1 121.3 38.6%
Gross profit eyl 67.3 35.8 87.6%
Gross margin (%) EFE%) 40.0 29.6  10.4% point
BIE
Profit attributable to owners of the parent AARER ARERR 23.8 1.7 103.0%
Earnings per share (US cent) SREF (Z4) 1.0 0.5
Dividend per share (US cent) BRRE (E) 0.1 0.1
Book-to-bill ratio HE 2 15 1.4
(B) Financial Position B %A%
As at 31 December
R12831H
2021 2020
US$ million  US$ million  Change %
BEERT BEERT 23RS
Total assets BEE 139.9 94.2 48.5%
Shareholders’ funds R 86.7 63.4 36.8%
(C) Financial Ratios Bttt %
As at 31 December
W12831H
2021 2020
Current ratio B =E 2.35 2.83
Debt to equity ratio ERERLLE 0.002 0.003
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B\ CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
CERRE

Dear Shareholders,

| have great pleasure to present our annual report for the year ended
31 December 2021.

It is the third year that the COVID-19 pandemic with variants such
as Delta and Omicron sweeping through the globe since its outbreak
in 2020. The global supply chain and economy has been severely
impacted. Every way of life, including learning, entertainment,
social and economic activities, was inevitably impacted. The
traditional way of life and working style changed dramatically.
Yet the convenience and efficiency brought about by internet and
technology are further proven as a necessity to connect people
virtually and to enable work in a seamless manner. As a leading
industry player, the Group remained resilient and managed to
achieve growth given the opportunities arisen from the new era of
technology.

Market Foresight and Our Performance

2021 was a remarkable year of the Group. With its leading
innovation capabilities, the Group had agilely tapped into market
trends and achieved encouraging results. Sales revenue of the
Group increased significantly year-on-year by more than 38.6%
to US$168.1 million. Profit attributable to owners of the parent
increased from US$11.7 million in 2020 to US$23.8 million in 2021,
representing an increase of more than 103.0%, and earnings per
share had recorded satisfactory growth for two consecutive years.

In view of the rapid technological progress and swift change of
consumer demand, the Group constantly adjusts the product
structure to suit the market need. We focus on products with higher
gross profit and deploy product solutions showing great potential.
We formulated strategic alliances and concluded partnerships with
internationally renowned brands. Our goal is to maintain healthy
growth, to capture new trending opportunities and to navigate
unexpected market shifts.

Profound Technology Reserves and Break-
Through

As a globally leading supplier for E-Paper display driver ICs, the
Group provides products of high quality and reliability that meet
the stringent requirements of customers, including IC solution
supporting seven colours and advanced colours e-Paper (ACeP) to
capitalize on its leading technological advantages.
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During the year, the Group’s Mobile Display and Mobile Touch
ICs business had developed a number of new driver products and
customised ICs. We launched the world’s first TDDI chips targeting
loT and wearable devices. The Group’s OLED Display ICs business
was extended to smart home appliances, and the demand for
handheld medical equipment continued the contribution to the
Group’s sales revenue. The Large Display ICs business aspires
to keep pace with the future market demand, and the Group
is developing high-speed peer-to-peer (P2P) display driver ICs
targeting high refresh rate gaming monitors and 8K high-definition
TV.

Opportunities and Challenges

With over 20 years of experience in display IC development, the
Group specialises in total solutions and customised services
from design and testing to product delivery. To keep abreast
of keen competition, the Group had formulated corporate
development strategies, empowered our R&D capabilities, and
implemented various measures. The Group’s business structure
and product portfolio have become more mature and diversified.
We are empowered to capture opportunities presented by the
transformation of consumption patterns and technological evolution
arising from a broad array of advancement. The strategies and
product deployment adopted by the Group will infuse further growth
impetus in business performance, enabling sustainable returns to
our shareholders.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to express my sincere
gratitude to shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers, bankers
and business partners for their continuing support. The epidemic
may last in the future with new variants, shifting both the consumer
behaviour and manufacturing development. But as long as we
stay close, work innovatively, and continue to leverage on our
technological capability, we will overcome any challenges and will
be rewarded.

Ma Yuchuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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" CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,

The world has been experiencing unprecedented challenges over
the past two years. While the COVID-19 pandemic continued to
ravage globally, many governments have accelerated the pace
of restarting the economy and successively eased prevention
measures. Although the emergence of the Omicron variant in
November had caused a new wave of outbreaks worldwide, Asia’s
manufacturing sector saw continuous growth due to a resilient
global economic recovery and a strong demand for consumer
electronics and technology products.

Brilliant Performance

We achieved brilliant results in 2021, made a record shipment
quantity of over 395.7 million units and reached sales revenue of
US$168.1 million during the year, an increase of more than 38.6%
over 2020. The demand for the Group’s products remained strong,
which contributed to the increase in the average selling price of our
products. In addition, the Group has been procuring strategically
and continued to adjust its product mix with a focus on products
with higher profit margins. During the year under review, the
Group’s average gross profit margin significantly improved by 10.4
percentage points to 40.0% in 2021 from 29.6% in 2020. Profit
attributable to the owners of the parent increased by over 103.0%
to US$23.8 million, and earnings per share was 1.0 US cents, up
100% from 2020.

In November 2021, Mr. Raymond Wang, Chief Executive Officer
and Executive Director of the Group, was honoured with the
“Executive of the Year” award by the first EE Awards Asia in
recognition of his outstanding leadership skills and significant
contribution to the semiconductor/electronics industry.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S MESSAGE\

Responsive Strategies to Cope with Market
Demand

Triggered by the pandemic, the extensive global chip shortage in
2021 had created an unprecedented impact. The severe shortage
of chips had also prompted price hikes. The Group responded and
acted swiftly to source our supplies strategically and to lock up
long-term effective supply by reaching agreements with a number
of foundries within a short period of time at a competitive price.
The decisive move not only ensured the Group’s smooth operations
and development for the longer term but also helped to improve the
average gross profit margin.

Effective supply chain management has ensured the Group’s
shipment base. The extended application of our products in both
the commercial and consumer goods sectors has also translated
into new orders, which could only be achieved with the profound
research and development advantages the Group has been
fostering over the decades.

During the year under review, all the business segments showed
encouraging performance with increase in average gross profit
margin and technological break-through. The sales from our New
Display ICs and OLED Display ICs increased by over 114.8% and
20.9%, respectively, on a year-on-year basis. Large Display ICs was
able to significantly improve its gross profit margin by tapping the
demand for high-speed peer-to-peer display driver ICs for high-end
monitor and 8K high-definition TV. Mobile Display and Mobile Touch
ICs evidenced an increase in sales of over 35.1% as we gained
further advancement in the game console controller market.

Talents-oriented with Focus on R&D

The Group is committed to implementing its business growth
strategy geared with an acute market sense. Since our development
of Electronic Shelf Labels (ESL) in earlier years, we have targeted
the right products and further tapped into the market with a first-
mover advantage, only focusing on products and markets that
demonstrate significant potential. The Group has been continuously
cooperating with the world’s leading electronic paper (E-Paper)
maker, E Ink Holdings Inc. (“E Ink”), and co-developed the Display
IC Solutions for Spectra™ 3100 successfully in 2021, the next-
generation ink platform specialised for ESL and retail signage
application. The success attained signifies the Group’s consistent
efforts in the R&D of new display, including the colour e-Reader
products. The Group’s Touch and Display Driver Integration (TDDI)
technology was also successfully applied in a new-generation smart
home appliance during the year under review and now available in
the market. In addition, the Group launched the first full-colour in-
cell TDDI for wearable designed for IoT devices. The Group is in
possession of over 660 patent rights registered worldwide, a solid
foundation for continuous innovation and maintaining our market
leading position.
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“CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S MESSAGE
TBAR RS

We believe that human resources is one of our key success factors.
We have, therefore, implemented various incentive measures in
order to attract and retain talents, including referral bonus, retention
monies, KPIl bonus, incentive monies and other various awards. The
Company granted 18,000,000 share options to eligible employees
in December 2021 with a view to attract, retain and motivate
management and talented engineers to fly high with the Company.

Prospects and Strategies

The Group had formulated corporate development strategies and
implemented various measures. We review, assess, and seek
improvement from time to time, optimising resources management
and enhancing operational efficiency. We observe rigorous cost
control, budgeting and adhere to stringent financial discipline to
reduce corporate risks.

As a world-leading supplier for E-Paper display driver ICs, the
Group aspires to leverage its innovative technology to fortify its
leading status in new display. Envisaging a prominent growing trend
in the next generation display market, the Group will continue to
increase resources invested in the R&D of the related IC solutions.
Being the world’s largest PMOLED display driver IC supplier,
the Group is well-positioned to tap into the growing demand for
innovative IC solutions in wearable devices and game console
controllers. Furthermore, the Group has planned the introduction of
more advanced solutions in active response to the unfolding trend
in, for example, the upgrade of high-definition TV from 4K to 8K.
In view of the future trend of Metaverse, our capability on high-
speed resolution of display IC technology will leverage into the
development of enhanced AR and VR products. The Group will act
swiftly and decisively to market demand in the age of virtual world.

Given the affordability of the market and the ever-increasing pricing
pressure, we are cautiously alert to react proactively. The Group has
made outstanding performance in 2021, which not only encourages
us to make bold progress, but also urges us to remain prudent when
accomplishing the goal of sustainable development.

Last but not least, may | take this opportunity to make a big thank-
you to all senior management and staff for their enduring efforts

in making 2021 a great success for the Group, and we wish our
shareholders another rewarding year in 2022.

Wang Wah Chi, Raymond
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK

Business Review

Notwithstanding the enormous impact on the global economy
arising from the COVID-19 pandemic during the year, worldwide
semiconductor revenue recorded a double-digit growth rate in
2021. The demand for personal computers, electric vehicles and 5G
smartphones are experiencing exponential growth; and the demand
for portable health-care equipment, wearables and loT devices
had continued. The resulting strong demand caused increases in
logistics and raw material costs which had driven higher selling
prices across the industry.

These threats and opportunities were a challenge but yet an
opportunity to every player in the semiconductor industry. To tackle
the immediate chip component shortage in early 2021, the Group
swiftly entered into agreements with leading overseas foundries to
lock up long-term stable supply of chip components in the coming
years.

Outstanding Performance

During the year under review, the demand for the Group’s products
remained strong. The Group has procured strategically and
managed to increase the average selling price of products amid
severe shortage of chip supply and sharp rise in raw material prices
and production costs. In addition, the Group continued to adjust
the product mix with a focus on products of higher profit margins.
While potent supply chain management ensures smooth operations
and development for the long term, the Group’s persistence in
innovation, diligent implementation of strategies, and visionary
foresight into market trends had rewarded us with outstanding
performance and results. The Group made a record-high shipment
quantity of approximately 395.7 million units (2020: 379.4 million
units) during the year and reached a sales revenue of US$168.1
million, an increase of more than 38.6% over that of 2020 (US$121.3
million).

New Display ICs

New Display IC products mainly refer to bistable display products of
the Group. Bistable display is a non-traditional display technology
where the display device is illuminated by reflecting ambient light.

During the year under review, New Display IC products showed a
significant growth in shipment quantity of 66.6%, mainly brought
about by our sales arising from ESL in the European and the North
American markets. ESL is gaining popularity for its flexibility in
price update, enhancement in customers interaction and easy
stock management, meeting the global trend of paperless for
sustainability development.

ESL is not only prevailing in Europe and North America but also
becoming an emerging trend in Mainland China and other Asian
countries. The Group co-developed with E Ink for the Display
IC Solutions for Spectra™ 3100, a next-generation specialised
platform for ESL and retail signage application. Our significant
technological break-through in 2021 that enables a four colour
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BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK
EBEOBERRE

spectrum display has placed us in a leading position in this huge
market. The Group expects to extensively launch about 10 million
units of ESLs driven display IC in the market starting from 2022,
including the top-ranked supermarkets in Europe. Moreover, we will
commence mass production for Advanced Colour e-Paper (ACeP)
products. To further tap into the markets of e-Signage and e-Reader
applications, the Group has developed the AMEPD driver IC, which
is expected to commence mass production soon. As a global
market leader in supplying e-Paper display driver ICs, the Group
endeavours to provide products and solutions that meet customers’
stringent requirements in quality and reliability.

OLED Display ICs

Solomon Systech (International) Limited (“Solomon Systech”) offers
a wide range of OLED display driver ICs to match with various
applications, including PMOLED display products, mini/micro-LED
products and OLED lighting products. The Group is the world’s
number one PMOLED display driver IC player with a dominant
market share in terms of unit of shipment in 2021.

The global wearable market is welcoming a boom despite the
pandemic. The pandemic and city lockdowns have prompted
people to focus on health and wellness, spurring the demand for
devices that can manage social distancing. Concurrently, smart
home appliances have continued to improve in terms of technology,
performance, features and design, and accordingly, the market size
gained a double-digit growth in the past year.

The Group provides a full range of PMOLED driver ICs from icon,
mono and grey scale to full colour with highly integrated features
and are ideal display solutions for portable devices. During the year
under review, the Group’s OLED Display business benefited from
the strong market demand for PMOLED wearable devices, smart
home solutions and Internet of Things (loT)/Artificial Internet of
Things (AloT) solutions. OLED Display ICs products were able to
report an increase in revenue of over 21.0% from 2020. SSD7317,
the world’s first TDDI IC developed by the Group for targeted use
in smart home products, has been launched in 2021. Meanwhile,
the demand for handheld health-care devices for the Group’s IC
products had sustained in 2021. The need for sophisticated features
and product upgrades is driving the momentum.

Micro-LED display that uses arrays of tiny micro-LED chips
arranged on LTPS backplane will be the next-generation display
solution milestone. Solomon Systech is a forerunner in the
application of mini/micro-LED. Our mini-LED DDI solutions for
50” to 100” indoor signage display have been in mass production
since 2018 and are used in the curved signage display in the
underground and subways in the UK and the US. As the global high-
end consumer electronics market continues to expand, the orders
for the Group’s mini/micro-LED IC products are expected to grow
accordingly.
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BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK

Mobile Display and Mobile Touch ICs

Solomon Systech provides a wide range of Mobile Display and
Mobile Touch IC solutions that is ever-expanding, including In-Cell
Touch Display Driver IC, TFT Display Driver IC, STN Display Driver
IC, MIPI Bridge IC and Display Controller IC. They support industrial
and consumer applications spanning smartphones, tablets,
wearables, gaming devices and loT devices.

During the year under review, the Mobile Display and Mobile Touch
ICs products reported both an increase in shipment quantity of
23.5% and sales revenue of 35.1% over that of last year.

In 2021, the Group launched our first full-colour TDDI specialised
for wearables and loT devices. It is characterised with superior
features, high cost-effectiveness and low power consumption
properties. This IC incorporates the Group’s latest proprietary
driving scheme and approximately 5 million units were produced
and delivered in 2021.

The Group pioneers the MIPI solutions for display with a series of
proprietary features that support high-resolution, high-speed and
low-power display of smart devices. Our MIPI — Local Dimming IP
is ready for production and is expected to reach the market in Q2
2022. In addition, the Group is co-developing a human interface
display platform with a leading small-to-medium-sized TFT-LCD
panel maker to leverage the Group’s pioneering technologies in
TDDI.

The demand for game console controller ICs requiring more
accurate controls, faster response and longer battery runtime is
growing fast. In view of the emerging market trend, the Group
leverages its profound expertise in TDDI and has exerted a visionary
deployment in the sector. In 2021, the Group’s game controller IC
business achieved good performance with sizable mass production.
The demand for the Group’s game console controller and wearable
ICs continues to grow, and we have successfully secured
manufacturing orders into 2022, making a notable contribution to
the Group’s sustainable revenue base.
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Large Display ICs

The Group provides a wide range of large display driver IC solutions
that support various applications, including monitors, notebooks
and large-size TVs.

During the year under review, revenue was lower than that of 2020
as the Group allocated most of its resources for other high-end
products. The Group launched a high-speed Peer-to-peer (P2P)
display driver IC for the 165Hz high-refresh-rate gaming monitor
and 8K HDTV. It adopts a novel architecture with 1/0 speed as fast
as 3.6Gbps. This latest offering will enhance our product value
and increase the visibility of the Group in the blooming high-end
entertainment market.

Product Development

The Group stresses the importance of novel product development to
keep abreast of the rapid technology advancement and fast-moving
trends. The Group endeavours to expand the scope of collaboration,
leveraging our technological edge and a pool of intellectual
properties. This strategy will enable our accelerated presence in
the targeted fronts, leading us to the less explored space with
promising rewards.

During the period under review, the Group developed a frame
modulation system for high-resolution Passive Matrix micro-LED,
which supports a higher resolution compared to the conventional
IC. This novel solution can also effectively shorten the development
time of TFT board which provides us with a distinctive edge in cost-
effectiveness.

Awards and Recognitions

Solomon Systech aspires to lead for next-generation innovation
and excellence in corporate development. In November 2021,
Mr. Raymond Wang, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
of the Company, was honoured with the “Executive of the Year”
award by the first EE Awards Asia in recognition of his outstanding
leadership skills and significant contribution to the semiconductor/
electronics industry. It is also an affirmation of the Group’s
dedicated efforts to innovate and develop the ultimate solutions
for its customers. The Award is another acknowledgement of
Mr. Wang’s commitment to excellence and outstanding performance
in the industry, after Mr. Wang won the “CEO of the Year 2020”
Award in November 2020.
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In 2021, the Group was awarded the “Hong Kong’s Most
Outstanding Business Awards 2021” and the “Quam IR Awards
2020 - Main Board Category”, recognising the Group’s efforts in
R&D, corporate governance, brand influence, and investors relation
in the market.

Outlook

Semiconductors exhibit tremendous roles in an increasingly
complex and technologically sophisticated global economy and are
present in almost all modern electronics. Semiconductor-enabled
technologies allow us to work remotely, study and order goods
online, and stay connected with families, friends, and the world.

Despite the relaxing measures in travel and social distancing around
the world, the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic are still being
felt across various industries. Supply chain issues are widespread
and prevalent, and the global chip shortage is expected to last
into 2023 or even after, with prices remaining at a relatively high
level. Nonetheless, the Group will strive to continuously develop
and provide value-added products to customers, despite the ever-
increasing pressure in logistic and materials costs.

The Group is working on a new ESL IC solution that supports
seven colours, which will push up the Group’s revenue and visibility
globally. We will also focus on providing novel display IC solutions
to the e-Reader market.

Following the launch of the Group’s mini-LED IC display products,
the Group will intensify the market effort among our first-tier end
customers to enlarge the Group’s footprint.

Tapping on the growing trend of the game console controller
market, the Group endeavours to offer players an unprecedented
gaming experience. We will capitalise on our capability in high-
speed and high-resolution display IC technology to leverage into
the development of enhanced AR and VR products to capture the
market potential of the Metaverse.

With larger high-resolution TVs being introduced to the market, the
Group has been implementing the promotion plan to establish a
solid presence in the market.

In the past two years, the Group successfully managed changes
and overcame challenges with remarkable performance. As part
of the corporate strategies, we will stay focused on products to
create value to our customers and to seek opportunities arising from
evolving trends.
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Employees

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had a total workforce of 326
employees' (2020: 341 employees). Of the total workforce, around
36% were based in Hong Kong head office with the rest located in
Mainland China, Japan, Korea, and Taiwan.

FUNCTION
FRE

EDUCATION
HERE

1%

% 10% -‘
14%‘
67% 57%

32%

A
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A2021F 128318 » AE B HBF326HE T
(2020 : 341BRET) - BB E THHN36WEHE
BAREE HHESIHREFE A A
KBERAE-

EXPERIENCE
BE

20%

13% 17%

)

17%
. Product Development . Quality and Manufacturing . Master’s Degree & above . Bachelor's Degree . >20 years . 16-20 years 1-5 years
EmE R BE TETErsA E -R-=liv >20%F 16-20%F 1-56F
. Others . Diploma / Certificate . Others . 11-15 years . 6-10 years <1 year
Hit X8/ EE Hity 11154 6-104F <14

e 251 engineering employees

® 32% Master’s Degree or above
251 & T12RM

32% FFRLSRIA BB

* 326 employees worldwide as at 31 December 2021 e 89% Bachelor’s Degree or above
M2021F12A318 + BHIEHFH326EET 89% FFE T EEAL

About 89% of the Group’s employees hold a bachelor’s degree or
above, and around 32% have earned a master’s degree or higher
academic qualifications. The Group’s emphasis on R&D is also
reflected in the composition of our workforce, as 67% are engineers
who specialize in product design and development. The entire team
has, on average, around 13 years of working experience.

The Group also had a testing center located in Mainland China, with
a total workforce of 63 employees.

Note': Data excludes testing center in Mainland China

BT B R E] A 2 B & A 0

B2

e Employees with an average of about
13 years of working experience
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Training & Development

At the Group, we strive to cultivate a culture of “Continuous
Learning”, and to inspire, encourage and develop our staff. In
2021, the Group dedicated a total of over 1,086 man-hours? to
training and development, covering technical and soft skill training.
Apart from in-house training, the Group has also encouraged and
sponsored employees to take external job-related courses.

Employee’s Well-being

We put more resources in health, safety, and wellness of our
employees as we care about their well-being. Apart from providing
a safe working environment and health insurance covering medical,
disability, accidental and life benefits to eligible employees, we also
aimed at assisting employees to strike a healthy work life balance
and to promote team spirit. In 2021, the Group organized a range
of activities for employees to achieve these targets. The Group
also arranged leisure activities inviting our employees to participate
together with their family members.

Remuneration and Awards

The Group believes in motivating, retaining and rewarding
employees and attracting new talent with the right incentives,
in order to facilitate the alignment of their interests with the
Company. NPI First Order Awards were granted to project teams
in appreciation of the order winning on our new products. The
Group also offers cash reward schemes (including KPI Incentive
for recognizing the attainment of annual KPI on both the team
and individual levels), and ES1 MP Award for new products which
win for mass production with the first successful sample attempt.
Patent Awards are in place to encourage and reward technological
innovation. The Group also offers long service awards to reward
employees of long standing.

Details of the remuneration of employees, bonus and share option
scheme are disclosed in relevant section of the Directors’ Report,
and note 6, note 10, note 11 and note 25 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group has a strong sense of commitment to fulfilling its
corporate social responsibility and ensures that it becomes part
of the daily operations of the Group. The Group’s Environmental,
Social, Governance (“ESG”) working committee has monitored the
Group’s performance in the areas of employees, the marketplace, the
environment and the community during 2021. The Group’s ESG Report
for 2021 will be published separately on the Company’s website at
www.solomon-systech.com and the Stock Exchange’s website at
www.hkexnews.com on or before 31 May 2022.

Note?: Data excludes testing center in Mainland China
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OUR PEOPLE AND
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BANEIRGCELEER
Corporate Social Responsibilities Activities

Barrier Busters 2021

The management of Solomon Systech and two volunteer teams
actively participated in “Barrier Busters 2021”7, an outdoor
competitive event organized by the Hong Kong Society for
Rehabilitation to help people to understand the daily challenges
of not being able to see, hear, speak or with other disabilities. The
event was held on 12 December 2021, required teams to participate
in various tasks throughout Hong Kong. Participants were required
to experience the daily challenges faced by people with disabilities
by wearing blindfolds, covering their ears or using a wheelchair
to simulate various disabilities. The event not only increased the
employees’ awareness of living with a disability, but also promoted
the building up of a harmonized society.
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The Community Chest Virtual Walk for Millions

Walk for Millions is the most long-standing fund-raising campaign
of The Community Chest and is well-received by the public. In view
of the COVID-19 and social distancing measures, the Community
Chest had launched its second virtual walk in 2021/2022. Solomon
Systech has participated in the event, which aimed to benefit Family
and Child Welfare Services. The event was successfully held in the
two weeks period from 9 January to 23 January 2022.

The Group is committed to integrating corporate social
responsibility into our corporate culture and caring for people in
need in the society. We believe providing an environment which
is compatible and harmonized for all people in the community
cultivates a better environment for sustainable development with all
stakeholders in the society.
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Revenue and Results Overview

Despite the challenging and turbulent business environment during
the continuous out-break of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2021, the
Group was able to report an outstanding performance with record
high in shipment quantity. The overall book-to-bill ratio of the group
for the year ended 31 December 2021 was 1.5 compared to 1.4 in
2020.

Sales revenue increased to US$168.1 million in 2021 (2020:
US$121.3 million), representing an increase of over 38.6% from
that of last year due to the continuous strong demand of the
Group’s products which pushed up the average selling price. Profit
attributable to owners of the parent was reported at US$23.8
million, an increase of over 103% from US$11.7 million in 2020.
Earnings per share were 1.0 US cents, up 0.5 US cents from 2020.

The outstanding performance of the Group was due to increase in
sales revenue and better product mix of higher gross profit margin
products.

Gross profit

Gross profit of US$67.3 million (2020: US$35.8 million) and gross
margin of 40.0% (2020: 29.6%) were recorded for the year ended
31 December 2021, representing an increase of 87.6% and 10.4

percentage points as compared with that in the year of 2020,
respectively. The improvement in average gross profit margin was
due to the increase in average selling price coupled with competitive
costing from strategic procurement, and a better product mix of
higher margin products.
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Revenue/Gross Profit
for the year ended 31 December
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Profit attributable to owners of the parent

for the year ended 31 December
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Costs and Expenses BRARBEX

The Group’s total expenses (including product R&D costs, S&D
expenses, administrative expenses and other expenses) for the
year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to about US$45.1 million
(2020: US$30.5 million), representing an increase of 48.0% as
compared to that for the year 2020.

The Group is committed to its longer-term development by investing
in its R&D capabilities. During the year under review, the product
R&D costs amounted to US$30.4 million (2020: US$16.9 million),
representing an increase of US$13.5 million and an increase of
80.3%. The product R&D costs to sales ratio for the year ended
31 December 2021 was 18.1% (2020: 13.9%), an increase of 4.2
percentage points. As a high-tech semi-conductor company, the
Group has set a bold target in R&D for innovation to solidify the
leading position in IC display industry.

Administrative expense amounted to US$11.2 million (2020: US$11.1
million), nearly same as that of last year, despite the increase in
revenue by 38.6%, resulting from the Group’s on-going stringent
effective cost controls measure to enhance operational efficiency.

Other Income and Gains - Net

During the year under review, other income amounted to US$1.2
million (2020: US$6.2 million), lower than that of 2020 by US$5.0
million mainly due to decrease in government subsidies and the
absence of licencing income in 2021. Government subsidies mainly
consisted of grants for the product R&D projects totalling US$0.9
million in 2021 (2020: US$3.6 million).
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Profit Attributable to the Owners of the
Parent

During the year under review, the Group reported a profit
attributable to owners of the parent of US$23.8 million, as
compared to a profit attributable to owners of the parent for the
year ended 31 December 2020 of US$11.7 million. The significant
increase in profit attributable to owners of the parent was due to
increase in revenue, improvement in gross profit and a stringent
control on overall expenses resulting from the positive contributing
factors discussed above.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

\ | ANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December

M12H831H

2021 2020

US$’000 US$'000

FER =T

Current assets MEEE 121,590 86,787

Current liabilities mEaE 51,633 30,680

Net current assets mEEEFE 69,957 56,107

Current ratio MEN L & 2.35 2.83

The Group’s current ratio was 2.35 as at 31 December 2021 (31 H2021512A31H ' XEEMNRBILE5H2.35

December 2020: 2.83), reflecting a strong liquidity in its financial (2020%12H31H :2.83) - B%Elﬁﬂ%ﬂkﬁ

position. Working capital position of the Group remains strong. EERRNABESKE - KERBESNR
Hag o

The Group does not have any significant interest-bearing loans and AEEBEUHRIMEAFEERRER  BER

borrowings, and is in net cash position. The Gearing Ratio is 0.002 FHR&KF - EEEELLZE%0.002 (20205 :
(2020: 0.003). 0.003) °

Treasury Management EX%ER

The Group has an internal treasury review team (the “Team”) to
execute treasury management policy, review the overall investment
portfolio and monitor the performance on a regular basis to increase
the yield of cash reserves. The Team conducts regular review
meetings or teleconferences with individual external portfolio
managers and holds internal review meetings to evaluate and
monitor the investment performance.

Total cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits of the Group
were US$41.8 million as at 31 December 2021 (2020: US$51.0
million), of which US$17.0 million denominated in US dollars (2020:
US$130,000) were pledged to banks to secure for general banking
facilities for general operation purpose. Cash and cash equivalents
and bank deposits of the Group were mainly denominated in US
dollars and Renminbi.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no major borrowing other
than the revolving bank credit lines of a Korean subsidiary for
working capital financing amounting to US$0.2 million denominated
in Korean Won.
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Most of the Group’s trade receivables and payables are quoted in
US dollars. The Group closely monitors the movement of foreign
exchange rates and constantly seeks to obtain favorable exchange
rates for conversion of US dollars into other currencies for paying
local operating expenses. During the year under review, the Group
had not used any derivative instruments to hedge against foreign
currency exposure in operation as the Board considered this
exposure to be insignificant.

Capital Expenditure and Contingent Liabilities

During the year of 2021, capital expenditure of the Group was
US$1.5 million (2020: US$1.1 million).

As at 31 December 2021, capital expenditure contracted for but
not yet incurred was approximately US$1.2 million (2020: US$1.0
million).

The Company has provided corporate guarantees amounted to
US$17.9 million (2020: Nil) to banks in connection with facilities
granted to a subsidiary, of which US$8.0 million (2020: Nil) were
utilised as at 31 December 2021.

Aside from the aforesaid, the Group had no other material capital
commitment or contingent liability.

Significant Investments Held

During the year under review, there was no significant investments
held by the Group.

Future Plans for Material Investments and
Capital Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any future plans
for material investments and capital assets.

Acquisition and Disposal of Material
Subsidiaries and Associates

The Group did not acquire or dispose of any material subsidiaries
and associates during the year under review.

Charge of Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any charge on
its assets except for time deposits amounted to a total of US$17.0
million (2020: US$130,000) pledged to banks for securing banking
facilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had a total workforce of 326
employees*. About 36% of the workforce were based at the Hong
Kong headquarters, with the rest located in Mainland China, Japan,
Korea and Taiwan. The Group also has a testing center located in
Mainland China, with a workforce of 63 employees.

g Data excludes the testing center in Mainland China
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Chairman
Mr. MA Yuchuan, aged 57

Chairman of the Board: since May 2019
Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 2018
Chairman of Nomination Committee
Member of the Investment Committee

Skills and experience:

Graduated from Zhejiang University with a bachelor’s degree in
semiconductor physics and devices
Extensive experience in semiconductor industry

Current appointments include:

Director of Shanghai Anlogic Infotech Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code:
688107)

Director of Beijing Huada Zhibao Electronic System Co., Ltd.
and APS (Shanghai) Ltd.

Vice general manager of Huada Semiconductor Co., Ltd.

Former appointments include:

Held various positions in CEC: division chief of project
division of business management department, division chief
of integrated circuit & components division of corporate
development department, vice general manager of integrated
circuit business group and deputy general manager of planning,
science & technology department

Director of China Electronics Huada Technology Company
Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
with stock code: 0085), Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited (a

company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange with stock
code: 1347), Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 600171), CEC
Huada International Co. Ltd., Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co.,
Ltd., Nanjing Micro One Electronics Inc. and Chengdu Sino
Microelectronics Technology Co., Ltd.
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Executive Directors
Mr. WANG Wah Chi, Raymond, aged 55

CEQ: since January 2020

Acting CEO: 2019

Executive Director: 2019

Chairman of the Investment Committee

Authorized Representative of the Company pursuant to Rule
3.05 of the Listing Rules

Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group

Skills and experience:

Graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor’s degree in electronic engineering

Received a master of business administration degree from the
Victoria University of Wellington and a master of arts degree
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong

A chartered engineer with over 30 years’ experience in the
semiconductor industry

Former appointments include:

Corporate VP and Head of Advanced Display Business of the
Group

Held senior management position in Motorola Inc and worked
in Hong Kong, the United States of America and Canada

Asia Pacific Head of RFWaves Ltd. in Israel
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Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wang Hui, aged 39

Non-executive director

Appointed to the Board: 2021

Member of the Remuneration Committee and Investment
Committee

Skills and experience:

Master of science in engineering in control systems from the
University of Sheffield

Master of business administration from the University of Hong
Kong

Current appointments include:

Director, development and planning department, Huada
Semiconductor Co., Ltd. (“Huada”) *(2E KX} EEER A7)
Director, Alpha Power Solutions Co., Ltd. (BIEEEN HRIRR AR
=)

Director, Chengdu Sino Microelectronics Technology Co., Ltd

(REBEWUBERH AR A F)

Former appointments include:

Various positions including a strategic manager and a
professional manager of the development and planning
department in Huada

Marketing manager, Brite Semiconductor (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.*
(BEHER(LBARQTF)

Technical marketing manager, Shanghai Huahong Grace
Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation*( LS 25 3 Eeg
SUERRAT)

Various engineering positions and the technical marketing
manager in Shanghai Hua Hong NEC Electronics Co., Ltd.* (Lt
BEINECE FHIRAA)

For identification purposes only
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Non-executive Directors
Dr. Kang Jian, aged 40

Non-executive director
Appointed to the Board: 2021
Member of the Audit Committee

Skills and experience:

Doctor of philosophy in computer science granted by De
Montfort University in the United Kingdom

Master of business administration degree granted by China
Europe International Business School in the PRC, China

Current appointments include:

Head of the investment management department of Huada

Director, CEC Huada International Co., Ltd.* (FZEFE KB EGR
NG|
Director, China Electronics Corporation (BVI) Holdings

Company Limited (PEIE FEBEBVIEREGRLQF)

Director of CEC Capital Management Co., Ltd.* (FEEAEES
RETAT)
Director of Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd. (8B IRIR D ERLF)

(a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock
code: 600171).

Former appointments include:

Professional manager at the investment management
department of Huada

Supervisor of Beijing Huada Zhibao Electronic System Co.,
Ltd.* (EREREEEFEZGARLA)

Supervisor of China Electronics Smart Card Co., Ltd.”
*EREELT)

Supervisor of Advanced Semiconductor Manufacturing
Corporation Limited (L8 EX ERAERHDERLQT)
Director of GTA Semiconductor Co., Ltd.* (E/EEEFE
A7)

Director (#E%) of the Shanghai branch office of China Fortune
Land Development Co., Ltd.* (EEZREEEZRMHERLT, the
shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock
code: 600340)

Various positions including as a senior consultant and the
general manager of CCID Consulting Company Limited* (ZFi#
EERIRHEFR A F) (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange with stock code: 2176) and its Shanghai branch
company

Director of Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd. (E/2BIRIRABERLF)
(a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock
code: 600171).
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. LEUNG Heung Ying, aged 58

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 2014

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Investment Committee

Skills and experience:

Received a bachelor’s degree from the University of Bradford,
United Kingdom, a master’s degree from London School of
Economics and Political Science of University of London,
United Kingdom and a bachelor’s degree in Chinese Laws from
Peking University, the PRC

Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, as well as committee member of Hong
Kong Securities Professionals Association

Current appointments include:

Member of the Listing Review Committee of Stock Exchange
(appointed in July 2020)

Managing director and founder of Proton Capital Limited
Member of the Public Affairs Forum of the HKSAR Government
Committee member of the Political Consultative Committee of
Wu Hua County of Guangdong Province

Former appointments include:

Member to the Listing Committee of Stock Exchange (2010-
2016)

Executive director of Harmonic Strait Financial Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
with stock code: 0033)

Independent non-executive director of Creative Energy
Solutions Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange with stock code: 8109)

Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Corporate Finance Committee, the Expert Panel
on Listing and the Advisory Committee on Listing and Takeover
Regulations
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Independent Non-executive Directors
(continued)

Mr. SHEU Wei Fu, age 52

¢ Independent Non-executive Director

e Appointed to the Board: 2014

° Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

° Member of the Nomination Committee and Audit Committee

Skills and experience:

e Received a bachelor’s degree in business/managerial
economics from the University of California, San Diego

e With over 18 years of high technology industry experience
focusing on strategy, business development and supply chain
integration for original development manufacturers and original
equipment manufacturers

Current appointments include:
e  Special Assistant to the Chairman & CEO (Strategy & Planning)
of Quanta Computer Inc.

Former appointments include:

e Alternate director to Dr. Lam Pak Lee, a non-executive director
of the Company who retired from the Board at the conclusion
of the Annual General Meeting held in May 2014

Dr. CHAN Philip Ching Ho, age 72

¢ Independent Non-executive Director

e Appointed to the Board: since December 2020

° Member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee, Audit Committee and Investment Committee

Skills and experience:

e Received his bachelor of science in electrical engineer from the
University of California, Davis

e Received his master of science in electrical engineering and
doctor in electrical engineering both from the University of
Illinois, Urbana-Champaign

e Taught at the University of lllinois, Urbana-Champaign for 3
years

e Senior position for development and design of integrated
circuits in Intel Corporation for over 10 years

Current appointments include:

e  Founder and director of Apt Electronics Co., Ltd.

° Member of the Committee on Innovation, Technology and Re-
industrialisation
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Independent Non-executive Directors
(continued)

Dr. CHAN Philip Ching Ho, age 72 (continued)

Former appointments include:

° Professor and the head of at the Department of Electronic
and Computer Engineering, the director of Nanoelectronics
Fabrication Facility of the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology (“HKUST”)

e Dean of the School of Engineering of HKUST and a chair
professor over the years

° Deputy President and Provost, a chair professor of Electronic
& Information Engineering (EIE) department of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (“HKPU”) and a council member of
HKPU until his retirement from HKPU in March 2020

e Director of Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology
Research Institute Company Limited and the chairman of its
technology committee, a director of Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited, and a member of the
Vocational Training Council.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, each of the Directors (i) has
no relationship with any directors, senior management or substantial
shareholders or controlling shareholders (as defined respectively in
the Listing Rules) of the Company, (ii) is not interested or deemed to
be interested, nor has short positions, in shares, underlying shares,
or debenture of the Company or any of its associated corporations
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, (iii) does not hold any
positions within the Company or other members of the Group, and
(iv) has not been a director of any listed companies in the past three
years. Moreover, none of the Directors has been involved in any of
the events under Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

Founder and Chairman Emeritus

Dr. LEUNG Kwong Wai, JP, aged 65, is the Founder and Chairman
Emeritus of the Group.

Company Secretary

Mr. HO Yiu Hong, Victor, aged 53, Finance Director. Mr. Ho joined
Solomon Systech Limited in 2021. Prior to the appointment of
Mr. Ho, Mr. Cheung Chi Wah, Patrick was the company secretary
of the Company who resigned from such position with effect from
22 November 2021. Mr. Ho is currently acting as the Company
Secretary and the Authorized Representative of the Company
pursuant to Rules 3.05 and 3.28 of the Listing Rules and is also a
director of various wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group.
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Senior Management

Mr. WANG Wah Chi, Raymond
Please refer to the details of Executive Directors in page 27

Dr. WU Wenchi, aged 53, Vice President, Design Engineering.
Dr. Wu joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2017. Prior to joining
the company, Dr Wu was assistant general manager of Socle
Technology Corporation. Dr. Wu holds a doctorate degree in
electrical engineering from the National Central University in Taiwan.

Mr. WU Chung Sheng, Kevin, aged 46, Vice President, Sales
& Marketing. Mr. Wu joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2018
as Senior Regional Business Director. Prior to joining the
company, Mr. Wu served as sales management roles at Synaptics
and FocalTech. Mr. Wu holds a master degree of Business
Administration from Chang Gung University in Taiwan and has
over 20 years of sales and marketing experience in semiconductor
industry.

Ms. LO Oi Yee, Mabel, aged 57, Human Resources Director. Ms. Lo
joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2000 as Human Resources
Manager. Ms. Lo holds a master degree in Human Resources &
Training from University of Leicester, and has over 30 years of
human resources management experience.

Mr. HO Yiu Hong, Victor, aged 53, Finance Director, Company
Secretary, and Authorized Representative of the Company pursuant
to Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Ho holds a First Class
Honours Degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from
the University of Strathclyde, UK. He is a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of both
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute. He has over 30 years
of extensive experience in auditing, accounting, tax, treasury and
financial management. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ho served
as group financial controller of listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. WONG Ka Kei, aged 56, Planning & Customer Services
Director. Mr. Wong joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2005 as
Business Process Solutions Manager. Mr. Wong holds a master
degree in Information Systems Management from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology, and has over 30 years
customers’ service and logistics management experience in
semiconductors industry.

Mr. PANG Tat Kwong, age 57, Quality & Manufacturing Director.
Mr. Pang joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2019. Mr. Pang holds
a master degree in Engineering Management from City University of
Hong Kong, and has over 30 years quality management experience
in semiconductors industry.
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Changes in Information of Directors

Pursuant to the disclosure requirement under Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules, changes in information of Directors of our Company
subsequent to the date of the Company’s 2021 Interim Report are
as follows:

e Ms. Ye Nan (“Ms. Ye”) was appointed as a non-executive
Director with effect from 10 June 2021, Ms. Ye was appointed
as a member of the Audit Committee of the Company with
effect from the same date. She tendered her resignation as a
non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee
of the Company with effect from 3 November 2021 due to
change in work arrangements.

° Dr. Kang Jian (“Dr. Kang”) was appointed as a non-executive
Director with effect from 3 November 2021. Dr. Kang was
appointed as a member of the Audit Committee with effect from
the same date.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT.

Corporate governance practices

The Board and the management of the Group are committed to
achieving and maintaining high standards of corporate governance
and continuously improve these standards, which the Group
considers as critical in safeguarding the integrity of its business
operations and maintaining investors’ trust in the Company,
and good corporate governance is indispensable for long-term
business success and sustainable performance of the Group.
The management also actively and constantly observes the latest
corporate governance developments in Hong Kong and overseas,
particularly those in the UK and the USA.

The Company has adopted and applied the corporate governance
principles that emphasize a quality board, effective internal controls,
stringent disclosure practices, transparency and accountability. The
Company has complied with all the applicable Code Provisions in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2021. To
maintain high standards of corporate governance, the Company
has adopted the recommended best practices in the Code where
appropriate. In addition, the Company is committed to continuously
improving these practices and inculcating an ethical corporate
culture.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code for Directors’
securities transactions. All the Directors have confirmed their
compliance with the required standards set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2021. Regarding the shares
held by the Directors, the details are listed in the “Report of the
Directors” from pages 55 to 66 of this Annual Report. Pursuant to
the Code Provision A.6.4, the Company established its own written
guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code for
Directors and relevant employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information in respect of their dealings in the
securities of the Company. All Directors and relevant employees
conformed to the Group’s own guidelines throughout the year 2021.
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Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management of the
Company’s business and affairs with the goal of maximizing long-
term value for shareholders, while balancing broader stakeholder
interests. Schedule of matters reserved for the Board include:

e  Strategy and management

e Group structure and capital

e  Financial reporting and control
e |Internal controls

° Major contracts

e  Corporate communications

° Board membership and other appointments
e  Remuneration

e  Authority and delegation

e  Corporate governance

e  Company policies

Matters not specifically reserved for the Board and relate
primarily to the daily operations of the Group are delegated to the
management under the supervision and leadership of the CEO.

Board Composition

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises one
Executive Directors, three Non-executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The size and composition
of the Board are reviewed from time to time, taking into account
the scope and nature of the Company’s operations, to ensure that
the size of the Board is adequate to provide a diversity of views
and facilitate effective decision-making. The biographical details
of all Directors and the relationships among them, if any, are set
out in the “Board of Directors and Senior Management” on pages
26 to 34 of this Annual Report and the Company’s website. Except
as disclosed in the section of “Board of Directors and Senior
Management”, none of the Directors has any financial, business,

family or other material or relevant relationships among members
of the Board and the Company has received annual confirmation
of independence from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors. Accordingly, the Board considers that all Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent as defined in the Listing
Rules.

EEg
ESEREEEARRAHERRERNER
BEESBERRREARENEER FRIIY
Ei?ﬂ’ﬂ%fﬁ%‘ﬂ’ﬂ%%‘ﬁ CEEEERNEEE
e XBRER

e HREERBRER

e MBHmEAREE

o RERESIE

e FEAYW

o IbEEH

e EFEMERHMED

o HM

e HBERIRE

o hEER

e RAHXE
Ht ¥ E v ESEHE u&ﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁlig
HMEEEFSH AETRAREERES

ZREEERE -

Exgds

RAFHE  EBSHFA—BUTES =5
FUTESR=FBILFNTES - AEHS
TERNESENHRERAR  EFEZER
DNENEBHEERME  UBRRESSHRE
EURBAEMNEE  UERBRREK - FIB
EENERABRHESE 2BNER (WH) Y
HRAFRFEEEMAZ[EZTERSRER
Bl -8RARANY - BRIEFERSRNER
Bl -EmmEsS HEEEHEEEaNE 2
BEEMME E% XEIEBEXNNEED
BE MALATCWRESBIFANTESZ
FEHBUMNEREK - Bt EFSRR/M
BBUFHTESHR LTRAMRENE L
Ao




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ?E”PQRT

The Company is committed to selecting the most appropriate
persons as members of the Board for the role. Since 2013, the
Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which has been
published on the Company’s website for better transparency and
corporate governance.

The selection of Board members is based on a range of diverse
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates can bring to the Board.

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has
delegated specific functions to four Board Committees. The
principal Board Committees are the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Investment Committee,
details of which are as follows:

TEEBHE

ARRABINBEEREEARFRESER
E-RE-SIRABAERCEERKT A
2013F i - EBECHRMABHNAQBAMLH
AREMNESEHNES TILEE -

GREETEREBR RIS ATLEERE
E . BRHEBES HEEH - HEE DEKER
AT REEETRRMR - F& - Xt
BERERK BRESEEBRABRNRERTAES
SEHNEBMAERE °

ETEnNEESZEES R REEHE - UE
EE2UTHBE TREZZESREN
ZEE ¥MEES REZEERREZRE
g HREINT

Date of Date of
first appointment  last re-election
to the Board as Director Audit Remuneration  Nomination  Investment
Position BREZER Bif-/EEET  Committee  Committee  Committee  Committee
Bir EZSHENEE AREZNEE ENZEE  HMZEE REZRE  REZse
Mr. Ma Yuchuan Non-executive Director/Chairman 14 March 2018 20 May 2020
E3)I%4 FUTESER 2018F3A14E 202085208 c |
Mr. Wang Hui Non-executive Director 1 April 2021 27 May 2021
THEEE FunEs A2E4AIR 202155R27R | |
Dr. Kang Jian Non-executive Director 3 November 2021 N/A
BhlEt FunEs 211138 THER |
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond ~ Executive Director/CEQ 20 March 2019 5 June 2019
TEREE K EGT € E 20193A208  2019%6A5A C
Mr. Leung Heung Ying Independent Non-executive Director 8 October 2014 20 May 2020
RIREE BIFHTEE 2014588108 202085820R c | | |
Mr. Sheu Wei Fu Independent Non-executive Director 8 October 2014 27 May 2021
FEREE BUHTES 2014E8A10R  20215827R | C |
Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho Independent Non-executive Director 10 December 2020 27 May 2021
REZEL BUEHTES 20205128108 2021F5827R | | | |

C - chairman of the committee Z5 & % &
\ — member of the committee ZEE K E

The Company has taken appropriate insurance cover to indemnify
our Directors against possible claims and liabilities arising out of the
Group’s business and activities.

AARCHESEARE  UREEZELE
EEBREDMAREENREREE-
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Board meetings and Board practices

The Board has scheduled to meet for at least four times a year,
and the Board will also meet on other occasions when a board-
level decision on a particular matter is required. The meetings are
structured to allow open discussion. All Directors participate to
discuss the strategy, operational and financial performance and
internal control of the Group.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
assists the Chairman to prepare the agenda of the meetings and
each Director may request to include any relevant matters on the
agenda. Generally, at least 14 days’ notice is given for the regular
meetings by the Company. All substantive agenda items have
comprehensive briefing papers, which are, in general, circulated
three days before convening each Board meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible for distributing detailed
documents to the Directors prior to the Board meetings to ensure
that the Directors are able to make informed decisions regarding
the matters discussed in the meetings so that they may receive
accurate, timely and clear information.

Minutes of the Board, Board Committee and General Meetings
are kept by the Company Secretary and are made available and
circulated to all Directors periodically.

All Directors may access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters. The Company Secretary is also responsible
for ensuring the procedures of the Board meetings are observed
and providing the Board with opinions on matters in relation to the
compliance with the procedures of the Board meetings.

Directors are able, upon reasonable request, to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses. The Board shall resolve to provide separate appropriate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist the
relevant Directors to discharge their duties.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board, the Company will deal
with the matter by a physical board meeting rather than written
resolution or a Board Committee (except if that Board Committee
was specifically established for such purpose). Independent Non-
executive Directors with no material interest in the matter will attend
the meeting to deal with the matter if it is considered appropriate.
Other than the exceptional criteria allowed under the Listing Rules,
any Director who or whose associates have any material interest in
any proposed Board resolutions will not be counted as a quorum
in the relevant Board meeting or no vote for the relevant Board
resolutions.

All the Board Committees adopted the same principles and
procedures used in the Board meetings.
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Board meetings, Board Committees
meetings and General Meetings

The attendance of Directors at Board meetings, Board Committees
meetings and General Meetings during the year are set out below:

i

EXEEgR EFZEEEENR
BRERRE

AFEESLENESARE EFE8EN
ARBRAEHEINTX :

Annual  Extraordinary Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination  Investment
General General Board  Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
Eze  B#pZEE  §MZEe REZBE  REZEE
RRBEAE REHBIAE g EE ] 83 83 83
Number of meetings held EaeEny 1 1 6 3 ) 3 Qi
Number of meetings attended/Eligible to attend in 2021
Members of the Board EZEAE HESERE20NEHLER LRSS
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Ma Yuchuan (Chairman) EXI%E(ER) 0A 0A 4/6 33 0/0
Mr. Wang Hui® TRELD 17 17 4/5 11 0/0
Dr. Kang Jian® BEEL0 1N 1N
Mr. Yu Jian® EREED 0/ 0 0
Dr. Li Jun® FiELO 0/ 0/ 013 0/0
Ms. Ye Nan®) Efg L 17 17
Mr. Lo Wai Ming" ERHLEN 17 17 212
Executive Director BrES
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond (CEQ) TELRE((THER) 17 17 6/6
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Leung Heung Ying DERAE 171 171 6/6 303 202 303 0/0
Mr. Sheu Wei Fu HEREE n n 6/6 3/3 2/2 3/3
Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho RESHEL 1n 1N 6/6 33 212 33 0/0
(i)  Appointed as a Non-executive Director, Member of Audit Committee and () R2021F4F 1A BZFRHBITESE  FRE
Member of Remuneration Committee on 1 April 2021. EEHERFMNESEHKS -
(i) Appointed as a Non-executive Director and Member of Audit Committee (i) FR2021F11H3HEZFRHHATEER EFX
on 3 November 2021. ZEEEHE -
(i) Resigned on 1 April 2021. (iii)  BR2021F451H BT °
(iv) Resigned on 10 June 2021. (iv) R20214F6HF10H B F »
(v) Appointed as a Non-executive Director and member of Audit Committee — (v) R2021F6H10H EZFRHFEHITEER FRZ
on 10 June 2021, resigned on 3 November 2021, EEE2HE R20214F1153HBHE -
(vi) Retired at 2021 AGM held on 27 May 2021 due to his other business  (vi) FHE % ZHK2021E5H27HE77/22021
arrangements. FRHEFRRAERM -
(vl No investment committee meeting was held during the year under review — (vii) BIRBEBEZEHEEIR RUEZEZIEXTESE

as no proper business plan and strategies were sound to propose to the
Board.

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.7, Independent Non-executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors should attend general
meetings. According to the above table, all the Independent
Non-executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and Executive
Directors were present at the 2021 AGM and available to answer
questions from shareholders of the Company except Dr. Li Jun and
Mr. Ma Yuchuan who were busy at a business trip.
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Directors’ Continuous Training and
Development

The Group has been responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions
and duties of a listed company director to all the Directors. All the
Directors of the Company understand that they should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that they are equipped with all
information required for making relevant contributions to the Board.

The Company provides various guideline materials to Directors, for
instance, Directors’ duties and responsibilities, the relevant laws
and regulations applicable to Directors and duty of disclosure of
interest and business of the Group. Every newly appointed Director
will receive a comprehensive induction session at his appointment.
All Directors are encouraged to have continuous professional
development to enhance and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Mr. Ma Yuchuan, Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond, Dr. Kang Jian,
Mr. Wang Hui, Mr. Leung Heung Ying, Mr. Sheu Wei Fu and Dr.
Chan Philip Ching Ho attended the seminars or read materials on
the corporate governance, updates on laws, rules and regulations
and other professional skills. Directors were also encouraged to
take educational courses on duties of the directors.

The Board has received from each of the Directors (Independent
Non-executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and Executive
Directors) of the Company a record of the training received for the
year ended 2021 indicating their compliance to the Code Provision
A.6.5.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles and responsibilities of the Non-executive Chairman,
Mr. Ma Yuchuan, and the CEO, Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond
are segregated as stipulated in the Listing Rules, to ensure an
appropriate balance of power, increased accountability and greater
capacity of the Board for independent decision-making.

The Non-executive Chairman, Mr. Ma Yuchuan, is responsible for
ensuring that all Directors act in the best interest of shareholders.
Acting independently from the Company, he is fully accountable
to the shareholders and contributes to the Board and the Group
on all top-level or strategic decisions. Specifically, he is assigned
with three key roles to perform, namely leading the Board, ensuring
the Group’s effective communication with shareholders and
implementing a high standard of corporate governance.

Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond, as CEO, is responsible for managing
the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the Board.
He leads the Group’s management team in accordance with the
directions set by the Board. He is responsible for ensuring that
a proper internal control system is in place and that the Group’s
business conforms to applicable laws and regulations. The CEO
chairs the monthly operations and financial reviews and also
the weekly management staff meetings, as well as the quarterly
employees’ communication meeting.

;,I; ]
3
|

Solomon Systech (International) Limited e Annual Report 2021

EEZRHFESIIRER

AEE-BERERHFAENBILRAAH
RE URBEVNEELTRARESNAS B
EREEATEES IAESHCHEMM
B2ESESXREE  RRLFHANE R
B LERHEABEZEEMRIERAFNER
THESSHFHER -

RRARRHUSTNIESIERTES  ES
BEERER BEARESNAEBREENRMR
FEBNANENEXENREEME - SUHEE
LESYERESZENMEEN - FEESY
SRSESERR  UMRRERBMH R
R gE ©

FENRE S TESRE - BE8IEL - THEL
£ CREHETE CHERLERRERELY
FTBESMBEREALEER EE RN
POz ER R HMEEREE - NEBTFH
BESBCERRESHE 2HARE -

EEENRBARAQRTABNES (BILIHITE
E FHTEERATESE) R2021FELILFT
BB IRg B R e BT AMRX
$EA.6.50F o

EFERITHRAR

FHUITERBFEINEERITHRARTIES 2R
ERBE RELTRINEECHEED -
WA NG - O MEBAEN - UK
REESSFHBIRENED -

FHUTEFEFIINNEENBERHRREZEBES
HURRNRENBITE - BURALH » b
HERRE2E EMESERIEBRE L
MESERASEREMHREE ABWME  ME
ZT-HRIBRY BEREESE  BEDS
SEHERRETENBBERETSREEZLE

=

EJA °

THRBEIETSEEEEREEEF UK
TESSRANVERE - MTEAEENEER
BIRBEEENETETRE - MARRAE
BEEGEENAIMEZRR  REAEENES
REBIFBEAMERNBRA - THARNE A
BRNEBRIBRNEZNEEHRERNS
RERESREIEIRE  ISEHEZFIRN
BETEBBARE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and
Removal

At every annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director
shall retire from office at least once every three years or within such
other period as the rules of the Stock Exchange may from time to
time prescribe. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director at the annual general meeting at
which he retires.

In order to promote the independence of Non-executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors, the Company
implemented the policy regarding the terms of office of Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
(“Service Term Policy”). The terms of appointment of all Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
should not be more than nine consecutive years. They should not
offer themselves for re-election for any period beyond the annual
general meeting at which they retire.

Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills, industry
and business experience to the Group. The composition of
Executive and Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) demonstrates a strong independent element
on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgment
pursuant to the Code Provision A.3 so as to further strengthen the
Company’s corporate governance. The Non-executive Directors are
of sufficient caliber and number for their views to carry weight. At
least once a year, Non-executive Directors and also Independent
Non-executive Directors will have a private discussion with the
Chairman on the Group’s matters. In addition, Non-executive
Directors, according to the Group’s policy, may approach the
Group’s employees at anytime they think appropriate. During the
year, the Group’s management also met with certain Non-executive
Directors to seek their views on certain business or operational
matters.

During the year 2021, the Board had a total of three Independent
Non-executive Directors and they represented more than one-third
of the Board, which is a sufficient number to meet the minimum
requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

All Independent Non-executive Directors bring their wealth of
experience to the Board and make active contributions to the
Group. They closely monitor the Group’s development and freely
express their opinions at the Board meetings. All Independent Non-
executive Directors, except as disclosed in this Annual Report,
do not have any business with or financial interests in the Group
and confirmed their independence to the Group pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Subject to re-election according to the procedures set out in the
Company’s Articles of Association, the Company has entered
into service contracts for a specific term ended on 30 June
2022 with each of the Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Non-executive
Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors. A majority
of the votes in the Remuneration Committee are exercisable by
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee does not
deal with the remuneration of Non-executive Directors which shall
be a matter for the Executive Directors of the Board. No Director
or senior executive will be involved in any discussion in connection
with his or her own remuneration. The Committee also consults
the Chairman about their proposals relating to the remuneration of
other Executive Directors and has access to professional advice if
considered necessary. The Committee consulted the head of human
resources in respect of human resources policy and market as well
as other company information.

The meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall normally be
held not less than once a year to review and approve principally
the remuneration of Executive Directors of the Company. The
Committee, currently chaired by Mr. Sheu Wei Fu, has delegated
to the CEO the authority to approve the remuneration of all the
employees of the Group below the rank of Executive Director. Policy
related remuneration schemes will be decided by the Remuneration
Committee.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

e To determine the framework and broad policy for the
remuneration of Directors, senior management and general
staff

e To establish guidelines for the recruitment of the Chief
Executive Officer and senior management

e To approve the policy and structure for the remuneration of
Directors (including Non-executive Directors) whilst ensuring no
Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration

e  To determine the remuneration of Executive Directors including
benefits in kind, pension right and compensation payment

e To review and approve the compensation arrangements
in connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment, or dismissal or removal for misconduct to
Executive Directors and senior management which shall be fair
and not excessive

e To review the criteria for assessing the performance of the
Executive Directors and/or senior management which should
reflect the Company’s business objectives and targets

e To determine the annual performance bonus for Executive
Directors and review the annual performance bonus for senior
management achievements against the performance criteria
and by reference to market norms

e To engage such external professional advisors to assist and/or
advise the Remuneration Committee on issues as it considers
necessary
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Remuneration Committee (continued)

In 2021, the Remuneration Committee confirmed the remuneration
policy for the Executive Directors, assessed their performances as
well as reviewed their employment contracts with the Group. Details
of remuneration of Directors and the senior management are set
out in notes 11 and 35(b) of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements section.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management of the
Group by band for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out
below:

FHEES (F)

A20215F - HFNZEESCHERYITES NI
BER - FEERBENENEEAEENERE
XN -BBERaREEEB2HFHNEBRRNGESY
IR ERMFE11%35(b)A ©

BZE2021F12A31 B L FEREEE S AEE
ZEOMEEBERENMNESEHINNT :

Number of
Remuneration bands persons
[0 e AB
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017& 7t £1,500,000/& 7T 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017& 7t £2,000,0007& 7T 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t £2,500,0007%& 7T 2
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 7T £6,000,00058 7T 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 10 and 11 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one Non-executive Director
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, with a majority
being Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee
generally meets before the annual general meeting, or at other times
as required by the Chairman of the Committee. The Committee will
nominate such candidates for the Board to consider, and regularly
review the composition of the Board as well as make suggestions
on any change that may be required.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

° To review the structure, size and composition of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to implement the Company’s corporate
strategy

e To assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

e To identify and nominate candidates to the Board for it to
appoint or to recommend to shareholders for election
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Nomination Committee (continued)

e  To regularly review the time required from a Director to perform
his responsibilities

e To make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the succession planning for the Chairman, the Chief
Executive Officer as well as the senior management

e To review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and the
progress on achieving the objectives set for implementing the

policy

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee have
reviewed information of certain candidates, and in consideration
of the extensive educational background, working experience,
extensive knowledge of our industry, good governmental
relationship and board contacts, the Nomination Committee have
recommended Mr. Wang Hui as non-executive director to replace
Mr. Yu Jian, Ms. Ye Nan as non-executive director to replace Dr. Li
Jun, and subsequently Dr. Kang Jian as non-executive director to
replace Ms. Ye Nan.

In 2021, the Nomination Committee reviewed the policy for the
nomination of Directors, the nomination procedures, the process
and criteria to select and recommend candidate for directorship and
the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee considers
that the current Board composition has provided the Company with
a good balance and diversity of skills and experiences appropriate
for the business of the Company.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.
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Investment Committee

The Investment Committee comprises one Executive Director,
two Non-executive Directors and two Independent Non-executive
Directors. It shall meet at the request of any member of the
Committee and its meetings will be facilitated by the Finance
Director, who will also participate in the discussion.

The Investment Committee, currently chaired by Mr. Wang Wah
Chi, Raymond, will evaluate and approve any strategic investment
of US$2 million or less. Any strategic investment exceeding
that amount will be proposed by the Committee for the Board’s
approval. The Committee is authorized, at the expense of the
Group, to seek external professional advice it considers necessary
and to arrange external advisers to attend its meetings. The
Committee will also periodically report the status and performance
of investments to the Board.

The main duties of the Investment Committee are as follows:
e To assist the Board in discharging its duties and responsibilities
in relation to investment activities (excluding treasury or cash

management)

e To assist the Board with all of its policy setting responsibilities
related to investment

e To establish and document the basic investment principles and
beliefs held by the Committee as well as the Code of Conduct
for avoiding possible conflict of interest

e To have all necessary access and authority to seek information
from management to fulfill its objectives, duties and responsibilities

e To review the appointment of external professional advisers
e To review and monitor investment performance

e To review and advise on additions to and dispositions of
existing investments

e To review annually the terms of reference of the Committee and
to recommend to the Board any required changes

e To submit an annual work report to the Board summarizing the
Committee’s activities, findings, recommendations and results
for the past year

The Investment Committee has reviewed and monitored the
performance of existing investments projects and as no proper
business plan and strategies were sound to propose to the Board,
no investment committee meeting held during the year under
review.
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Audit Committee

Further to the appointment of Mr. Shen Wei Fu (an existing
Independent non-executive Director) to the Audit Committee in
December 2020, the Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors and one Non-executive Director and
is chaired by Mr. Leung Heung Ying (“Mr. Leung”). Mr. Leung
is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and has many years of corporate finance experience
at company board level. Mr. Leung meets the requirement of having
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules for the purpose of such appointment.

The Audit Committee meets not less than twice a year to review
and discuss the internal audit findings, internal controls, corporate
governance, interim and annual consolidated financial statements
respectively. It may hold additional meetings from time to time to
discuss special projects or other issues it considers necessary. The
independent auditor and internal auditor of the Group may request a
meeting if they consider it necessary.

The Audit Committee will conduct, on behalf of the Board, annual
review of the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff for the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and training programs and budget.

The authorities of the Audit Committee include (i) investigating any
activity within its terms of reference; (ii) seeking any information it
requires from any employee; and (iii) obtaining outside legal or other
independent professional advice if required.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

e To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the independent auditor, and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
independent auditor, and deal with any question of resignation
or dismissal of that auditor

e To review with the Group’s management, independent auditor
and internal auditor, the adequacy of the Group’s policies and
procedures regarding risk management and internal control
systems, and any statement by the Directors to be included in
the annual accounts prior to endorsement by the Board

e To review independent auditor’s independence, objectivity,
effectiveness of the audit process and the scope of the
independent audit including the engagement letter, prior to
commencement of audit
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Audit Committee (continued)

To review the annual, quarterly (if any) and interim financial
reports prior to approval by the Board and liaise with the Board
and senior management, and the Committee must meet, at
least twice a year, with the independent auditor

To evaluate the cooperation received by the independent
auditor; obtain the comments of management regarding the
responsiveness of the independent auditor to the Group’s
needs; inquire the independent auditor as to whether there
have been any disagreements with the management which
if not satisfactorily resolved would result in the issue of a
qualified report on the Group’s financial statements

To seek from the independent auditor, on an annual basis,
information about policies and processes for maintaining
independence and monitoring compliance with relevant
requirements, including provision of non-audit services and
requirements regarding rotation of audit partners and staff

To review and monitor the scope, effectiveness and results
of internal audit function, ensure co-ordination between the
internal and independent auditors and ensure that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group

To discuss with management the scope and quality of systems
of internal control and ensure that management has discharged
its duty to have an effective internal control system including
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programs and budget

To review the findings of internal investigations and the
management’s response into any suspected frauds or
irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringements of
laws, rules and regulations

To consider other topics, as defined by the Board

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended
31 December 2021 to review and discuss the financial results and
reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal
control system and risk management review and process, to
evaluate the effectiveness of internal audit function by reviewing the
work performed by Corporate Audit Section and to re-appoint of the
independent auditor of the Group.
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Audit Committee (continued)

As the Audit Committee is also responsible for corporate governance
duties, the Committee performed the following duties during the year
ended 31 December 2021:

e  To note the amendments to Corporate Governance Code under
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules from time to time in particular
in the area of risk management, and to review the Group’s
policies and practices on corporate governance to ensure
compliance

e To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management

e To review and monitor the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements

e To review and monitor the Code of Conduct applicable to
employees and the Directors

e To review the compliance with the Code Provisions and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report

ESG Task Force Committee

Pursuant to Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, an ESG Task Force
Committee was established in 2021 under the delegated authority
of the Board. The ESG Task Force Committee was chaired by
the Executive Director of the Company working on promoting
and implementing various activities and measures regarding
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) matters. The
Committee members include the Company Secretary, the Human
Resources Director, heads of various operational departments,
Corporate Internal Audit Manager and Corporate Communication
Manager. The Committee meets at least once annually and a
separate ESG Report will be published on or before 31 May 2022.
During the year under review, the Directors and members of the
ESG Task Force Committee had received a formal training on anti-
corruption.

The main duties of the Committee are as follows:

e Formulate and review the Group’s responsibilities, visions,
strategies, frameworks, principles and policies of ESG related
issues and implement relevant policies;

e Set, implement and oversee ESG relevant targets, key
performance indicators and measures that align with the
Group’s business model and effectively monitor the progress;

e |dentify ESG related issues arising from external factors;

e Organize and monitor staff trainings related to ESG matters;

e Assist in the preparation of the Group’s annual ESG report
and submit it to the Board for their review and approval for
publication; and

° Report any new development of matters with its terms of
reference to the Board when necessary.
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Accountability and Audit

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the consolidated
financial statements of the annual and interim reports. The Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis, with supporting assumptions or qualifications as
necessary. When the Directors are aware of material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, such
uncertainties will be clearly and prominently set out and discussed
at length in this Corporate Governance Report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Group’s independent auditor is Ernst & Young. Ernst & Young
is responsible for auditing and forming an independent opinion on
the Group’s annual consolidated financial statements. Apart from
the statutory audit of the annual consolidated financial statements,
Ernst & Young was also engaged to perform a review on the
condensed consolidated interim financial information of the Group
for the six months ended 30 June 2021 as well as advise the Group
on taxation and related matters.

The fees payable by the Group to the independent auditor in
respect of audit and non-audit services (including tax advisory
service) provided by them for the year ended 31 December 2021
are US$139,000 (2020: US$129,000) and US$102,000 (2020:
US$105,000) respectively.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board
on governance matters and should also facilitate induction and
continuous training of Directors. In 2021, the Company Secretary
has undertaken more than 15 hours of relevant professional training
which exceeded the requirement of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has full access to the advices and services of the
Company Secretary.

Shareholders’ Rights and Investor Relations

Shareholders’ rights of the Company are at all times highly
regarded by the Group. The Group will make sure the Company’s
shareholders know how to exercise their rights. The Group provides
effective channels for the Company’s shareholders to communicate
their ideas to the Group and exert their rights.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, any two or more
members of the Company shall also be able to convene general
meetings on the written requisition deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong.

The Company amended the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company in order to bring the same in line with
the recent amendments to the Listing Rules and Companies Law of
the Cayman Island, and the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) in 2014.
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Shareholders’ Rights and Investor Relations BREEFRIEEEBE (E)
(continued)

With regard to general enquiry, a shareholder may contact the RERABEBKEAATNBRDBEERLE
Company’s Share Registrar directly. Information on proceedings ZEH—REE - EERFEASNER - REH
at general meetings, votes of members, proxies, dividends and % EER%E - - BRERESE - ROEZERE#M
reserves, transfer of shares and other information are detailed in & ¥ ' EFJIRAARAQATNWAHASBEREKAR A
the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, which is 8] » A EZER KA R A TRARD TR MG B
accessible for inspection at the Company’s Share Registrar, through F&3LE BBEAEBENRIERBER AP LE
website of the Group or the website of the Stock Exchange. The [ - RHOBEETCENBEERRNERNERS
contact details of the Share Registrar is on page 174 of this Annual 174E - IR AR EESESEAES O
Report. In the event that a shareholder wishes to put forward a HEAEFENLEERD  UZEZEBEBRS

proposal to the Board, he may put forth his enquiry in writing to the & o
Corporate Communications Section of the Group who will act on the
subject matter accordingly.

Shareholders Communication BREBE

The Company considers that communication with its shareholders ZAATRAEERFRISFBEEHIREREEH
is essential for enhancing investor relations and its shareholders’ ERINBRFREANEBXENFEEHNTHEART
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies. iR c EEERMN—EBERMRA A TIREFERE
The Board adopted a Shareholders’ Communication Policy, BEZAZDERIBREBBEE GZBEZ
which is published on the Company website, reflecting mostly ZEHRAEAATHELY) - ZBEETHRERERE
the current practices of the Company for communication with ZREEZAHEMR S HELSKR D T EEM
its shareholders. Such policy aims at providing the shareholders {RERAEMEE - EESTHHRNZIENR
and potential investors with ready and timely access to balanced X G BRERXREERIRFTERTZ2EERE
and understandable information of the Company. The Board will {iRE o

regularly reviewed the policy and considered the effectiveness and

compliance with the prevailing regulatory and other requirements.

For the year under review, the Group has taken a proactive approach AEREER  AEE—HENERESHKZE
to communicate with the investment community, for example, KXJR (flil: #EiBKREE  2IERAEFRKRE
institutional investors, analysts and retail investors. For the year &)B&E - BZE2021F12A31ALFE » &x&E
ended 31 December 2021, the Group conducted meetings and EEEBEEERSINERTIZESHERETED
conference calls with investors and analysts. To enhance the Group’s & °c BIEAEEBEARHUARERNAEL  ~EH
profile among the general public in Hong Kong, interviews were % RiZESAihEEHENZHEZ AR AER
conducted with local media, and group visits to its principal office REHESERSEARAATNEAREE -

were arranged with local universities and technology institutions.

The views of investors are invaluable to the Company. To improve BREEZEMNERHAQATRFEZIFEEZEEN -5
its communication with investors, the Company has been collecting T INBEIREENEBE  BLHUER  AAQT
ideas from shareholders and feedback from the investment RHEWKERFENERERTWEHEEH - AAQAT
community since listing. The Company also appreciates the TR IEHRBRHEMEEEENKS - B20094F
opportunity to meet shareholders face-to-face. The Company’s #  AAFWABEZRMERFERMHLER
Articles of Association has accommodated the use of websites for HEEE o

communication with shareholders since 2009.

The Company establishes different communication channels with RAGHEBRERBEEERITANERRLE
shareholders and investors, including (i) annual reports, interim &% ()RLEHRBBE - TRER - PHR
reports, notices of meetings, circulars and proxy forms which are % - 2&%E% - BREEREEEEE  BEFR
required under the Listing Rules. Shareholders can also choose (or TZEE (FHEEACRBE) UEFHFRBBAL
are deemed to have consented) to receive such documents using AL EZE S ()RR ATRBRERBE K
electronic means through the Company’s website; (i) the annual &LFBREZZEREBFESTHBER ()AQ T
general meeting which provides a forum for shareholders to raise HFUHEALAEBZHRFIREZTEMNITAERERER
comments and exchange views with the Board; (iii) the Company’s #FHERBERQAFBEBZER; (VAR T
website which provides updated and key information on the Group JFEEHFTERHGERRBRESTERHSTHE
and offers a communication channel between the Company and its BIATREAEBZEHEEER VAR T Z
shareholders and stakeholders; (iv) media conferences and briefing RO ELEARRTREE—VRHMELKIEES
meetings with analysts to be held to update interested parties on H; R(V)A QAT CEXEANREERRRIREE
the performance of the Group; (v) the Company’s Registrar which <~z —fR&EH -

deals with shareholders for share registration and related matters;
and (vi) the Corporate Communications Section of the Group which
handles enquiries from shareholders and investors generally.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, as at 31 December 2021, EARATFAH » HE2021F128318 1L » #EX
Huada/CEC held about 28.3% of the Company’s shares, the Board HEE FiEEARAAFRMDLY283%  £=2
held roughly 0.6%, and the remaining approximately 71.1%, is MWEZEEE XLN0.6% A A TWIRG @ 88T L
believed to be in public hands. 711%MKR% - BIEERAARALHMES -
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Shareholders Communication (continued)

The website of the Group (www.solomon-systech.com) is also
updated constantly to inform investors and the general public of
the latest information of the Group, for example, the important
dates for shareholders in the coming year. Further information for
shareholders can be found on pages 174 to 176 of this Annual
Report.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
in January 2019, pursuant to which the Company may declare and
distribute dividends to the Shareholders, to provide stable and
sustainable returns to the Shareholders.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of
final dividend will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group’s operations and earnings, the
general financial condition of the Group, the cash requirements and
availability and any other factors that the Board thinks appropriate
from time to time.

The Company’s ability to pay dividends is also subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, all relevant applicable laws, rules
and regulations in Cayman Islands.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has responsibilities for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The risk management and internal control systems within
the Group are designed to help the Group achieve key initiatives,
and represent the Group’s efforts in protecting its physical assets,
information and technology. As maintaining an effective control
system is a shared responsibility of all in the Group, the Group is
dedicated to educating all employees via trainings to ensure they
understand the importance of internal control policies and adhere to
them.

To facilitate effective internal control system, the Group adopted the
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by COSO (the “2013
Framework”). The presence of risk management and internal control
systems empowers the Group to implement best business practices
in dynamic and challenging business environments.

The Group implemented the ‘Three Lines of Defence’ model as a
way of explaining the relationship between functions and as a guide
to how responsibilities of risk management should be divided:

e Under the first line of defence, operational management
has ownership, responsibility and accountability for directly
assessing, controlling and mitigating risks;

e The second line of defence consists of activities covered by
components of internal governance (compliance, financial
controller, quality, IT and other control departments). This
line of defence monitors and facilitates the implementation
of effective risk management practices by operational
management and assists the risk owners in reporting adequate
risk related information up and down the organization; and
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

° Internal audit forms the Group’s third line of defence. The
Corporate Audit Section, through a risk-based approach to its
work, provides reasonable assurance to the Group’s board of
directors and senior management.

The Group takes proactive measures to identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks arising from its recurrent and growth
businesses and from the constantly changing business environment.
The Group uses risk management matrix to determine risk level.
Each risk is evaluated by the likelihood of the identified risk and the
consequence of the risk event. The risk ratings reflect the required
management attention and risk treatment effort. All risks are ranked
and their treatment is determined by a combination of likelihood and
consequence according to a risk matrix, which takes account of risk
appetite. Operation units and management held regular meetings to
review the progress of risk treatment actions and the effectiveness
of the risk management.

The board oversees the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis.

The Board reviewed and assessed twice a year the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems in audit
committee meetings for the year ended 31 December 2021,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions, by considering:

(@) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks, and
the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and
the external environment;

(b) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of
risks and of the internal control systems, and the work of its
internal audit function and independent auditor;

(c) the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring
results to the board which enables it to assess control of the
Group and the effectiveness of risk management;

(d) significant control failings or weaknesses that have been
identified during the period (if any). Also, the extent to which
they have resulted in unforeseen outcomes or contingencies
that have had, could have had, or may in the future have,
a material impact on the Group’s financial performance or
condition;

(e) the effectiveness of the Group’s processes for financial
reporting and Listing Rule compliance;

() the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training program and budget of the Groups’ accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions; and

(g) the proper handling and dissemination of inside information.

The Board also reviewed the Group’s operating and financial
performance against the financial budget on a quarterly basis while
senior management closely monitored the financial performance on
a monthly basis.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

The management is committed to improve the Group’s overall risk
management approach and strategy. They continuously monitors
the global business environment, industry development, as well
as internal processes, to ensure the existing risk management
and internal control systems can identify and manage risks and
opportunities effectively.

In 2021, the management reviewed the existing risk management
and internal control systems and certain modification of the system
have be implemented during the year under review. The Company
has engaged a consultant to tick off the assessment on Cyber
Security for vulnerability scanning and network infrastructure
penetration test. The management continues to review the adequacy
of its risk management and control framework and looks for
opportunities to make improvements and add appropriate resources
when necessary.

The Group has an independent Corporate Audit Section, reporting
directly to the Audit Committee. The Corporate Audit Section
provides an independent assessment of the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems in
accordance with the Code, and assists the Audit Committee
to conduct regular reviews of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, which include the review of the
effectiveness of financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions. The Corporate Audit Section follows
a risk-based approach. Different audit areas are assigned with
different risk ratings and an audit plan is formulated accordingly
so that priority and appropriate audit frequency is given to areas
with higher risks. The annual work plan is reviewed and endorsed
by the Audit Committee. The Corporate Audit Section conducts
regular financial and operational reviews on the Group and reports
directly to the Chairman of the Audit Committee regularly. The
Corporate Audit Section monitors the follow up actions agreed upon
in response to its recommendations.

The Corporate Audit Section updates CEO about the internal audit
working progress on a regular basis. The Audit Committee reviews
the work performed by Corporate Audit Section and summary of
major findings and control weaknesses, if any, at least twice every
year to ensure the effectiveness of internal audit function, risk
management and internal control system.

The Group has established and published a whistleblowing policy
and a system on anti-fraud for employees and third parties to raise
concerns in confidence, which complied with the recommended
best practice in the Code. In 2021, no incident of fraud or
misconduct was reported from employees or stakeholders that
had material effect on the Group’s financial statements and overall
operations.

The Board confirmed a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted and
considered that the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group in 2021 are effective and adequate and the Company
had complied with the Code Provisions.

The Board acknowledged the responsibility to review the effectiveness
of risk management and internal controls systems of the Group.
However, investors and shareholders are reminded that the systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change in the constitutional document of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTC

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Principal activities and geographical
analysis of operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 75.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of 1.0 HK cent
(approximately 0.10 US cent) for the year ended 31 December
2021 payable on Wednesday, 27 July 2022 to the Shareholders
whose names are on the register of members of the Company on
Wednesday, 13 July 2022.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to US$1,000 (2020: 4,000).

Share capital

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2021,
comprising share premium reserve of US$106,859,000 that is
subject to the regulation of Section 34 of the Cayman Islands
Companies Law and the Articles of Association of the Company, the
accumulated losses of US$102,563,000, totaling US$4,296,000 net
are available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders.

Equity linked agreements - Share options
granted to directors and employees

Details of the share options granted in prior years and current year
are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements and
“The Share Option Scheme” section contained in this Report of the
Directors. All the share options granted during the year are with
vesting conditions, there was no share issued for the year ended 31
December 2021 in respect of share options granted in 2021.
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Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Five-year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December is set out
on page 169.

Purchase, sale or redemption of Company’s
listed shares

Save in respect of the options granted and/or shares issued by the
Company pursuant to its share option scheme (the details of which
are disclosed below), there was no purchase, sale or redemption
of the Company’s listed shares by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Permitted indemnity provisions

At no time during the year and up to the date of this Annual Report
were there any permitted indemnity provisions in force for the
benefit of any of the Directors of the Company (whether made by
the Company or otherwise).

The Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2013 Share
Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting held on 28 May
2013. Details can be referred to in note 25(a) to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 155 to 159 of this Annual Report.

Valuation of share options

The Company uses Binomial Valuation Model to value the share
options granted. Details of the key parameters used in the
Model and the corresponding fair values of the share options
granted during the year should be referred to in note 25(a) to the
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consolidated financial statements. The details of the share options FEATHBERESFIBUOT :
granted to the respective parties during 2021 and 2020 are as
follows:
2021 2020
Number Number
(in thousand (in thousand
units) Value units) Value
g8 EE e BE
(AF Azt TER (AAFAzzt) TER
Leung Heung Ying REH 800 27 800 5
Sheu Wei Fu FHEX 800 27 800 5
Chan, Philip Ching Ho RES 800 27 - -
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond FEE 3,000 101 2,000 11
Subtotal for Directors EEY\y 5,400 182 3,600 21
Ex-director AEE - - 800 5
Senior management BREERE 3,500 122 3,000 23
Employees BT 14,500 507 - -
Total @i 7,400 49

23,400




REPORT OF THE DIR

Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 December 2021  #2021%F12 8318 ER2013E IRES 2= ¢
under the 2013 Share Option Scheme are as follows: ZERENFEBOT

Number of share options (in thousand units)

BRERR (OAFs)

*Share price
of the Company
immediately
before the
Exercise  exercise/grant
Lapsed/ price for the date of
Held on Grant Exercised forfeited Heldon options granted ~ share options
1 January during the during the during 31 December per share (Note)
Name of Directors 2021 year year the year 2021 HK$ HK$ Grant date Vesting period/date Exercise period
‘2RBhRE
i /BLaY
EREBRE 2HRRARE
20215 Eh £i £R H21E  BEZARE (M)
22 181855 BRH BE  BHEHME  12R31BKE BT B RHRH $ES9/8 i
Independent Non-executive
Directors
BUkNfES
Leung Heung Ying 800 - (800) - - 0.254 0.290/0.250 9 October 2018 9 October 2018 to 2 October 2019 to
228 2018F1089AR 5 June 2019 30 September 2021
185107952 0195107282
201956858 2021598308
800 - (800) - - 0.159 0.265/0.159 30 December 2019 30 December 2019 to 2 October 2020 to
2019512R308 20 May 2020 30 September 2022
1951283082 2020510728%
2020555208 2022598308
800 - (800) - - 0.201 0.820/0.190 30 October 2020 30 October 2020 to 1 November 2021 to
2019124308 27 May 2021 31 October 2023
202051083062 WNENRIRE
2021558278 20235108318
- 800 - - 800 0.840 NA/0.790 1 June 2021 1 June 2021 to 1 June 2022 to
021E6A18 31 May 2022 or the 2022 31 May 2024
annual general meeting 10F6R1AE
date, whichever is earlier 2024558318
200156A18%
20225583185
WNERTEFAE
BB NBREAE
2,400 800 (2,400) - 800
Sheu Wei Fu 800 - (800) - 0 0.254 0.840/0.250 9 October 2018 9 October 2018 to 2 October 2019 to
HEX 2018%10A98 5 June 2019 30 September 2021
01810A9EF 019510A28F
201946758 20214594308
800 - (800) - 0 0.159 0.840/0.159 30 December 2019 30 December 2019 to 2 October 2020 to
20195128308 20 May 2020 30 September 2022
219512A308% 200510A28%
2020555208 2022498308
800 - - - 800 0201 NA/0.190 30 October 2020 30 October 2020 to 1 November 2021 to
20205108308 27 May 2021 31 October 2023
2020E10A308% 01F1AIBE
2021458278 2023104318
- 800 - - 800 0.840 NA/0.790 1 June 2021 1June 2021 to 1 June 2022 to
02156R18 31 May 2022 or the 2022 31 May 2024
annual general meeting 0224565182
date, whichever is earlier 02455R318
2021568182
2022558318,
NNERFEERE
28 NBRERE
2,400 800 (1,600) - 1,600
Chan Philip Ching Ho - 800 - o 800 0.840 NA/0.790 1 June 2021 1 June 2021 to 1 June 2022 to
REE 02156R18 31 May 2022 or the 2022 31 May 2024
annual general meeting 2022565182
date, whichever is earlier 2004558318
021%56R18Z
20225583185
NWERFEFAE
B0 NBRERE
- 800 - - 800
Subtotal
gt 4,800 2,400 (4,000) - 3,200

ki The weighted average share closing price of the Shares immediately
before the date on whlch the ogtlons -were exerclse 0 el Iosln i




Number of share options (in thousand units)
BRERE (ATt

*Share price
of the Company
immediately
before the
Exercise  exercise/grant
Lapsed/ price for the date of
Held on Grant Exercised forfeited Heldon  options granted  share options
1 January during the during the during 31 December per share (Note)
Name of Directors 2021 year year the year 2021 HK$ 1%H}% Grant date Vesting period/date Exercise period
‘BEER
f/5HA8
SRBRE  28403RE
o021 % Em £h Eh noE  RHZORE (M) i
EZ1R 18185K5 BRI gl BHEEME  12BMBEE BT B RHRH $ES9/8 T8
Executive Directors
HiE
WangWah Chi, Raymond 3,000 - (3,000) - - 0.305 0.390/0.300 30 September 2016 30 September 2016 to 1 April 2019 to
5 2016595307 29 March 2019 31 March 2021
20165%)13;5% 201914%15%
201953829 02153831
2,000 - (2,000) - - 0.248 0.850/0.244 9 May 2019 9 May 2019 to 2 January 2020 to
201985897 14 December 2019 31 December 2021
201 9§5ﬂﬂ95% 2020? ﬂﬁ? E%
2019512714 202151231
2,000 - - - 2,000 0.201 NA/0.190 30 October 2020 30 October 2020 1 November 2020 to
2020510£308 20205104308 31 October 2022
2020#%1 1 ﬂﬂ1 Hg
2022510431
- 3,000 - - 3,000 0.840 NA/0.790 1 June 2021 1 June 2021 1 June 2022 to
202156518 202156818 31 May 2024
202056518%
2024558318
Subtotal
it 7,000 3,000 (5,000) - 5,000
Ex-directors
) 800 - (800) - - 0.254 0.930/0.250 9 October 2018 9 October 2018 to 2 October 2019 to
2018%10A9A 5 June 2019 30 September 2021
2018F10R9AE 195107282
20195658 20214594308
Subtotal
Nt - (800) - -
Senior management & 50 - - - 50 0.159 NA/0.159 30 December 2019 30 December 2019 to 2 January 2021 to
g; Eegﬁﬁﬁf& 2019512A308 29 December 2020 31 December 2022
[}
2019$gﬂ3ﬂoﬁg zozwgwﬂﬁzag
2020512329 2022512831
50 - - - 50 0.159 NA/0.159 30 December 2019 30 December 2019 to 2 January 2022 to
201912308 29 December 2021 31 December 2023
2019¢gﬂ3ﬂ0E§ zozzgwﬂﬁzag
2021512829 2023512731
1,000 - (1,000) - - 0.2454 0.835/0.221 17 July 2020 17 July 2020 to 19 July 2021 to
20057R178 16 July 2021 18 July 2023
Wil Wi
157 1
1,000 - - - 1,000 0.2454 NA/0.221 17 July 2020 17 July 2020 to 19 July 2022 to
2020578178 16 July 2022 18 July 2024
202057; ﬂﬂig 202257; ﬂ98 ja:
202257416 202457418
500 - (500) - - 0201 0.830/0.190 30 October 2020 30 October 2020 to 1 November 2021 to
20208104308 29 October 2021 31 Qctober 2023
2020&2}13;!3% 2021?1)1}%1 E%
2021510429 2023510831
500 - - (500) - 0201 NA/0.190 30 October 2020 30 October 2020 to 1 November 2022 to
2020810£308 29 October 2022 31 October 2024
B
1 4E10A31
- 7,200 - - 7,200 0.790 NA/0.770 8 December 2021 8 December 2021 to 8 June 2022 to
2021512888 7 June 2022 7 June 2024
e
7 4F6R7
- 10,800 - - 10,800 0.790 NA0.770 8 December 2021 8 December 2021 to 8 June 2023 to
2021%1288A 7 June 2023 6 June 2025
202145128882 20235658 %
22356A7R 200556858
Subtotal
et 3,100 18,000 (1,500) (500) 19,100
Total
Eh 15,700 23,400 (11,300) (500) 21,300
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The Group’s environmental policies and
performance

Other than financial performance, the Group believes that a high
standard of corporate social responsibility is essential for building
up a good corporate and social relationship and motivating staff and
creating a sustainable return to the Group. We are committed to
contributing to the sustainability of the environment and community
in which we conduct business and where our stakeholders live. The
Group’s Environmental, Social and Governance Report for 2021 will
be published separately and made available on the Company’s website
at www.solomon-systech.com and the website of the Stock Exchange at
www.hkexnews.com on or before 31 May 2022.

Relationships with employees

People are the Group’s most valuable asset. The Group believes
in communicating with staff and giving them training and career
development opportunities. It also recognizes good performance. It
provides a variety of activities for staff to help them achieve work-
life balance. Remuneration packages are generally structured with
reference to prevailing market terms and individual’s qualifications.
Salaries and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based
on performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and performance
related bonus. Share options may also be granted to eligible
employees of the Group.

Directors

Directors during the year and up to the date of this Annual Report
were:

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leung Heung Ying

Mr. Sheu Wei Fu

Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ma Yuchuan

Mr. Wang Hui (Appointed on 1 April 2021)

Dr. Kang Jian (Appointed on 3 November 2021)

Mr. Yu Jian (Resigned on 1 April 2021)

Dr. Li Jun (Resigned on 10 June 2021)

Ms. Ye Nan (Appointed on 10 June 2021,
2021)

Mr. Lo Wai Ming (Retired on 27 May 2021)

resigned on 3 November

Mr. Lo Wai Ming (“Mr. Lo”) retired as a Non-executive Director of
the Company at the last annual general meeting held on 27 May
2021. Mr. Lo decided to retire as a Director of the Company as he
would like to devote more time to his personal endeavours. Mr. Lo
confirmed that he has no disagreement with the Board and there is
no other matter in relation to his retirement that needs to be brought
to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

Executive Director
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond
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In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wong Wah Chi, Raymond, Mr. Ma Yuchuan and
Mr. Leung Heung Ying will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, Mr. Wong Wah Chi, Raymond, Mr. Ma
Yuchuan and Mr. Leung Heung Ying being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

Dr. Kang Jian was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 3 November 2021 and have entered
into a service contract with the Company with effect from 3
November 2021 until 30 June 2022. In accordance with Article 95
of the Company’s Articles of Association, Dr. Kang Jian appointed
as an addition to the Board effective from 3 November 2021, shall
hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting and being
eligible, offer himself for re-election.

Mr. Leung Heung Ying, Mr. Sheu Wei Fu and Dr. Chan Philip Ching
Ho are Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company and
their service contracts were renewed in 2021 for a term expiring on
30 June 2022.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, or its
subsidiaries, was a party and in which a Director of the Company or
an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 26 to 34 of this Annual Report.
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Directors’ interests

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV
of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies were as follows:

EEED

R2021F12A31H » FESRITBEARNAEL
ARERBELIE(EERESRBPEFA)NE
DR AR R PR B L W IESFOSEXVERSE
S2FHFEARNBAFEENELEMLE - RNE
RELTBRTAESETESFRZNEZESA
MERARARBIINWEZRABNOT :

% of the
issued share
capital of the

Ordinary shares in the Company as at
31 December 2021
R0 F12AN AXDALER

Share Company
Position Shares Options® Total EARDFE
BRERR iz EREo & BORAEAM
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
Mr. Leung Heung Ying DEFEE Long 3 2400000  800000() 3200000 0.13%
Mr. Sheu Wei Fu HERLE Long #& 1,600,000 1,600,000 (iii) 3,200,000 0.13%
Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho RESELT Long ## - 800,000 (iv) 800,000 0.03%
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Ma Yuchuan (Chairman) BEX%E (£F) Long s - - - -
Mr. Wang Hui TREE Long & - - - -
Dr. Kang Jian E8lEL Long - - - -
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond (CEO) TESRE (THEH) Long & 3,600,000 5,000,000 (v) 8,600,000 0.35%
Notes: BaF
(i)  Share options granted under the 2013 Share Option Scheme with more (i) ZZMHBRESRIE2013BRE 2 (#1585
details on pages 56 to 58. 567585 ) 1F H Z BB IR o

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

The 800,000 share options of the Company granted to Mr. Leung Heung
Ying on 1 June 2021 will be vested on 31 May 2022 or the 2022 annual
general meeting date, whichever is earlier and will be exercisable from 1
June 2022 to 31 May 2024, provided Mr. Leung Heung Ying remains a
member of the Board from the date of grant until the vesting date.

The 800,000 share options of the Company granted to Mr. Sheu Wei
Fu on 30 October 2020 have been vested and are exercisable from
1 November 2021 to 31 October 2023 and another 800,000 share
options of the Company granted to Mr. Sheu Wei Fu on 1 June 2021
will be vested on 31 May 2022 or the 2022 annual general meeting date,
whichever is earlier and will be exercisable from 1 June 2022 to 31 May
2024, provided that Mr. Sheu Wei Fu remains a member of the Board
from the date of grant until the vesting date.

The 800,000 share options of the Company granted to Dr. Chan Philip
Ching Ho on 1 June 2021 will be vested on 31 May 2022 or the 2022
annual general meeting date, whichever is earlier and will be exercisable
from 1 June 2022 to 31 May 2024, provided that Dr. Chan Philip Ching
Ho remains a member of the Board from the date of grant until the
vesting date.

The 2,000,000 share options of the Company granted to Mr. Wang
Wah Chi Raymond on 30 October 2020 have been vested and were
exercisable as at 31 December 2021 and another 3,000,000 share
options of the Company granted to Mr. Wang Wah Chi Raymond on 1
June 2021 have been vested and will be exercisable from 1 June 2022
to 31 May 2024.

(i) AKDXER2021F6HATABTFRERLAE
800,00017 f IR #E #8 R202245 531 A 52022
FRFAFASEA (UEEEBE)FE It
AZ B JR2022F6 51 H F20244F5H31 F171F
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(iv)

v)
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Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year, Directors
and Chief Executive Officer (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) had any interests in, or had been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares of the Company and
its associated corporation required to be disclosed pursuant to the
SFO.

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries or its associated corporation a party to
any arrangement to enable Directors and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
associated corporation.

Substantial shareholders’ interests

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at
31 December 2021, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company, being interests of 5% or
more of the Company’s issued share capital. These interests are in
addition to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Br EXPRIEESN  REREMAEE EER
THAR (BEREZEBARFREISEUT
NFL)BEFENERTFRITERIIBESFOA
FHREARBEAD T REABEEZ RO OE
fAIRER -

Br £ CPRIERSN  MEREMESHE - BEARR
A HNBARSHEE ZEAEMZHNE
h—F - BARAEERITHAR (BERS
CEBRFEREISRATHNFR)BAERAF
S H AR A B R R 0 AR AR 0 B AV (T
AEREKA -

FTERRER

RIESFOEXVILEIHAFENETERRE
SRR A2021F128310 » KATEE
AETIHNEERRNWEZ R AR (IREKLQT
ERITRAEESBHULER) - ZEEEE
ENHRENADNRESERITBEEER S -

Ordinary shares in the Company
as at 31 December 2021
R2021F12ANBRAALER

% of the

Number of issued share

Number of share options capital of the

Name of shareholder Capacity Position shares held held Total Company

RRE® a2t ERftR FERGHE FEBEREYE @i ARLAEE

BRORTEDN

Huada Semiconductor Co., Ltd Beneficial owner Long 706,066,000 - 706,066,000 28.33%
ER¥ERERAA BERERA R

China Electronics Corporation Interest of controlled corporation Long 706,066,000 - 706,066,000 28.33%
HEEFEREEEBERAA FrEslnEEnER i

Note: Yoz

(i)  CEC is a state-owned information technology conglomerate under the
administration of the central government of the People’s Republic of
China. Huada is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEC.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no other
persons (other than the Directors) were recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
as having interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases g

- the largest supplier —BRAMHERS

— five largest suppliers combined - A RHEREE
Sales HE

- the largest customer —-BRAREF

- five largest customers combined - AREFPEET

ESEHRE

TEHREBREF

FEEFEHEEREFERAEAFENRER
HEBMLOT :

30%
68%

36%
62%

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company,
their associates or any shareholder (who to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
any interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Discloseable transactions

Except as disclosed under the following heading “Related parties
and connected transactions”, the Company did not conduct any
transaction which constituted a discloseable transaction under the
Listing Rules during the year.

Related parties and connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered
into certain transactions with related parties as defined under
the applicable accounting standards, which include transactions
that constitute connected/continuing connected transactions for
which the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules have
been complied with. Details of the related parties transactions
are disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
The following transactions between certain connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered into
and/or are ongoing for which relevant announcements, if necessary,
had been made by the Company in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Connected transactions

HES, an indirect subsidiary of CEC, entered into a licence
agreement with each of Solomon Systech (China) Limited and
Solomon Systech (Shenzhen) Limited (wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company) respectively on 29 October 2021 in connection with
the grant of licenses to the Group on the installation and execution
of certain Electronic Design Automation (EDA) tools for internal use
and development of the Group’s own products for a two years’
term from 30 October 2021 to 29 October 2023. The consideration
payable by the Group to HES amounted to CNY4,000,200,
among which, CNY2,000,100 was paid by 30 November 2021 and
CNY2,000,100 shall be payable by 30 November 2022. For further
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29
October 2021.
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Continuing connected transactions

On 22 October 2020, the Group entered into an agreement with
CEACI, an indirect subsidiary of CEC, under which CEACI would act
as a non-exclusive authorized distributor of the Group in Mainland
China and Hong Kong, and purchase IC and driver products from
the Group for the years 2021 to 2023 (“Sales to CEACI). The prices
for the products under the Sales to CEACI shall be determined
fairly in accordance with the costs, resources and technology
requirements with reference to market practices and prices and
having taken into account the technology and quality of the relevant
products. Such agreement was approved by the independent
shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 4
December 2020.

On 23 March 2021, the Company and CEACI entered into a
supplemental agreement to revise the annual caps in respect of
the Sales to CEACI as set out in the abovementioned agreement.
The supplemental agreement was approved by the independent
shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 27 May
2021.

For further details of the continuing connected transaction on the
Sales to CEACI, please refer to the circulars of the Company dated
12 November 2020 and 21 April 2021, respectively.

The actual transaction amount for the year ended 31 December
2021 in respect of the above continuing connected transactions on
the Sales to CEACI was set out:

BEBERS

FA2020F 10822 » R & B EECECHY [ £ [t
B A BICEACIFT M %% » 51t » CEACI# K A
AEBRPEARNMREBNEBREEDH
B WHR2021F 22023 F R ANEBEREBICK R
Eh22E B ([BMCEACIEE ]) - BICEACISEE 2
ERNERERBERE - EREEMESR > 2
BHHEEGARER  WZEEEERNRMR
MEMAFLEE - BEEHZECS R2020F1284
HETZRRENARE LEBIREHAE -

M2021F3H23H  AA R ECEACIF] L %
W& MERT LB i T B BB M CEACISE & 2
FELR -#xHEER2021FE5827H £17
ZREEBARES LEB T REHE -

EHBCEACHHECE L ERER G Z2FHE
F2HEAA T BE AE20205F11 8128 k2021
F4A21B ZBER °

LFHEEFCEACIZFERER S NE £2021
F12A31BHELEENEBRRZSEUNT :

Actual

Annual Cap transaction

for the year amount for

ended the year ended

31 December 31 December

2021 2021

B22021F 220215

12831801t 128318k

FENFE EENER

tREeHE Pk

US$’000 US$’000

Nature of Transactions XHMHE TEn TERn
Sales to CEACI $EFCEACI 70,000 60,166

The aforesaid connected transactions and continuing connected
transaction have been reviewed by independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The independent non-executive directors
confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected transaction was
entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole, and (d)
the relevant transactions conducted in the year ended 31 December
2021 were within the annual cap.

Solomon Systech (International) Limited e Annual Report 2021
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The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company, together
with the Group’s Corporate Audit Section and Audit Committee, have
conducted annual reviews of the continuing connected transaction of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021, and were satisfied
that the Group’s continuing connected transaction during 2021 have
complied with the Listing Rules requirement in all respects.

The Company’s independent auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised)“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued an unmodified letter containing findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transaction disclosed for
the year ended 31 December 2021 in accordance with paragraph
14A.56 of the Listing Rules, and confirm that nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that the continuing
connected transactions:

(i) bhave not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

(iii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there
is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as at 23 March 2022.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has complied
with all the applicable Code Provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules effective for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (“Appendix 14”). To maintain high
standards of corporate governance, the Company has adopted the
recommended best practices in Appendix 14 where appropriate.
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Compliance with the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers

The Company has its own written guidelines on securities
transactions by Directors and relevant employees on no less
exacting terms than the required standard set out in the Model Code
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has
been made to all Directors, and all Directors have confirmed that
they have been in compliance with such guidelines during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Compliance with laws and regulations

To the best knowledge of the Directors, for the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group has complied, in all material respects,
with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact
on the operations of the Group.

Business review and outlook

The business review and outlook disclosure of the Group for the
year as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of Hong Kong) are set out on pages 11 to 25 of this Annual
Report. The business review forms part of this Report of the
Directors.

Independent auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been audited by Ernst & Young who retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Ma Yuchuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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To the shareholders of Solomon Systech (International) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Solomon Systech (International) Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 168, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

8 3L % BT

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group had inventories with carrying amount of US$40.9
million as at 31 December 2021. The Group performs regular
review of the carrying amounts of inventories to determine
if any write-down of inventories to net realisable value is
required after considering the aged analyses of inventories,
relevant historical sales, usage reports and obsolescence.

The determination of net realisable value requires
management to make significant judgements and estimates
based on expectation about future market conditions.

The related disclosures of estimation uncertainty and balance
of inventory provision are included in notes 4 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

We evaluated management’s assessment of
whether the estimated net realisable values of
inventories declined below their carrying amounts.
Our procedures included understanding and
assessing the Group’s processes over identifying
and valuing obsolete, damaged, slow-moving,
excessive and other potentially impaired inventory
items for which their net realisable values might
decline below their carrying amounts; evaluating
the methodologies, inputs and assumptions used
by the Group in determining the net realisable
values of inventories; and assessing the write-down
of inventories required by testing the aged analyses
of inventories, sales made and materials used
subsequent to the end of the reporting period and
historical sales and usage reports.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Wong Yat Kin.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27th Floor, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

23 March 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12H31H1FEE
2021 2020
Notes US$°000 USs$’000
MiEE FEr EP
Revenue HERE 5 168,120 121,261
Cost of sales $HE R (100,868) (85,416)
Gross profit EF 67,252 35,845
Research and development costs T 22 I BA 3% B AR (30,421) (16,876)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEBAX (2,960) (2,476)
Administrative expenses THEX (11,213) (11,103)
Other expenses HipIx 8 (476) -
Other income and gains - net Hing AR Ui - F58 7 1,209 6,197
23,391 11,587
Finance income - net REWA - F8 9 220 83
23,611 11,670
Share of profits of associates FEAL B A B & A 18 166 208
Profit before tax RR B4 A& R 6 23,777 11,878
Income tax expense FrsFimx 12 (48) (198)
Profit for the year REEZER 23,729 11,680
Attributable to: FEAL -
- Owners of the parent - RAREEA 23,782 11,715
- Non-controlling interests - FERER (53) (85)
23,729 11,680
Earnings per share attributable to KRAREBESEFEA
ordinary equity holders of the parent: BENERER :
(expressed in US cent(s) per share) (A=A ERZ5) 13
- Basic - B 1.0 0.5
— Diluted - 58 1.0 0.5

The notes on pages 82 to 168 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

B E20215 12631 1L FE
2021 2020
US$’000 US$’000
FTER E
Profit for the year REEREF 23,729 11,680
Other comprehensive income Hth 2 EUWA
Other comprehensive income that may be REZREE Hit2M|E
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent WABEFPEE
periods: BmK
- Exchange differences arising on -BREBNERREE
translation of foreign operations ZEHER 1,417 378
Other comprehensive income that will not be  RE®ERE  Ha2EBA
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BrEEF s EEERER
periods:
- Equity investment designated at fair value - ZAFEEFAHMEZE
through other comprehensive income: WHENBIERERF
Changes in fair value BEEEE 136 -
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMEEHRA 1,553 378
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZHEHBALE 25,282 12,058
Attributable to: PG -
- Owners of the parent - KABEBA 25,335 12,097
- Non-controlling interests - FERER (53) (39)
25,282 12,058

The notes on pages 82 to 168 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PO
e B AR

As at 31 December 2021

R20216E12H31A
2021 2020
Notes US$°000 USs$’000
MiEE FEr EP
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Intangible assets B ERE 15 505 1,022
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERSEE 16 4,269 3,722
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17(a) 2,315 839
Investments in associates REE QTR E 18 1,082 916
Equity investment designated at fair BRAFEEA
value through other comprehensive Hitt 2 ERE
income BRERE 20 1,065 929
Other receivables, prepayments and HEWFR » FERR
deposits RET & 23 9,087 22
Total non-current assets FREBEELG 18,323 7,450
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories & 22 40,866 16,428
Trade and other receivables, FEUWR R EAth FE LK
prepayments and deposits EARKE £ 23 38,967 19,402
Pledged bank deposits 2IRHIRITER 21 17,000 130
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESEEY 21 24,757 50,827
Total current assets RBEEHS 121,590 86,787
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade and other payables R R EMEATR 28 50,149 29,341
Interest-bearing bank borrowings RITETEER 29 - 181
Lease liabilities HEsRE 17(b) 1,139 762
Deferred income AL PN 3 94
Tax payable ARE N 342 302
Total current liabilities ABEEER 51,633 30,680
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBREFE 69,957 56,107
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRE
LIABILITIES =L 88,280 63,557
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings RITFTEER 29 181 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 17(b) 1,392 125
Total non-current liabilities ERBEBHEFT 1,573 125
Net assets EEFE 86,707 63,432
continued/...
— D - VA
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As at 31 December 2021

2021612831 A
2021 2020
Notes US$’000 US$’000
M FEn EP
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the  Z&RATHEE AEWL
parent s
Issued capital SETRA 24 32,123 31,977
Reserves #E 26 54,640 31,458
86,763 63,435
Non-controlling interests IEERER (56) (3)
Total equity A RE RS 86,707 63,432

The notes on pages 82 to 168 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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On behalf of the Board
REREES

WANG Wah Chi, Raymond
FEX
Chief Executive Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES INE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE20214F12531 AL FE
Attributable to owners of the parent
KRAREARE
Equity
compensation Non-
Issued Share Merger  Exchange reserve  Fair value Other - Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve resenve  RAEE reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
Be  RBRE  AKEE  ENEE  HNER LTEHE  RMBE  EMEE  SHEY  FERER #Es
Notes USs000 US$000 US§000 US§000 Us§000 Us§000 Us§000 Us§000 Us§000 Us§000 US§000
it tin tin tin i1 in Tin Ti Ti1 Ti1 Tin i
At 1 January 2020 H0E1A 1A 31,967 83,489 2,082 3 17,751 187 20 (85,072 51,213 3 51,309
Proftfor the year Enidl - - - - - - - 11,745 11,745 %) 11,680
Other comprehensive income ERghREMA:
for the year:
-Exchange diferences arisngon - AEEPEREEE
translation of foreign operations EREE - - - 2 - - - - 32 0] 378
Total comprehensive incomef(loss) 2B A/ (§8) &3t - - - 3 - - - 11,715 12007 B9 1205
Equity-settled share option RAE&EH
arangements 2 - - - - 50 - - - 50 - 50
Issue of shares upon exercise of  TEREARTRR
share options U 10 I - - 0) - - - 15 - 15
At 31 December 2020 and HONE1ENAR
at 1 January 2021 A1E1R1A 391 83,500 2,08 o 17,7% 187 20 (73,357) 63,435 ) 63,432
Proftfor the year Enigl - - - - - - - 23782 2378 B B
Other comprehensive income ERAfREYA:
for the year:
-Changes infairvalue of equity - RATEREFALM
investment of air value through 2EYERERED
other comprehensive income TEZS - - - - - 136 - - 13 - 13
- Exchange differences arisingon - BESHEREEE
translation of foreign operations EREE - - - 1417 - - - - 1417 - 1417
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2EHA/ (B &3t - - - 1417 - 136 - 2,782 25,33 (59) 228
2000 Finel diiden pid NNEFBEE - - - - . ; ) - s
Equity-settled share option RAEEEH
amangements 2% - - - - 204 - - - 24 - 24
Issue of sharss upon exercise o TEREARARA
share options U 146 315 - - (102) - - - 359 - 359
A 31 Decenber 211 AR 1 N A S (N S 1 N R 1

The notes on pages 82 to 168 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of US$54,640,000 (2020: US$31,458,000) in

consolidated statement of financial position.

* BEREEESS 54,640,000 T (2020 : 31,458,000E 7T) NGRS ISR TR ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

| IDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B E2021% 125310 1L F
2021 2020
Notes US$’000 US$’000
MisE FEx FEx
Cash flows from operating activities RETBHHERE
Profit before tax BRF AR R 23,777 11,878
Adjustments for: RS
Finance costs I B B AR 9 58 97
Share of profits of associates FE{L B & A RDER 18 (166) (208)
Interest income B U A 9 (278) (180)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEVE BENRREN
plant and equipment Uk & 7 (3) (677)
Reversal of provision for obselete or BEFRFHTFTERR
slow moving inventories, net FE 6 (1,152) (818)
Depreciation of property, plant and M HBREE
equipment i 6 1,074 1,291
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 6 1,251 1,382
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEN 6 517 490
Equity-settled share option expense P& 75 RE 55 3R A 6 204 50
COVID-19-related rent concession from 2019 B RmSHEBREE
lessors R 17b (1) (281)
25,281 13,524
(Increase)/decrease in inventories BEE@Em D (23,286) 10,681
(Increase)/decrease in trade and FE WK R L A R WK
other receivables, prepayments and BARKRITE
deposits (#&gm) ,Ed (28,630) 4,064
Increase in trade and other payables AR E A TR
byl 20,717 5,981
Cash (used in)/generated from KeE(FER) BE
operations IS (5,918) 34,250
Overseas income tax paid MBI FBR (8) (14)
Interest paid AR E (58) (97)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RESEE (ER) EEW
operating activities RE&FHE (5,984) 34,139
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZEHERE
Purchases of items of property, plantand BEY¥% - KE
equipment REE 16 (1,533) (1,146)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant H &) - #38
and equipment REE - 838
Interest received 2R E 278 180
Net cash used in investing activities RETBHERANESEHE (1,255) (128)




For the year ended 31 December 2021

B E2021% 125310 1L F
2021 2020
Notes US$’000 US$’000
MIEE FEx FEx
Cash flows from financing activities METHEESRE
Increase in pledged bank deposits EMEKFHRTER (16,870) -
Dividend paid % EUR 3% (2,570) -
Proceeds from issue of shares upon BREEBITERER
exercise of share options 24 359 16
Principal portion of lease payments HEMRHNES G 32(b) (1,096) (1,254)
Drawdowns of bank borrowings T EIRITE R 32(b) 913 -
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITER 32(b) (913) -
Net cash used in financing activities RETEFERARESFE (20,177) (1,238)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRBSEEBYF
and cash equivalents CRL2) /18 (27,416) 32,773
Cash and cash equivalents FNRERES
at beginning of year ZEY 50,827 18,078
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EXRE8) o2& FH 1,346 (24)
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRES
at end of year £EY 24,757 50,827
Analysis of balance of cash and cash ReRReEEYNEER
equivalents DA
- Bank balances and cash -BITEBRES 24,757 50,827

The notes on pages 82 to 168 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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General information

Solomon Systech (International) Limited and its subsidiaries are
fabless semiconductor companies specializing in the design,
development and sales of integrated circuits (“IC”) products
and system solutions that enable a wide range of display
applications for smartphones, tablets, smart TVs/monitors,
notebooks and other smart devices, including electronic shelf-
labels (ESLs), wearables, healthcare devices, smart home
devices, as well as industrial appliances etc.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21
November 2003 as an exempted company with limited liability
under Cap. 22, the Cayman Islands Companies Law (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised). The address of its
registered office is 2/F., Century Yard, Cricket Square, P.O.
Box 902, Grand Cayman, KY1-1103, Cayman Islands and the
address of its principal office in Hong Kong is Unit 607-613,
6/F Wireless Centre, 3 Science Park East Avenue, Hong Kong
Science Park, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong (with effect
from 28 May 2021).

The Company has been listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 8 April 2004.

Information about subsidiaries

Please refer to note 19 to the financial statements for the
particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for certain financial
assets which have been measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in US dollars
(“US$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
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2. TEFFBORBE ()

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 FEEE (F)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

2. TEFFBORBE (F)

2.1

2.2
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Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

BB BRELERFEN - BRI FHERIFEI955 T
BRMBHREERETR E‘iﬁﬁ?fﬁ%&%&ﬁﬂ
45 - BARAVBRELEAF 165

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

ERE - FoAER

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June

2021 (early adopted)

BB BREERFE1655 285

(AT ERAN)

202146530 H # £2201973 i1 15 2 %5 5 BF HY # £ 8t %

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of
the Amendment to HKFRS 16, the adoption of the above
revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on
these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATWENTS
SANBREWE

2. TEFFBORBE ()

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures 22 B BREREEZ2E (F)

(continued)
Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends
the availability of the practical expedient for lessees
to elect not to apply lease modification accounting
for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic by 12 months (the “2021
Amendment”). Accordingly, the practical expedient
applies to rent concessions for which any reduction in
lease payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2022, provided the other conditions for
applying the practical expedient are met. The amendment
is effective retrospectively for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2021 with any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendment recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning
of the current accounting period. Earlier application is
permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January
2021 and applied the practical expedient during the year
ended 31 December 2021 to all rent concession granted
by the lessor that affected only payment originally due
on or before 30 June 2022 as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic. A reduction in the lease
payment arising from the rent concession of US$1,000
has been accounted for as a variable lease payment by
derecognising part of the lease liabilities and crediting to
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2021. There
was no impact on the opening balance of equity as at 1
January 2021.
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2. Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. TEFFBORBE (F)

23 EHEMEERERNEBRUBRE
%A

FEESEAPBRRDEATICE
FEAE ) R AE BB HT T R ARMERT BB
PR R o

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BARAMEREEREIN 2185]

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)

EBMBRELELF10ERE B ER
5$2855(2011) 2185

HKFRS 17
BBMBRELRETH

Amendments to HKFRS 17
BRMEREERE17IRE 2185

Amendment to HKFRS 17

BRMBERE LR FE17HRZER]

Amendments to HKAS 1
BERETERNE 15218

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

BB ENF IR REFBYHRE
LB AE2

Amendments to HKAS 8
ERETERESIR 2 1EF]

Amendments to HKAS 12
EREETERE1257 2185
Amendments to HKAS 16
BEETERE 1657 28R

Amendments to HKAS 37
BERETHEREITH 28T

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

2018%F E20204F H9F Z A #

Reference to the Conceptual Framework’

HIBE AL A 1A

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture?®

REZHRABELESETFE B EELEXTE

Insurance Contracts?

RBEE

Insurance Contracts®®
REEE A% 5

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 -
Comparative information®

WX E B IREERFE 179 R & BT IREER
B B A

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current? *

BENDE - REBHIRE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

= e d

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

HEF 1G5 A ER?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction?

E-XGHELHEEREEIHFELRE

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use'’
WE - BEREZ R - K IEHE F2FH s E

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract'

BRIt EH — BITEAIHI A

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41°

BRMEREERFE1R - 25 - E16TMHAMFR
BB ETHERFE4R 2B
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 23 CHEMEMARERNERVERS

Reporting Standards (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023

8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but
available for adoption

4 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1,
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

s As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17
issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to
extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers
to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023

6 The HKICPA amends HKFRS 17 in February 2022
to permit a classification overlay for financial assets
presented in comparative periods on initial application
of HKFRS 17

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3
an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to
refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies
that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would
be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if
they were incurred separately rather than assumed in
a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3
should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively
instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify
for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on
or after the date of first application, the Group will not be
affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

A8 (4)
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS
10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream
transaction when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and
a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting
period if it complies with those conditions at that
date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify
the situations that are considered a settlement of a
liability. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM‘E__NI_S_
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2. Summary of significant accounting 2. TESTHHEME (B)

policies (continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 23 CHEMEMARERNERVERS
Reporting Standards (continued) 28| (&)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies BESTHEREIRZBIBHEE
require entities to disclose their material accounting ZHEEEREBFREEESHBESE
policy information rather than their significant accounting B (MIEFEREFTHE) - WiigBREZ
policies. Accounting policy information is material if, S BHRGERHERVBERRITES
when considered together with other information included ZHMER—HERE > AUESEHE
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be SHEEH - RENTBBRRZEE
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of FERERBZEVMBRRMIERE
general purpose financial statements make on the basis EEFE AEBEZE8BEEER
of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS BE - FERMEREENEHEHRAE
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance BT A NMAEASHBEREE
on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting ZEEMHSRMFERFIMEIES B
policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective BE T E RIS 155 2 15 5] 202341
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January B1ER 2 BRB 2 FERBER
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the I AFIRAER - AREBVBRE
guidance provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice ERERHAE29R 2 ST FriRfit =
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these ESIBIEHME  MBERZSB
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently ETEMBH - XEB B AT EFTEZ
assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group’s EBITHAEEETRREEZY
accounting policy disclosures. o
Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between BB ERIESR BT B EEEE
changes in accounting estimates and changes in BT R EHEHBREECR
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined Do B EHNDAEAVBHBERPA
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are B ETHREM2EK S5 - Z2Z1E
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments A AEEERBNAANABFERLR
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques and BWABENSEETHEE - ZEBITR
inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments 2023F1A1HB 2B 2 FER
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or HHBEN  WERARZRERR
after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting R ARE BT BREERER
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur BB ERATIRAER - BHZE
on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is BT EHAEE M ERREEETMT
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any BERFE-

significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the BERETERFE12RE 2B B NNS
initial recognition exception so that it no longer applies BRHBREASHE  REZRET
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and BERNESERN TR ZEEEE A
deductible temporary differences, such as leases and BEREZHEo2EHERZR S > flan
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are HERREZBZENXS - Bitt
required to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred ERANZERFELECENEHEE
tax liability for temporary differences arising from these R-BEEHRBEER —BELERIE
transactions. The amendments are effective for annual B1E - ZEBFTN2023F1A1H
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 ZERRCEFERSHEEN - L
and shall be applied to transactions related to leases BERARMEY &R BB RE
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the ZHEREERBERS H MEMRE
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative FEDNBRIABERE G 2 B4R
effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance SN HAERANER 2 ER B SR
of retained profits or other component of equity as AR o A ZEBFARRSEER
appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall REEREEEKEUIIZRS » AR
be applied prospectively to transactions other than leases FFIRATEER ©

and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is

permitted.
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' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BB RMEE

2. Summary of significant accounting 2. TESHHEME (8)

policies (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 23 CHEMEMARERNERVBERSE
Reporting Standards (continued) ZEH (#])
The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and AEBEHRADSERS R BXE
did not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax MEER S c YR EREERELERE
liability for temporary differences for transactions related EERELEHESE RYLEAZ
to leases. Upon initial application of these amendments, LR AEESNFERAEEER
the Group will recognise a deferred tax asset and a HEAGEZHBUNHEREERE
deferred tax liability for deductible and taxable temporary RN EARR -EELESEEE
differences associated with right-of-use assets and lease R—BEZEREEE  XAMEINZ
liabilities, and recognise the cumulative effect of initially ERLRABMRGEENSEAZE
applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening B2 RBTERIARERE EFE
balance of retained profits at the beginning of the earliest ViEsh A - BHZESEITTEY
comparative period presented. The amendments are not FEEVMEBRREETMNEATE -

expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting BERENEREICRE 2B EILE
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment BRWE - BMERSZEKAS - KR
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing CEEEIEEBHEEZUFEAMRE
that asset to the location and condition necessary for (BENERGY) BRPELEZ2ZE
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by HEMB -k BRAZSHEEM
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds EBEBZERENRZEEAZ
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, RRANE A3 o ZEEF] B20225F1
in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual B1ER 2 EARB 2 FEBER
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be WEHEREAEABREBIT MK
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and BRI REHERRRRZED
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning MER Y BERRZBEBEH
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements FERKARAER - FHHZEBET
in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier FEHAEENERREEFRMEKX
application is permitted. The amendments are not &

expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of BRAETTEAEI7THR 2B EE B
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, RIBEBEHERNFEITETIHEEOR
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that BEEEMEMS  BTEHNZERAE
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to FHENEERBEZRAR - HEHEYE
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling BEHEBcRAERERETZENZES
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an RA(PlnEELE I RME) REE
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that TENEEZEHEBEZEMREDE (5
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge MABEITENMAYE  BERRK
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in BEAZITERIUREGNEEEE
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and BHEA) - —MEITHRERESHOL
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do EEHEBRASEREN  BRIESH
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless HEEOHFHIKE  BIBRIGR - 2%
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the &3] B2022F1A1E R 2 & ME 2
contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods FEMBEN WEARERBEER
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied EREBEIT 2 FERSHEMGE
to contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its MABITEEREET 2GR AR
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period RIFER o ¥) 0 FERMERT R £ 2121
in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier application ERTERROSER B BRERAH
is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the ERAE  BEABILHBER -
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the FEHZEBIT AT EHAEETERE
opening equity at the date of initial application without EXERNERZE -

restating the comparative information. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether the
terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid
or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower
or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the
amendment to financial liabilities that are modified
or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not
expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in Illustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives
when applying HKFRS 16. The amendment is not
expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. TEFFBORBE (F)

24 EREFBEME

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring
into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments
in associates.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
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Investments in associates (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired set of activities
and assets include an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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(continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investment and certain
financial assets at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset and liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEBE (&)
Impairment of non-financial assets FeREERE
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual HEFRBETREERE  RAREE
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than GELEBIEEERIN) ETFERE
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable B AEgATtEENTRESEE -
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is EENTHRESHEZREESIREESE
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value BUNEAEERENFEREERA
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is (URSERE)FE  LRENEE
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does MEE  BRIFEREELFELEER
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent AREELBYREMEEREEAR
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which HIRESRA  EHBERT » HIERHZ
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash- EEfMBREESELENEETWRES
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing Heo-mlRREELEENHNRERR
a cash-generating unit for impairment. a portion of the B FRACEREH BN EE
carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters ERTEEEE (MBI KE) W
building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit ’\EEEEE’J BRT  ZBOREES
if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis PTHMEBINESEEEN > SIS
or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating ﬁﬁﬂé%’]‘ﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂiﬁ&%ﬁﬁ
units.
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying REEEEREEREEBBETI
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In B e FER T UER - REERER
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are B AT RIRBERER TR R
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount TMEHEBREENTEREERSTE
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time ERBATEIR R R ZEHIRE o
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An BEEEBREESHBENEBE AT
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or BEEENE—BNWHEER PR -
loss in the period in which it arises.
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting REREHR > SFERS ﬁﬁcﬂﬂ)]’
period as to whether there is an indication that previously ?REE/T\?EHIJEE LB R {E 5 18 T B
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or BEERTESERD - 1IJ]T?-7E::ZE'J]‘
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the & AlgmstauliE e85 - LAIME
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised ERANBEESE ERAREEZ
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed BEEMNTRE £ 8B GEHHE 2 EF 5L
only if there has been a change in the estimates used o BRESEFESSNREZBE
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but FENERZEERABERBEM
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that EEENREE GIREMITE, &
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/ ) - BREMBEEBEEREEEH™
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for PNt

the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.

.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iiiy the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2. TEFFBORBE (F)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:
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Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Patents and intellectual property

Purchased patents and intellectual property are stated at
cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of no
more than eight years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2. TEFFBORBE (F)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETTHEBRE (F)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Leased properties 2 to 3 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-
value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2. Summary of significant accounting 2. TESHHEME (8)

policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETTHEBRE (F)
Leases (continued) HE (&)
Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of HEEMBENERE,»EHRER
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted BEEHAARE  AEEIALER
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, EoMAKEEAEBEA  KEHEE
rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the THEMSHESZARUEGETAE
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over #® o

the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets RERHEMEMEE

Initial recognition and measurement WA ERRTE

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as SREENVEBRREIBAHEZU
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value BERAE  ROFEFAHME
through other comprehensive income, and fair value HRERZRAFEFABR -

through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition TREERDRER NS EEURR
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow TREENSNESREFE UK
characteristics and the Group’s business model for TEBEESHEEMERES - KR
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables TEEEARBMEDRDNE S EIKFRIE
that do not contain a significant financing component or RAKECERABERAREAREDS
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient DHENATRELEEN  AEE
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing BREAAFENRZRA (NE@MEE
component, the Group initially measures a financial WIHIEAFETTABR) DRTES
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial MEE -TEBREEAREIOINES
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction EWRERAEECREEATTE
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant BAEZE  ARBTXEBMBERS
financing component or for which the Group has applied ZAIEISFETNEER I FTEBURE
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction EMRXGERKITTE -

price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and AFeRmEERBERASRATE
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other FAHMEZEAKZESERE 2@
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows EEBAELEEBEAINERERE X
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) EERSHFAE (TSPPI)HWERER
on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with 2 - HERBWFSPPINEREED
cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured EARAFEFAERTE MW
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the EBER o

business model.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as finance income in the statement of profit
or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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2. TEFFBORBE ()

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income and debt instruments which are held for trading.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as finance income in the statement of profit
or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if
the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or
loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative
is required to be classified in its entirety as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss.
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2. Summary of significant accounting 2.
policies (continued)

24 BREFTHEHE (H)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2. TEFFBORBE (F)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

24 ERETHHREBE (H)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 EXETHEME (F)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2. TEFFBORBE (F)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

24 ERETHHREBE (H)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount
of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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2. TEETHERMUE (&)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

24 BEREFHEHE (H)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials and
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2. TEFFBORBE (F)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEBE (&)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future periods in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group
with a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(a) Sale of proprietary integrated circuits products

Revenue from the sale of proprietary integrated
circuits products is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the proprietary
integrated circuits products. Some contracts for the
sale of proprietary integrated circuits products provide
customers volume rebates. The volume rebates give
rise to variable consideration.

(i) Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided
to certain customers once the quantity of
products purchased during the period exceeds a
threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are
offset against amounts payable by the customer.
To estimate the variable consideration for the
expected future rebates, the most likely amount
method is used for contracts with a single-volume
threshold and the expected value method for
contracts with more than one volume threshold.
The selected method that best predicts the
amount of variable consideration is primarily
driven by the number of volume thresholds
contained in the contract. The requirements on
constraining estimates of variable consideration
are applied and a refund liability for the expected
future rebates is recognised.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is

probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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2. TEFFBORBE (F)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

24 ERETHHREBE (H)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund
some or all of the consideration received (or receivable)
from the customer and is measured at the amount the
Group ultimately expects it will have to return to the
customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction
price) at the end of each reporting period.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
with grant after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model, further details of which are given
in note 25 to the financial statements.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially
at fair value at the grant date taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the instruments were granted
(note 25). The fair value is expensed over the period until
the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding
liability. The cumulative expense recognised for cash-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of awards that will ultimately vest. The
liability is measured at the end of each reporting period up
to and including the settlement date, with changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China and overseas are required to participate
in a central retirement benefit scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central retirement benefit scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central retirement benefit scheme.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employers’ existing level of
contributions can be reduced by contributions forfeited by
the employers on behalf of those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Forfeited
contributions totalling US$20,000 (2020: US$13,000)
were utilized during the year ended 31 December 2021 to
reduce contributions and US$19,000 forfeited contribution
was available as at 31 December 2021 (2020: US$12,000)
to reduce future years’ contributions.

Under the central retirement benefit scheme to which the
Group’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland China and
overseas are required to make contribution, no forfeited
contributions will be used by the employers to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in US$, which
is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
with the exception of monetary items that are designated
as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment
of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other
comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed
of, at which time the cumulative amount is reclassified to
the statement of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits
attributable to exchange differences on those monetary
items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than US$. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into US$ at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into US$ at the exchange
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into US$ at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into US$ at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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3. Financial risk management and fair value
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments

3.1 Financial risk factors

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2021, the Group is exposed to fair
value or cash flow interest rate risk in relation to the
interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group with either
fixed or floating interest rates. The Group currently does
not have any interest rate hedging policy. However,
management will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures primarily arise from revenue and other income
generated, and cost and expenses incurred by operating
units in currencies other than the Group’s operating units’
functional currencies. For the Group’s operating units’
that have the Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) as their functional
currency, their foreign currency transactions during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, and the units’
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies as at the end of the reporting period were
mainly denominated in US$. As the Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$”) is pegged to the US$ within a narrow band, the
Group does not expect any significant movements in
the US$/HK$ exchange rate. Accordingly, management
considers that the Group’s foreign currency risk exposure
for HK$ is not significant.
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3. Financial risk management and fair value 3. B AFERR
and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

3.1 BIEMEE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2021

FERR

FEEERERIRFEIENE=
FETRS - RBASENBUR - Fi
BHRREERTETRZNEFLA
BRAFERBRFE E—H’Ea It
o REBSRHEERBRRAEER
3’3{%& HFrE 5 ,EEJ—LI?EEEIT\

REBBRREFADH

TRERNTEREAEBEEREN
FREENGXRERARRKO - ZE
ERFXFEENBENTBEE (R
FEMEEEETHENRANE
H) 0 UREBZE12A31BNFEL D H
é}ﬁ c S EAETRHEENIREA
EO

#2021%F12H31H

12-month
ECLs
12184 Lifetime ECLs
BHEEFE ERABHEEFE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1RR B #ImEr W EE @t
US$’000 US$°000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT
Trade receivables* e - - - 24,332 24,332
Financial assets included in ~ FT& Rk EMEKZRA
deposits and other receivables MEFEE
- Normal* —[EE 13,612 - - - 13,612
Pledged bank deposits SEANRITER
- Not yet past due - RiBH 17,000 - - - 17,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY
- Not yet past due - KRB 24,757 - - - 24,757
55,369 - - 24,332 79,701
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MERKBER AFTERA
FEERH (F)

3. Financial risk management and fair value 3.
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.1 MEBEBRREE(F)
FERRE (&)
REEERFADH (B)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2020 M2020F12H31H

12-month
ECLs
1218 A Lifetime ECLs
BHEEESE ERREHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E1RE FoRER EIWER  BLHEE @t
US$’000 US$’000 Us$’000 US$’000 Us$’000
EY EY in ES in
Trade receivables® PR - - - 15,508 15,508
Financial assets included in 3] € R EMEKZRA
deposits and other receivables HEBEE
- Normal** —EE* 1,198 - - - 1,198
Pledged bank deposit BEANRTER
- Not yet past due - RiBH 130 - - - 130
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEN
- Not yet past due - KBH 50,827 - - - 50,827
52,155 - - 15,508 67,663

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the * BEFREEREBGORERAGLS
simplified approach for impairment, information based on EATREBEBNER  RUER
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 23 to the financial RHF 233K 5E
statements.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in deposits * HeNHEMERRTEENSmE
and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when ENEREEERIMBEEEAIE
they are not past due and there is no information indicating B WAREBEEERPBEDNRER
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit BeRMEENESRARBRBZEIEM-
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of HH cRMEENERAEEWRRS
the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”. 2[A5EM] -

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, rEEBEMteRMEE (BERERE

which comprise cash and cash equivalents and other SEEYREMERR) WEERK

receivables arises from default of the counterparty, with a ERXRGEHLEAMESL  BoEKE
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these ERZETANKREME-
instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and HAAEEEZHERTREENSE

creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for NE=ZFETRZ RERKFRSE

collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by Ko RIMEBKR  NEBRES TE
customer/counterparty. At the end of the reporting period, BEfEdhER  EREENE S ERR

B> D BIHE17% (2020 : 18%) &
68% (2020 : 70% ) BEW A EBEF
REBAREREHEANKIE o KE
BEEHE S ERKENEE R KR
%@iﬁ—iimﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬁﬁﬁ
$5F23 o ,

the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk as 17%
(2020: 18%) and 68% (2020: 70%) of the Group’s trade
receivables were due from the Group’s largest debtor and
the five largest debtors, respectively. Further quantitative
data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 23 to
the financial statements. - =

e e
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3. Financial risk management and fair value
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.
Management reviews and monitors the Group’s working
capital requirements regularly.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

AR EREWE

3. MHEARERE  AFERRD
FEERE (&)

3.1 BIEMEE (&)

B R

AEBEER A EEFRE RN
ReRRSEEY  UEHAEEY
BERHES WERR SRR RBN
Ye o EERENERRELSEE
MEBELER -

REBERR  AEEREORBERN
HEENSREEIHERRIIW
T

2021
No fixed term 3 to less
of repayment/ Less than than
on demand 3 months 12 months 1 to 5 years Total
REEEN
BB/ BAED
REREE HREAR M2{8A 1E58 @t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
EY EY EY e EY
Financial liabilities included in EARREENHA
trade and other payables Hemes 8,966 23,919 - - 32,885
Interest-bearing bank borrowings /T3t B &R - 1 2 182 185
Lease liabilities HESHE - 205 993 1,370 2,568
8,966 24,125 995 1,552 35,638
2020
No fixed term 310 less
of repayment/ Less than than
on demand 3 months 12 months  1to 5 years Total
REEEN
BRAR/ 3EAZED
REREE Hi3fEA 2f8 A 125% @t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
TR E)r TER TEn TR
Financial liabilities included in S EES SN
trade and other payables Nemas 4,629 15,570 194 - 20,393
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ R{T:EER - 1 181 - 182
Lease liabilities HE&RE - 392 427 129 948
4,629 15,963 802 129 21,523
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3. Financial risk management and fair value 3. M ¥EBREERE A FERAD
and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020.

The capital of the Group represents equity attributable to
owners of the Group.

Fair value

The carrying amount and fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amount that

FEEKR (F)

3.1 BI¥RAMEZE (&)
EARER

FEEEAEENEZERARER
EEFECENENLEFRENE
AR UFHEEBRBRRAE
RAEE-

AEBRBLERBESCRAEEE
HEREBHEERAREERERE -
ABEFSARERERE  AEEYS
BEERTFRRIBITHRG - &
BN ZEMIIRIMAERERE
PR o A& £2021%F12H831H %2020
F12A31HILFE > EXAEEBEZ

AEENEANBARRRER ARG

*—-» 3¢

B fm ©
AV

BREREESEMBINATENERT
B AEEERTANKREEMNA

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: FEMT :
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE VA
Financial assets tREE 2021 2020 2021 2020
Us$'000 Us$000 Us$’000 Us$'000
R EH FER E9H
Equity investment designated RAVEETAHM
at fair value through other 2EBANRE
comprehensive income 1,065 929 1,065 929

1,065 929 1,065 929




3. Financial risk management and fair value 3. ¥ EBREERE A FERAD
and fair value hierarchy of financial FEEAR (E)
instruments (continued)

3.1 BIEMEE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Fair value (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade
receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, the current portion of
interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities
of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowings have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings
as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 was
assessed to be insignificant. The carrying amounts of the
non-current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings
approximate to their fair values.

DA (&)

EEECHMRERASEEY -
BERRTER - BRF - B8
REFRRAEMERRTHNERE
E - BEAEMEMNREETIER S
NEMeE  FFERTERNRED
INAFEERERESEML - £
ERHRELTAREREAZNE -

TRMEERSENAFEERAER
57 (M3ERBERFREE) REA
REFPXBEZIENSEAR -

AT A AR A RE st A FEIE -

FTERTERNEREBL QA FE
NEARBETAREBERELUER B
ERBEREGIH BN T ENAIRE
BHEHRRBEESREFTE - K2021
F£12H31H K20205F12A8310 » &
SEBEEINFERITERNTENR
BT L BT RE - ST EIRITER
HIERBNER D AR EEEH A F{EM
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3. Financial risk management and fair value
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
Fair value (continued)

The fair value of an unlisted equity investment designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income has
been estimated by observable prices or rates of sale of
similar assets. The directors believe that the estimated fair
value which is recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position, and the related changes in fair values,
which is recorded in other comprehensive income, are
reasonable, and that it was the most appropriate values at
the end of the reporting period.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2021

3. MBERERE  RFERRD
FEERH (&)

3.1 BHEREE (&)

D E (&)

BRAARBESARMEEBANIE
FHRERENAAEE  BAUBE
ERNEUEENHERMGE -ES
RR - EE BN R P EENMGET
NARBEUARIABENEEZD
(RRARMGESWE) REEN XA
CRESHRKEBENEE-

DR EERH

TRABTAEEERTANAARE
B ERR

EERATENE

7A2021%F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

DN EFENA

Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
RER LI TABE
mHHE BARE BARE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E1ER) (E2ER) (E3ER) st
Us$’000 Us$’'000 Us$’000 Us$’000
ST Txn TEn S
Equity investment designated at fair AV EEFAZAM
value through other comprehensive ~ ZEWAMRE
income - 1,065 - 1,065




3. Financial risk management and fair value 3. B EBREE > AFLER A
and fair value hierarchy of financial FEEKR(F)
instruments (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEEKEZ(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFEELE (E)
As at 31 December 2020 72020%12A31H

Fair value measurement using

AFEHEAR

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
RER EE TABR
mi5HRE BABE BARE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B1BR) (521BHR) (E3EM) st
US$'000 Us$:000 Us$:000 Us$'000
TER SV TER TEn

Equity investment designated at fair R AFEEF AL
value through other comprehensive ~ ZEWAMRE
income - 929 - 929
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4. Significant accounting estimates and

judgements

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Income taxes

The Group has exposure to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is involved in determining
the provision for income taxes. Determining income tax
provisions involves judgement on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions and interpretation of tax rules. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Determining the method to estimate variable consideration and
assessing the constraint for the sale of products.

Certain contracts for the sale of products include volume
rebates that give rise to variable consideration. In estimating
the variable consideration, the Group is required to use
either the expected value method or the most likely amount
method based on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled.

" NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. Significant accounting estimates and

judgements (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

In estimating the variable consideration for the sale of products
with volume rebates, the Group determined that using the most
likely amount method is appropriate. The selected method that
better predicts the amount of variable consideration related
to volume rebates is primarily driven by the number of volume
thresholds contained in the contract. The most likely amount
method is used for those contracts with a single volume
threshold.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the
transaction price, the Group considers whether the amount of
variable consideration is constrained. The Group determined
that the estimates of variable consideration are not constrained
based on its historical experience, business forecast and the
current economic conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on
the variable consideration will be resolved within a short time
frame.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
goodwill had been fully impaired at 31 December 2019. Further
details are given in note 15 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
using key assumptions such as budgeted revenue growth rate
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets at 31
December 2021 were US$4,269,000 (2020: US$3,722,000) and
US$505,000 (2020: US$1,022,000), respectively.
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Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
receivables is disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged analyses of the Group’s
inventories, projections of expected future saleability of goods
and management experience and judgement. Based on this
review, write-down of inventories will be made when the
estimated net realisable value of inventories declines below
their carrying amount. Due to changes in technological, market
and economic environment and customers’ preference, actual
saleability of goods may be different from estimation and profit
or loss could be affected by differences in this estimation. As
at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of inventories was
US$40,866,000 (2020: US$16,428,000).

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available or when it needs to
be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease.
The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs such as
market interest rates when available.
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5. Segment information and disaggregation

of revenue

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the
design, development and sales of proprietary IC products
and system solutions that enable a wide range of display
applications for smartphones, tablets, smart TVs/monitors,
notebooks and other smart devices, including electronic shelf-
labels (ESLs), wearables, healthcare devices, smart home
devices, as well as industrial appliances etc.

The Group has been operating in one single operating segment,
e., the design, development and sales of IC products and
system solutions.

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified
as the Executive Directors and senior management led by
the Chief Executive Officer. The Executive Directors and
senior management reviewed the Group’s internal reporting
as a whole to assess performance and allocate resources.
A management approach has been used for the operating
segment reporting.

Sales amounted to US$168,120,000 and US$121,261,000 for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group mainly
operates in Hong Kong. During 2021, the Group’s products
were mainly sold to customers located in Hong Kong, Mainland
China, Taiwan and Europe.
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5. Segment information and disaggregation 5.

of revenue (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

THERNREESES E (R

Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated (a) RFHEIENEFSHNE
by geographical markets

2021 2020
US$’000 US$’000
SEES FEn
Hong Kong 0 90,819 64,394
Mainland China A B8] A B 15,343 16,394
Taiwan = 35,992 21,201
Europe BUM 16,830 12,394
Japan HZ 7,913 5,833
Korea B2 765 536
South East Asia R 86 135
USA E3E 122 84
Others Hith 250 290
168,120 121,261

Sales are classified based on the places/countries in which
customers are located.

Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated
by product types

HERREFAE®RE BRIHE-

(b) RERBEIBNEFENNWE

2021 2020

US$’000 US$’000

FEn FEn

New Display ICs BB RICS 71,286 33,184
OLED Display ICs OLEDZERICs 34,737 28,717
Mobile Display and Mobile Touch ICs B E)F8 T~ KRB EIEIEICS 43,078 31,893
Large Display ICs REFETRICs 19,019 27,467
168,120 121,261

Revenue from contracts with customers that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period

F&#KWE

The following table shows the amount of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that was
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

(c) EENEETHRIBEIBEPRINE

TRETRBEHANEBSEANER
THEABABREHNNRESHE

2021 2020
US$’000 USs$’000
FEr FE
Revenue recognised that was REBERINESESHNEABEF
included in contract liabilities WEERNREEHE
at the beginning of the reporting
period:
Sales of ICs 1,391 934

$HEICs




5. Segment information and disaggregation
of revenue (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

THERREESES E (R

Non-current assets d) kABEE
2021 2020
US$’000 US$’000
FEx ESH
Hong Kong &8 5,413 686
Mainland China e ETPN S 3,349 4,052
Taiwan =3 1,788 1,725
Korea B2 7 36
10,557 6,499
Non-current assets are listed based on the locations of IRBEE(FBEEHIE) IR
assets which exclude financial instruments. BEENFEMTUNE -
Capital expenditures (e) EXBX
2021 2020
US$°000 US$’000
FEx FEn
Property, plant and equipment WE - BERSZE
Mainland China AR K FE 830 963
Hong Kong &8 616 94
Taiwan B 87 89
1,533 1,146

Capital expenditures are listed based on the locations of
assets.

Major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the largest
customer was located in Hong Kong, and sales to that
customer were US$60,166,000, over 10% of the Group’s
total revenue. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
largest and the second largest customers were located
in Hong Kong. Sales to them were US$19,364,000 and
US$18,781,000, respectively, each over 10% of the
Group’s total revenue.

Performance obligation

Sale of integrated circuits products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the products and payment is generally due within 30 to
90 days from date of delivery. Some contracts provide
customers with volume rebates which give rise to variable
consideration subject to constraint.

(f)

(9)

gizlxﬁﬁiﬁaﬂ%ﬁéﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁi&%uﬂ

FEEF

B ZZ2021%F12H31H Lt :
%k%)ﬁﬁ—mé,ﬁ HeH 5
60,166,000 7T WG A EE
ZEiHBB10% - H £2020%F12831H
EFEFE BARE-ZAEFURE
B o HEHEZ D 51519,364,0003% T
$18,781,000% T » W HIEAREBEE
HEZEEB10% °

BHER

HEERERER
EXVEREREREBITENS
- RBEEXFHZAIEIRA

Z‘IJHJ%—:AH?%%FTm{ THED
n EEHRTZRHEOTEHE -

HHF-H’I
‘?’-i':’i)d“rﬂ




6. Profit before tax 6. BRFLAIEF

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBNBRBADRR DR GEA) T
(crediting): JIBIEEZESE
2021 2020
Notes US$’000 US$’000
HiEE FEx EP
Cost of goods sold HE KA 101,431 85,260
Product engineering costs EmIERA 7,450 2,656
Reversal of provision for obsolete or B HAHEEFEN
slow moving inventories, net B #FE 22 (1,152) (318)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#E 15 517 490
Depreciation of property, plant and VI3 - HBERRE
equipment e 16 1,074 1,291
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 17 1,251 1,382
Lease payments not included in the HEXHAEERE
measurement of lease liabilities HEEBZiE 17(c) 226 133
Impairment of other receivables and HAib KRR T 2 RE
deposits* [l 68 -
Loss from dissolution of subsidiaries* ¥R E#EEE %" 331 -
COVID-19-related rent concession 2019 MESHAERE
from lessor HERR 17(b) (1) (281)
Foreign exchange differences, net SME ZEFHFEE 1,200 408
Auditor’s remuneration 2 E RN € 178 200

Employee benefit expenses (including EE®RAEX (BEES

directors’ emoluments (Note 11)): B (BFEE11)) :
- Salaries, allowances, bonuses - Fre o RB - AR
and other benefits HibER 28,633 20,397
- Equity-settled share option - UEREEN
expense BRER: 204 50
- Pension scheme contributions - RIKREFTEIMHR
(defined contribution schemes) (REMREED 386 396
— Termination benefits - #KIEER 91 157
29,314 21,000
* These items are included in “Other expenses” in the consolidated * HEBERAGSEZRAHMES] -

statement of profit or loss.




7. Other income and gains - net

7. Httg ARz — FEE

2021 2020

US$’000 US$’000

FEr FEx

Government grants* BUT 4 B~ 946 3,639
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BERSEE

plant and equipment 1H B k& 3 677

Licensing income HBERERAKRA - 1,600

Others Hith 260 281

1,209 6,197

* Various government grants have been received for the Group’s * FR AEENAREECESSERR

research and development projects during the year. There are no
unfulfilled conditions relating to these grants.

8. Other expenses

#o

8. Hpix%x

ey WRARBELEBRREENRETR

2021 2020
US$’000 us$’000
FEx ESH

Impairment of other receivables and HthERR KT REREE
deposits 68 -
Loss from dissolution of subsidiaries FRBEEERK 331 -
Others Hth 77 -
476 -

9. Finance income - net 9. BEWA— FEE

2021 2020
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FEn
Interest income F B U A 278 180
Interest on bank loans RITEFRHRNEZH (3) (2)
Interest on lease liabilities HESENFEXH (55) (95)
220 83




NOTE 3 TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAUMBRRME

10.Five highest paid employees 10.E8RaHMES
One (2020: two) of the five top-paid employees of the Group AEBREESHFATEE—R (2020
is a director of the Company whose emolument is disclosed in MB)ARAES  HE S R B RK
note 11 to the financial statements. MizE11 /AR o
Details of the emoluments of the other four (2020: three) top- BT Z2UEFEERIFITHERT (2020 :
paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive SR)BREFHFATHNHMESOT :

officer of the Company are as follows:

2021 2020
US$’000 us$’000
FEx FEx
Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e ROERE
other benefits TEALFI H AL F 576 375
Discretionary bonuses EIETEAL 504 234
Contribution to pension scheme ARG EIE R 23 19
1,103 628
Number of individuals

Emolument bands (HK$) AB
e EzEEE (Bx) 2021 2020
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 2 3

2,000,001 - 2,500,000 2 -




11. Directors’ and chief executive’s NEERTHATNE
remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive officer’s remuneration for the RiE LR REB QA FH 5383(1)
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) (@~ o) c)kMERAT (HEEEERH
(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and ER) BROIE2 iR EAFECEERT
Part 2 of the Hong Kong Companies (Disclosure of Information BARMEWOT :

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2021

HZ2021512A31ALEEES S

Salaries Pension
and benefits scheme  Share-based
Fees in kind® contributions paymentf? Total
#ER Bihe
He HiERO HE 3 RER X @t
US$'000 US$°000 US$°000 US$’000 US$’000
Txn Fxn Txn Txn ST
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BIFHTES
Leung Heung Ying RER 32 - - 16 48
Sheu Wei Fu HEFS 30 - - 16 46
Chan Philip Ching Ho REZ 30 - - 16 46
92 - - 48 140
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Ma Yuchuan BT - - - - -
Wang Hui® TiEe - - - - -
Kang Jian®! Ealo - - - - -
Ye Nan® ERo - - - - -
Li Jun@ Zigo - - - - -
Yu Jian®! Efge - - - -
Lo Wai Ming® BEHO 9 - - -
9 - - - 9
Executive Director BTES
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond TEE - 628 14 101 743
- 628 14 101 743
101 628 14 149 892
Notes: P EE -
(@) Appointed on 1 April 2021. (@) M2021F4B1BERMT -
(b) Appointed on 3 November 2021. (b) MR2021F11H3EEEE -
(c) Appointed on 10 June 2021 and resigned on 3 November 2021. (c) E{\‘%ON gf;ﬂ 10H B ZE &k R2021F
1153 BHE ©
(d) Resigned on 10 June 2021. (d) #2021F6H108 BE °
(e) Resigned on 1 April 2021. () M2021F481HBEHE -

(f)  Retired on 27 May 2021. () M2021F5827H R °




T A R MY A

11. Directors’ and chief executive’s

remuneration (continued)

f 0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HNEERTHEAZMNE (F)

Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2020

BE2020F12B31 ALEEES M

Salaries Pension
and benefits scheme  Share-based
Fees in kind®  contributions payment Total
| R EhE __ j
we =8 il st Bl G U ast
US$'000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000 US§'000
Tin S S S TEn
Independent Non-executive Directors B FH{TES
Leung Heung Ying RER 39 - - 5 44
Sheu Wei Fu H85% 3 - - 5 40
Chan Philip Ching Ho (appointed on R EK (R20205
10 December 2020) 12A10REZE) 3 - - - 3
Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph (resigned on A Bt (20205
10 December 2020) 128108 &84T) 36 - - 5 41
113 - - 15 128
Non-Executive Directors FUTES
Ma Yuchuan EX)I - - - - -
Li Jun Zig - - - - -
Yu Jian EfR - - - - -
Lo Wai Ming (retired on EEH (120215
27 May 2021) 5R27THE) 10 188 5 - 203
10 188 5 - 203
Executive Director BITES
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond TEX - 577 13 11 601
- 577 13 11 601
123 765 18 26 932
During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable by FRAEERBCHIIELESHE
the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon EBR DDA ZR & B 3 0 A 7N & [ 18 1Y 22 [&)
joining the Group (2020: Nil). During the year, there was no (2020 : &) o F R > REFIELZNES
compensation for loss of office was paid by the Group to the BERR (8 (2020 : £B) o
director (2020: Nil).
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or EABEEEHRREEHRTAMEH
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2020: Nil). ZHE (2020 : ) o
(i)  Benefits in kind include leave pay, insurance premium, termination () EtEANEERAILE RBRE KLE
benefits and other allowances. FI R H At 2 BE ©
(i)  This represents the amount charged to the consolidated statement (i)  ETYRIEE BRI EE R FERT R
of profit or loss under the requirements of HKFRS 2 Share-based NRNAEMSAGSBERNWEHE - B
payments. During the current and prior years, certain directors RECRPEEE  ETESBREAQNT
were granted share options, in respect of their services to the Y B8 A% 48 5t B9 HL Y 55 1 9 AR 75 0
Group, under the share option scheme of the Company, further BRE  FUE—SHBHNUBRERWE
details of which are set out in note 25 to the financial statements. 25 ZEHEN A RBEERBEBHAR
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised in the BEAER  MRUARE  MAFEY
statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined BRRTEENESES A BEENER
as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial T 04T B A2 2% 9 3577 B 3 7% o

statements for the current year is included in the above directors’
and chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.




12. Income tax

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the
current year as the Group has available tax losses brought
forward from prior years to offset the assessable profits
generated during the year. In the prior year, no provision for
Hong Kong profits tax had been made as the Group had no
estimated assessable profits. Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in
the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

12. FRB8 %

AEERAER A UEFE A ARE
BIETAUEEMRNEE 2 BRBER
W AR FERBREBEE - R E
FRF  AREEMGITERVENMBA
EBEBIISHEIE - BINTEBARER
%%%%Eﬁﬁﬁi/ﬂEEEZEﬁﬁ
RI&E -

2021 2020
US$’000 US$’000
FErx E

Current — Elsewhere: BIHA — | oh
Charge for the year FREZH 48 198
Total income tax expense Freim 2% 48 198

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before tax
using the Hong Kong statutory tax rate (the statutory tax rate
for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of
its subsidiaries are domiciled) to the tax expense/(credit) at the
Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:

BRARKAEBEERR (AR RAEKX
BIMBARMERZEEEBRIEER
R) 5T & K BRBE AT R 18 Y B IR E S B R AR
EEEBRBEGFENBIEMST(ER)H
BRWOT

2021 2020
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FEn
Profit before tax BR B4 A1 A 23,777 11,878
Income tax calculated at a tax rate Fr8%i1%16.5%
of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) (2020 : 16.5%) st & 3,923 1,960
Difference in tax rates for other HBLAEBEMN
jurisdictions MEREEHE 739 409
Profits attributable to associates AN o= (27) (34)
Income not subject to tax A SR B U &= (2,000) (2,901)
Expenses not deductible for tax TANFEAX 1,955 1,485
Tax losses utilised from previous FAUTHEBIE
periods BB (3,537) (723)
Tax losses not recognised RERNBIEEE - 434
Others Hitb (1,005) (432)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective  EAEBEEERHRFEZ
rate HEMX 48 198




EAEBmENE

13. Earnings per share
(a) Basic earnings per share

The basic earnings per share for the year is calculated
based on the Group’s profit in 2021 attributable to owners
of the parent of US$23,782,000 (2020: US$11,715,000)
and the weighted average number of 2,488,069,886 (2020:
2,480,302,624) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The diluted earnings per share is calculated based on
the Group’s profit for the year attributable to owners of
the parent and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year after adjusting for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The information related to the weighted average number of
ordinary shares is as follows:

GTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. BlR&ER

(a) BREXEF

BRESREFZIREARDCINES ALE
(A& E 20214 2% F)23,782,0005%
7t (2020 : 11,715,000% 7T) RAFRAE
2% 17 38 IR N #E 7 19 B(2,488,069,886
% (2020 : 2,480,302,6248%) 5+ & ©

(b) EREBERF
BRBFERNDRER AR FEDN
BEEANRGEAEBEFRCHFERFR

BABEHESENCRITEBRAE
HARR 2 MEFIIEBRHTEH -

EERMETHENERERFIRD
T

Number of shares

R&OEA
2021 2020
Weighted average number of ERITEBRMEFIIH
ordinary shares in issue 2,488,069,886 2,480,302,624

e E -SRRME
P98 B

Effect of dilution — weighted
average numbers of ordinary

shares: share options 2,754,579 213,386
Adjusted weighted average RAEFTESREERR
number of ordinary shares AR EERER
for diluted earnings per share IEFHRE
calculation 2,490,824,465 2,480,516,010
14. Dividend 14. RE
2021 2020
US$’000 US$’000
FEr FET
Final dividend attributed to FREGMRBRE :
the year:
2021 final dividend, proposed, BRRE2021EERPRE -
of 1.0 HK cent (approximately BREBR1.0BAL (80.13%40L)
0.1 US cent) per ordinary share (2020 : B EEMRRO.8%EAL
(2020: 0.8 HK cent (approximately (£0.13&4l)) 0
0.1 US cent) per ordinary
share)® 3,216 2,566

(i) At a meeting held on 23 March 2022, the Directors recommended
the payment of a final dividend of 1.0 HK cent per ordinary share,
totaling HK$24,924,000 (approximately US$3,216,000). The
proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these
financial statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of
share premium account for the year ended 31 December 2021.

(i) M2022F3R23RETHERL ES
ERRBEAREBRESRETERB1.08
il » #85124,924,000% 7T (£93,216,000
=70) ° B A AR IR 20 AR A AR B 7% 3R
RAPFIEEMARERB - Bi5E5I1E2021
F12A31ALEENRG EEERDE ©




15. Intangible assets

15. B EE

Patents and

intellectual
Goodwill property Total
2R
[5ES HEERE @t
US$°000 US$’000 US$’000
E E EP
31 December 2020 2020%F12A31H
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of 20201 A1 8 RAR R
accumulated amortisation HetiEes - 1,453 1,453
Amortisation provided during the year F s - (490) (490)
Exchange realignment 0 SRR - 59 59
At 31 December 2020 A2020F12831H - 1,022 1,022
At 31 December 2020 72020%12831H
Cost A 2,317 21,517 23,834
Accumulated amortisation E-g: f] - (12,507) (12,507)
Accumulated impairment ZtEE (2,317) (7,988) (10,305)
Net carrying amount REDFE - 1,022 1,022
31 December 2021 2021%F12H831H
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of 20215181 B RAR K
accumulated amortisation s - 1,022 1,022
Amortisation provided during the year F R - (517) (517)
Exchange realignment fE AR - - -
At 31 December 2021 720215128311 - 505 505
At 31 December 2021 M2021512A31H
Cost AR 2,317 21,517 23,834
Accumulated amortisation ESE - (13,024) (13,024)
Accumulated impairment Z2FRE (2,317) (7,988) (10,305)
Net carrying amount IRMEFE - 505 505

Amortisation expense of US$517,000 (2020: US$490,000) has
been charged in research and development costs.

1§85 B9 3517,0003 Jt (2020 : 490,000
T ERMEREERARPLE -




16. Property, plant and equipment 16. 1% - WBRRE

Furniture, ~ Machinery

fixtures, and
Land Leasehold licenses and laboratory Motor
and building improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
Ba-
b BENx EEKE- HER
k&F RE HUERRE BRERR RE @t

Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$§'000 US$'000 Us$'000
T&n i T&n i e e

31 December 2021 2021F12A31H
At 1 January 2021 ®2021%181H
Cost R 1,812 2,935 6,108 14,441 72 25,368
Accumulated depreciation  BiHFE (255) (2,803) (5,638) (12,906) (32 (21,634)
Accumulated impairment 2 HE - - (11) (1) - (12)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,557 132 459 1,534 40 3,722
At 1 January 2021, netof  R2021%1A1RHR

accumulated depreciation ZiHNE 1,557 132 459 1,534 40 3,722
Additions RE - 362 341 746 84 1,533
Disposals B - P)] - - - @
Depreciation provided during  £RHTE

the year 22) (122) (272) (634) (24) (1,074)
Exchange realignment ERHE 83 1 4 2 - 920

At 31 December 2021, net of  R2021E12831 B
accumulated depreciation ~ BREFHEREE

and impairment 1,618 371 532 1,648 100 4,269
At 31 December 2021 M2021%12A31A
Cost A 1,910 2,763 6,203 14,536 156 25,658
Accumulated depreciation ~ EiHFE (292) (2,392) (5,750) (12,887) (56) (21,377)
Accumulated impairment 2T HME - - (11) (1) - (12)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,618 371 532 1,648 100 4,269
Depreciation expense of US$589,000 (2020: US$474,000) has 372 & F589,0003 Jt (2020 : 474,000
been included in cost of sales, US$70,000 (2020: US$234,000) )T ASHER AR 5T AR RERE
in research and development costs and US$415,000 (2020: A #70,000E 7T (2020 : 234,000 7T) -
US$583,000) in administrative expenses. FF AT BB X B£415,0003% Jt (2020 :

583,000%7T) °




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA'-:?
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SEMBHRE

16. Property, plant and equipment 16. Y12 - WBR K FE (F)
(continued)
Furniture, Machinery
fixtures, and
Land Leasehold  licenses and laboratory Motor
and building  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
N

T BEME EEkE- HER

kEF & HUERRE ERERAK RE act

Us§'000 US§'000  US$000 US§'000  US§000  US$'000
TER TR TR TR TR TR

31 December 2020 2020512A31H
At 1 January 2020 1202051 A1H
Cost B 1,722 2,746 5,741 16,399 72 26,680
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (222) (2,583) (5,248) (14,957) ®) (23,018)
Accumulated impairment 2itAE - - (11) (1) - (12)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,500 163 482 1,441 64 3,650
At 1 January 2020, net of M2020E1 B 1Rk

accumulated depreciation ~ RiHTE 1,500 163 482 1,441 64 3,650
Additions NE - 123 394 629 - 1,146
Disposals iR - - (18) (143) - (161)
Depreciation provided during  ER{TE

the year 1) (149) (16) (681) (24) (1,291)
Exchange realignment ERRE 78 (5) 17 288 - 378
At 31 December 2020, net of  A2020F12531 A

accumulated depreciation ~ BREFHTERAE

and impairment 1,557 132 459 1,534 40 3,722
At 31 December 2020 12020%12831R
Cost AR 1,812 2,935 6,108 14,441 72 25,368

Accumulated depreciation B34 (255) (2,803 (5638 (12.906) @) (21,634
Accumulated impairment ZitHE - - (1) (1) - (12)

Net carrying amount BEE 1,557 132 459 1,534 40 3,722




17. Leases 17. ¥ &

The Group as a lessee AEBEERAEBA

The Group has leases for its office properties and motor AEBHERAERTEANREEKE
vehicles used in its operations. Leases of leased properties E-HEMERMBERIZEF  MAE
generally have lease terms between 1 and 3 years, while WEEBEAR1Z4F - —ME » A5EE
motor vehicles generally have leases between 1 and 4 FAEAEBUMATEERSHAEES
years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and Ee

subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FRHEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets rEENFEAREEREERETEE
and the movements during the year are as follows: FEWT :
Leased Motor
properties vehicles Total
HEWE RE st
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FEx FEx FEx
At 1 January 2020 20201 H1H 1,658 39 1,697
Additions wE 524 - 524
Depreciation charge e (1,359) (23) (1,382)
At 31 December 2020 and MA2020F128318 K
1 January 2021 2021%1H81H 823 16 839
Additions "E 53 - 53
Lease modification on extending JERMEH 2HEERT
lease term 2,674 - 2,674
Depreciation charge e (1,242) (9) (1,251)

At 31 December 2021 M2021612A31H 2,308 7 2,315




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE

17. Leases (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

(c)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

= AR S REN S

17. HE (&)
(b) HEAE

HESENRABRAFEZHM

during the year are as follows: T:
2021 2020
US$°000 US$’000
TER E
Carrying amount at 1 January M1A1HEREE 887 1,898
New leases HEE 53 524
Lease modification on extending lease ERBEHZHEET
term 2,674 -
Accretion of interest recognised during REFRBIEM
the year ®’E 55 95
COVID-19-related rent concession from  2019B R HES HAEEE
lessor HERR (1) (281)
Exchange realignment AR 14 -
Payments (BN (1,151) (1,349)
Carrying amount at 31 December M12B31BEREIE 2,531 887
Analysed into: DHAT -
Current portion B 1,139 762
Non-current portion FERB 1,392 125

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note
3 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has the applied the practical expedient to all
eligible rent concessions granted by the lessors for leases
of certain leased properties during the year.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases
are as follows:

HESENIMARRDITREGES K
HARMIEIMWE -

BRHHEAEFRAREREYXE
W THRESERESRRAE
EERAATEEDERE -

(c) RESXBEIANEAEHOT :

2021 2020

US$’000 us$’000

FEx FEx

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 1,251 1,382

Expenses relating to short-term leases EHRECEEER 226 133

Interest on lease liabilities HESENFAEXZH 55 95
COVID-19-related rent concession from  2019E A E=HHE

lessors HER% (1) (281)

Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIEFRERANET H 1,531 1,329
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18. Investments in associates 18. R ANBEIMKRE
2021 2020
US$’000 USs$’000
FEn FET
Share of net assets BiLFEE 1,082 916
Particulars of the associates are as follows: BENTNFEMASRAOT
Place of Percentage of equity
registration/ Particulars of attributable to the Company
incorporation registered capital/ ARABERBESE
Associated companies and operation Principal activities issued shares
MR AMELR BRI
BENT EELH TEEH RO HFE 2021 2020
Beijing LED Energy PRC LED system design CNY20,000,000 23.5% 23.5%
Management Technology ~#El and contract 20,000,000 A ¥
Co. Ltd. installation
T RERREEN LR LEDZ &R
BRAA IR%E
Kitronix Limited Hong Kong Design, development,  HK$38,000,000 25.0% 25.0%
HBEINERAF & manufacturing & 38,000,000/ 7T
distribution of LCD
modules
Bt B AR
PR EBTRES
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRAPAREFWHZE NG NEAEKES
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually B @REEEK :
material:
2021 2020
US$’000 Us$’000
FErx FET
Share of the associates’ profits and FE{GEEE A T
total comprehensive income AEFBREZEYR G
for the year 166 208
Aggregate carrying amount of AEBREE QT
the Group’s investments in the RENREAEE

associates 1,082 916




19. Subsidiaries

19. i B 2 7
APABEEMBATFMBIRNOT :

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Place of registration/

incorporation Principal activities and
Name and kind of legal entity place of operation Particulars of capital Interest held
tR ERRUBEREELY TEEBREELE RawE RRRR
Solomon Systech Limited HK, LLC Design, development, sales of IC 500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each ~ 100%
RIREERAT and system solutions, HK

Jing Guang Semiconductors
(Dongguan) Limited
RERETERERAR

Solomon Systech Japan Company
Limited

Solomon Systech (Shenzhen) Limited

BRRE (RI) BRAR

Solomon Systech Taiwan Limited
BERRRABRAA

Solomon Systech (China) Limited
BRNE (1E) BRAT

Sentron, Inc.

&% ARLT

PRC, LLC
hE ARAT

Japan, LLC
A% BRAR
PRG, LLC
HE - BRAF
Talwan LLC
8% BRAF
PRC, LLC
TE BRAR

Korea, LLC
26 ERAF

Rit RR HERHEREAR
omrng B

Manufacturing of IC, Mainland China

RERHERER - T8

Market research, Japan

wEE AR

Design and distribution of IC,
Mainland China
Rt RABERERRS  1E

Design and development of IC, Taiwan

Rt RARRAERES A2

Design and distribution of IC,
Mainland China
Rt RAEEHERRS  1E

Application R&D, Korea
EREE &H

500,000,000k 8 REE 12 T HEER

US$7,500,000 registered and paid up capital 100%
75000002 LEEMR AR ER

10,000 ordinary shares of JPY1,000 each ~ 100%

10,000REREE1 THNEER

HK$16,000,000 registered and HK$10,325,596 100%
paid up capital

16,000,000 w2 &K £ 45 710,325,596
En

5,000,000 ordinary shares of NTD10 each ~ 100%

5,000,000k EREE 10 A BNEER

US$34,000,000 registered and paid up capital 100%
34,000,000% EHRRHRER

80,000 ordinary shares of KRW5,000 each ~ 52%

80,000k BRE(ES, 0008 THEBR

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

EERR ERAIIAQFZHMBERATS
IRVEARETFAXAIAREEFE
ZEEHRDE EZRRHMIEMKEL
AzHBEEEENBRAR -




20. Equity investment designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income

20.
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BAVEEFARMEZEHRK
mHRERE

2021 2020
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FEx
Equity investment designated BAFEEFAHEMEZEREN
at fair value through other RERE
comprehensive income
Club debenture 2FES 1,065 929
The above equity investment was irrevocably designated at TEERBREARBUEMNE  RERE

fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers this investment to be strategic in nature.

21. Cash and cash equivalents and pledged
deposits

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
US$10,857,000 (2020: US$9,209,000). The pledged deposits
denominated in US dollars amounted to US$17,000,000
(2020: US$130,000) were pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities. RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

21.

A R EE AP EESFARMEE
Log

BERBSEBYREEH
7K

RIBER  AEEBUARE (AR
SFTEMNR S RBITHEEH10,857,0005
Jt (2020 : 9,209,000 jT) ° L & 7‘5‘"#
EZE}EHW? % & %8 517,000,000%
(2020:130,000% 7t) * BIKIFRITER 1’!5
BRTRERE -  ARBFIERRRAH
& #E » (BARYE b B K B Y HNEE B 12 15 451
MAEE » SE RIS IIESEGEY » RE
EEAEBBERBEETIHIEZEBENERITAL
BAREBHRBHMER -

THEFARESHERTERNRZTH
*U?ﬁﬂiﬂg° G HE KAV B ER A1
AEMERAATE  RFAEENNEHR
FERME @ LREBNEHERFRF R
MEFE - RITEHREFRRNEERFHR
T MHEENTE -
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22, Inventories 2. 78

2021 2020
US$’000 US$’000
FErx TErx
Finished goods B 5,305 4,168
Raw materials and work in progress EMRERERSR 39,286 21,239
44,591 25,407

Provision for obsolete or slow moving BERFHEHEFE
inventories e (3,725) (8,979)
40,866 16,428

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to US$101,431,000 (2020:

US$85,260,000).

Movements on the provision for obsolete or slow moving

inventories are as follows:

BRABAXATABERANFERSTE

1,431,0003< JT (2020 : 85,2
) °

NE

60,000%

BRIFHFENRBENEHIMOT

2021 2020
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FEx
At 1 January ®1A18 8,979 15,732
Scrap of inventories against provision FEMEINRERE (4,102) (6,435)
Reversal of provision for obsolete or BIFRHFEEFEE
slow moving inventories, net PER . FE (1,152) (318)
At 31 December »12H831H 3,725 8,979
23. Trade and other receivables, ERFRREMEBEWR N
prepayments and deposits MR €
2021 2020
Note US$’000 US$’000
FiEE FEx FEx
Trade receivables N 22,082 13,899
Trade receivables from related parties 8 B T FE U K 35 2,250 1,609
Impairment RERE (220) (220)
Trade receivables - net BN — F 58 24,112 15,288
Other receivables, prepayments and HMEWR » AR
deposits HkA 14,690 3,928
Prepayments to related parties B 5 TR 35 233 186
Impairment BERE (68) -
Trade and other receivables, U R W
prepayments and deposits EARET£
— current portion — & 38,967 19,402
Other receivables, prepayments and HMEWR ~ AR
deposits HEA
- non-current portion —3ERED 9,087 22




e
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23. Trade and other receivables,
prepayments and deposits (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade receivables from
corporate customers were mainly on credit terms of 30 to 90
days. As at 31 December 2021, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables based on invoice dates and net of loss allowance,

-NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 BURREMEWRR BN

REET = (&)

A2021F12H31B A EBEYH XX
FreRERREEHETEAB30E0H - A
2021F12H31H  EWRUBERHR
HNKRBERENREIMIOT :

is as follows:
2021 2020
US$’000 us$’000
TEIT ESyH
1-30 days 1-30H 9,795 6,391
31-60 days 31-60H 6,515 3,971
61-90 days 61-90H 5,452 2,687
91-180 days 91-180H 2,350 2,239
24,112 15,288

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

WK EREEBMNT

2021 2020

US$°000 USs$’000

TER FER

At beginning of year REL) 220 220
Impairment losses WA - -
At end of year RER 220 220

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

BEBSAMEABRBERETRED
o UEtEEMERAEE - BERERA
BEMBAEANEEETFHENDANA
HIR S (B4R IB &) o et ERR T 8
RMELAR  ERBEEEARKREAH
AESHERBESMH  BATARRMARE
BRERRAANSEMAZEEE - — K
mE BRRUNEANEE-—FAEBETZY
ERB B AT UUGE o



23. Trade and other receivables, 2. EUNARREMERTE BN

prepayments and deposits (continued) MEET &£ (8#])
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure LU &SI S B AR B E RN ERRE
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: ERk :
As at 31 December 2021 A2021F12H31H
Expected credit Gross carrying Expected credit
loss rate amount losses
FHEEBRSR MR E{E FHEEEER
% US$’°000 US$’000
Aok FEx FEx
Past due B
Current RiBHA 0.73 14,245 104
1 to 30 days 1-30H 0.78 6,210 49
31 to 60 days 31-60H 1.27 2,652 34
61 to 90 days 61-90H 2.18 1,116 24
Over 90 days B0 H 8.66 109 9
24,332 220
As at 31 December 2020 20206128318
Expected credit Gross carrying  Expected credit
loss rate amount losses
EHREEBER MREE FEHEEREE
% US$’000 Us$’000
Epalse FERT FET
Past due B
Current RiBHA 1.13 10,932 123
1 to 30 days 1-30H 1.90 3,993 76
31 to 60 days 31-60H 3.37 494 16
61 to 90 days 61-90H 4.46 86 4
Over 90 days HiEB90H 10.74 3 1
15,508 220
The financial assets included in other receivables and deposits. Ejz“i-)\ﬁ{ﬂzﬁﬁllﬁz IRITEMNEREEM
Where applicable, an impairment analysis is performed at each CEBEBRT  REERSEHSK
reporting date by applying a loss rate approach with reference ﬁﬁgﬂg R EEWSREZREFBAIEE
to the historical loss record of the Group. As at 31 December HERETRESWH HN=-BE=-_—F+=A81
2021, the probability of default applied ranged from 0.24% to =+—H FEANEIHEEZENF0.24%
0.84% and the loss given default was estimated to be 100%. F0.84% MAETMEBENEEEA
As at 31 December 2020, the loss allowance was assessed to 100% - R=ZE=-_ZFF+=ZA=+—8H "

be minimal. EEBEWTESEMN -




24, Issued capital 24, BB ITRAK
2021 2020
Number of Number of
shares  US$’000 shares  US$’000
g ! TERn LR 4= TEn
Authorised: EE
- Ordinary shares of -BREME010BTH

HK$0.10 each EBR 5,000,000,000 64,433 5,000,000,000 64,433

Issued and fully paid: BERITRHR :
At 1 January R1A18 2,481,052,351 31,977 2,480,252,351 31,967
Exercise of share options (i) {718 MR 11,300,000 146 800,000 10
At 31 December ®12831H 2,492,352,351 32,123 2,481,052,351 31,977

U

The subscription rights attaching to 11,300,000 share
options were exercised at the weighted average
subscription price of HK$0.246 per share (note 25),
resulting in the issue of 11,300,000 ordinary shares
for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of
approximately US$359,000. An amount of approximately
US$102,000 was transferred from the share option reserve
to share premium account upon the exercise of the share
options.

11,300,00017 &5 A% # M % 00 ;R 08 2
UnEFHREESRR0.2468 T
(Ff5F25) MR BB (E 1T BH BT
11,300,0008% B% 19 » KRB AATEAR
£ R EH4359,000% T - RER#E
TE% —%4102,000E T £ 58
BB REREEBARMEER -
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25. Equity compensation scheme

(@) The Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2013
Share Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting
held on 28 May 2013. The terms of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of the
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.
The 2013 Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for
a period of 10 years commencing on 28 May 2013, being
the date of adoption of such scheme by the shareholders
of the Company. The Board shall be entitled at any time
within 10 years commencing on 28 May 2013 to make
an offer for the grant of an option to any qualifying
participants.

The purpose of the 2013 Share Option Scheme is to
provide the participants (directors, employees, advisers,
consultants, agents, distributors, contractors, contract
manufacturers, suppliers, service providers, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, etc., of
any member of the Group) with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
them to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
approval of the 2013 Share Option Scheme or 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue.

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the qualifying
participant concerned for a period of 21 days from the
date of the offer (or such longer period as the Board may
specify in writing). HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to
the Company on acceptance of the offer of the option.

[

o

R B R TR

25, PR 2N RE 25 3R BN 51 2
(a) BRESTE

KA FR2013F5H828H BITH R
REFRECKRM —BRETE
(FT20138E AR #E5T 21 1) - 201385 IR #&
SEINEREER ETEAE1I7TERN
iR3 ° 20138 B FESH EIFR20134F5 A
288 (BN BB R A2 B IR A=
EzH)RBEM AHIOE-EEE
ALLR20135E5 828 B B 10F B H
BREFEERSESE -

2013 REFEEERTRENRS
HEKREEREZESE BT B
B RE - 28E - AEE -
ABREE - HEE - RBREME
BEF BEBHF SELEMERHF
Z)REREEAQAEERDNE
HEEGHF  REARARARRERT
mmEAAQEEE -

RIB2013BIRAE BT R H T ERE
IRAEREAT AR A T BT B
THEBEBRUEBRENEERAAD
BAIEBITRAMNI0%FA QA RED
BITIRABIB0% °

BESHEELEM2EARERD
BRE (BECTME  FEHEERT
) BITEREERNGRITHAD
BARODAE SR TEBAERLQTC
BITRIDA1% °

BRERER B BET218 B (K
ExgnIETANRREE) AT
HEERSEEEN - NENBRE
B ARAEBARE X E1.00
7‘[, o




25. Equity compensation scheme (continued) 25. IR 7~ #E %5 SR B 51 2 (&)

(a) The Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) B fESHE (&)

The subscription price of share option shall be determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion in accordance
with the terms of the 2013 Share Option Scheme. The
subscription price in respect of any particular option shall
be no less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; and (b) the
average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

The total number of share options available for issue upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the 2013
Share Option Scheme as at the date of this annual report
is 98,730,235, representing 4.0% of the issued shares of
the Company. The number of share options outstanding as
at 31 December 2021 was 27,300,000.

The following share options under the 2013 Share Option
Scheme were outstanding during the year:

2013 R ETEMRXBRET - &
SERARHENTUBRENIE
1B o EAELERENDBERSU
THEREE  (RORELH A BEE
R EWERMIIWHE Rb)K
0 BRI I B I A58 & % A 12
RFrEABERASFEHRHE -

RAFERRE A  RIE2013B A REST
B A RECBRETER
] F 21T 09 AR 19 2 B £98,730,235
B AR AR A Tééﬁﬂxﬁ}ﬁ’m 0% ° FA
2021F 128318 » & $£27,300,000
BREVNBIREREITHE

£ 2013 RET B RITREBR
BHEWT :

2021 2020

Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price Options  exercise price Options
MEFITEE  BREHE NETHTEE BREHA

HK$ HK$

BT BT
At beginning of year READ 0.236 15,700,000 0.285 15,560,000
Granted during the year FRERE 0.802 23,400,000 0.213 7,400,000
Exercised during the year FEREITE 0.246  (11,300,000) 0.159 (800,000)
Lapsed/forfeited during the year FREFEH/HE 0.201 (500,000) 0.336 (6,460,000)
At end of year RER 0.717 27,300,000 0.236 15,700,000

The weighted average share closing price of the
Company's ordinary shares immediately before the dates
on which the share options were exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2021 was HK$0.647 per ordinary
share.

During the year, movements in the number of share
options outstanding under the share option scheme and
the related exercise prices are as follows:

B Z2021F12831BLEF R £ &
EBREY {EEZHIJH’W’ATE%HQ
INFEF W HER BB T0.647 ©

Fr - BERBRESSERITEBR
EEENEBRHEARBITEESIHM

T




25. IR A RE 5 ¥R B =T & (4
(a) WERAE (4)

25. Equity compensation scheme (continued)

(@) The Share Option Scheme (continued)

Number of share options (in thousand units)
BREHE (T

Exercise Held on Lapsed/ Held on
price 1 January Granted Exercised Forfeited 31 December
per share 2021 during during during 2021
HK$ 20215 the year the year the year R2021 %
Grant date BRIFE 1818 Eng R Eng 12A31H Vesting period Exercise period
RiAH B 22} B i HEHE b2} ) i
30 September 2016 0.305 3,000 - (3,000) - - 30 September 2016 to 1 April 2019 to
2016%9830H 29 March 2019 31 March 2021
2016F9A308E 19F4B1RE
2019537297 02137317
9 October 2018 0.254 2,400 - (2,400) - - 9 October 2018 to 2 October 2019 to
2018%1059A 5 June 2019 30 September 2021
2018F10A96E 20198108202
201946758 2021597308
9 May 2019 0.248 2,000 - (2,000) - - 9 May 2019 to 2 January 2020 to
2019589 14 December 2019 31 December 2021
2019F5A98F 20F182RE
201912714 2021128318
30 December 2019 0.159 1,600 - (1,600) - - 30 December 2019 to 2 October 2020 to
2019%12A308 20 May 2020 30 September 2022
201951273082 20205108202
2020555208 2022598307
0.159 50 - - - 50 30 December 2019 to 2 January 2021 to
29 December 2020 31 December 2022
2019%12A308% 21F1A2A%F
2020%12A298 2020%128318
0.159 50 - - - 50 30 December 2019 to 2 January 2022 to
29 December 2021 31 December 2023
20191243082 A2F1B2RE
20215127298 2023% 128318
17 July 2020 0.2454 1,000 - (1,000) - - 17 July 2020 to 19 July 2021 to
2020%7817H 16 July 2021 18 July 2023
057A176E 0157R19RE
2021577167 2023%7418H
0.254 1,000 - - - 1,000 17 July 2020 to 19 July 2022 to
16 July 2022 18 July 2024
2020F7/178% 0257A198F
2022577167 2024%7718H
30 October 2020 0.201 1,600 - (800) - 800 30 October 2020 to 1 November 2021 to
20205104308 27 May 2021 31 October 2023
2020510A30AZ WNENAIRE
2021554278 2023104318
0.201 2,000 - - - 2,000 30 October 2020 1 November 2020 to
20205104308 31 October 2022
00F11A18E
20205104318
0.201 500 - (500) - - 30 October 2020 to 1 November 2021 to
29 October 2021 31 October 2023
202051043082 01E1MF1RE
2021107298 2023104318
0.201 500 - - (500) - 30 October 2020 to 1 November 2022 to
29 October 2022 31 October 2024
2020610A30RZ 02E1R1RE

20206104298

20245104318
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25. Equity compensation scheme (continued) 25. IR 4~ #E %5 SR B 51 2 (&)

(a) The Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) B fESHE (&)

Number of share options (in thousand units)

BREHE (AT

Exercise Held on Lapsed/ Held on
price 1 January Granted Exercised Forfeited 31 December
per share 2021 during during during 2021
HKS R2021E the year the year the year R20215
Grant date SRITEE 1818 Erd Eng ERE 12A31A Vesting period Exercise period
REBH B #E Rit i RE:I)E ] #E 5ES fit:d:]
1 June 2021 0.840 - 3,000 - - 3,000 1 June 2021 1 June 2022 to
2021641 202156718 31 May 2024
2022%6R10Z
2024554318
0.840 - 2,400 - - 2,400 1 June 2021 to 1 June 2022 to
31 May 2022 or 31 May 2024
the 2022 annual 2020%6H10Z
general meeting date, 2024454318
whichever is earlier
021%6R10E
2020558318,
NNERFEERE
BR RRERE
8 December 2021 0.790 - 7,200 - - 7,200 8 December 2021 to 8 June 2022 to
2021E1278H 7 June 2022 7 June 2024
2021F12A88% 202056888 %
202256478 2024%6F78
0.790 - 10,800 - - 10,800 8 December 2021 to 8 June 2023 to
7 June 2023 6 June 2025
021512788 % 202356780 %
20236778 2025%6768
Total
3t 15,700 BAO (1,300 (500) 27,300
At the end of the reporting period, the total number of RB|EER - RIBE2013B R EFTE
share options which are exercisable under the 2013 Share ] 1T f5F 09 B AR FE 42 21 52,850,000
Option Scheme is 2,850,000 (2020: 11,000,000). (2020 : 11,000,000) -
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had RIMEEB R RADQERIEZ20138
27,300,000 share options outstanding under the 2013 % % 51 & 18 & 17 ££27,300,00017 B8
Share Option Scheme during the year. The exercise in full IRIE-RIBARXNBBRBEERNER
of the outstanding share options would, under the present %%Hﬂiik? FEREREASE BT
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 27,300,00074< 2 7] 8 iR | B8 SN AR 7R
27,300,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and #2,526,0003 70 (NBREEITE AT °

additional share capital of approximately US$2,526,000
(before issue expenses).
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25. Equity compensation scheme (continued) 25 BZZAKBEZS ST 2 (&)

(a) The Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) BERRAESE (E)
The Company uses the Binomial Valuation Model (the AATERA-EITEER ([
“Model”) to value the share options granted. The key HEDEEMNWERE - R20218
parameters used in the Model and the corresponding fair C00ENEEHERENATLER
values of the share options granted during 2021 and 2020 ERAEEXNTESZHENT :
are listed below:
2021 2021 2020 2020
8 December 1 June 30 October 17 July
Date of grant REAH 12A8H 6A1H 108308 78178
Number of share options EREEREZE 18,000 5,400 5,400 2,000
granted (in thousand units) (AFfzsh
Total share option value BRELE
- HK$’000 -TER 4,871 1,421 255 126
- US$’000 equivalent -TEnEE 629 183 33 16
Share price at date of grant (HK$) R AN REET) 0.790 0.840 0.183 0.221
Closing price immediately before the ~ BERE BRI W 0.770 0.790 0.190 0.221
date of grant miE
Exercise price (HK$) THEER) 0.790 0.840 0.201 0.2454
Expected life of options (years) BRENBHRDHEF) 2-4 3 2-4 3-4
Annualised volatility EERE 73.1%-82.5% 70.1%  56.2%-66.9%  55.4%-60.3%
Risk free interest rate EERAE 1.084%-1.267% 0.216% 0.132%-0.191% 0.057%-0.081%
Dividend payout rate REZE 1.1% 4.4% - -
The Binomial Valuation Model is used to estimate the “IHFEEARARGERERE
fair values of European share options. The fair values HAFE -TEEHNAFEZHER
calculated are inherently subjective and uncertain due to RANEABEREMABEENESE
the assumptions made and the limitations of the Model MRTEE BRENEESEZE
used. The value of a share option varies with different LFHEBEROTESBMmRE o Tk
variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change in PSRN TR S B AR
variables so adopted may materially affect the estimation AFENHEENEATLE
of the fair value of a share option.
The volatility measured at the standard deviation of BRI ERBERBINDERNBEEE
continuously compounded share returns is based on BEROMUTENSGTITZROE
statistical analysis of daily closing share prices over the BRIz EEEFE LR -
last few years.
(b) The Share Grant (b) 7 AER
There was no share award granted during the years ended R2020%20215F ;i » I & &% H B 47
31 December 2020 and 2021. R o
26. Reserves 26. {1
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements AEBERERUAIFEZZERSBFE
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the BN BHRRETIEFEEEEERA °

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 79 of the
financial statements.
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Deferred tax

At 31 December 2021, the Group had unrecognised tax
losses arising in Hong Kong of US$90,861,000 (2020:
US$104,904,000), subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. The Group also had unrecognised
tax losses arising in Mainland China of US$1,961,000 (2020:
US$6,839,000), subject to the agreement by the relevant
taxation authority, that will expire in five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses due to unpredictability of future taxable
profit streams.

Trade and other payables

f 0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. EEFR 5%
R2021F 12831  AEBEETBE

&

By oK ¥ 52 i 78 &5 18 590,861,000% T

(2020 : 104,904,000% 7T) (B iF BB

B

BAE)  ZEHEABREUTERMAELR

HEEBENARNRKERFRE - &K
EEAEEFBEAREEENAERBIEES
81,961,000 7t (2020 : 6,839,000% Jt)
(BEFHENBEKERE) » ZEREEER
BREERER THAERKEELESREN

n

B AR IR AEER LA o B R E TR R

RERBAERR - AUAEEDZSEHR

i

RIEEBHEE ©

28. B RR E AR

2021 2020
Notes US$’000 US$’000
i Ed FErx FEn
Trade payables FEAFFR (a) 23,919 15,717
Trade payable to a related party 22} D AR 35 - 47
23,919 15,764
Accrued expenses and other payables FESTBI S R H X 18,891 9,696
Contract liabilities BHNAE (b) 6,350 2,598
Refund liabilities RREE 989 1,283
50,149 29,341

Notes: B &E

(a) At 31 December 2021, the ageing analysis of the trade payables
based on invoice dates is as follows:

(a)

7A2021F 128318 » BB Z B8
HEREBR DMMAT -

2021 2020

US$’000 US$’000

FERT FERT

1 - 30 days 1-30H 14,726 7,278
31 - 60 days 31-60H 6,478 6,812
61 - 90 days 61 -90H 2,439 1,462
Over 90 days B0 276 212
23,919 15,764

The trade and other payables are non-interest-bearing and have
an average term of three months.

(b) Contract liabilities include short-term advances received from
customers for the sale of ICs.

BNSRAMENRD RS AR —RNE
RR#EE -

BHNEBEERERAHEMBMEF &
HITRRROR o



29.

30.

31.

32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEHENT

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

At 31 December 2021, the Group had a bank loan of
US$181,000 (2020: US$181,000) in connection with a Korean
subsidiary. The bank borrowing is matured on 30 June
2023 and bears interest at a rate of 1.1% per annum. The
carrying amount of the loan at the end of the reporting period
approximated to its fair value and the loan is denominated in
KRW.

Banking facilities

At 31 December 2021, the Group had banking facilities
amounted to US$25.9 million (2020: Nil) and US$9.9 million
(2020: US$NIl) was unutilised.

Contingent liabilities

The Company has provided corporate guarantees amounted to
US$17.9 million (2020: Nil) to banks in connection with facilities
granted to a subsidiary, of which US$8.0 million (2020: Nil) was
utilised as at 31 December 2021.

Notes to consolidated statement of cash
flows

(@) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions and
modification to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of US$2,727,000 (2020: US$524,000) and US$2,727,000
(2020: US$524,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for leased properties.

29.

30.

31.

32.

S

A BMEMNE

RITFFERER

A2021F12A31H  AEBH —HEIRT
& $2181,000% 7T (2020 : 181,000% 7T)
FBREET AT - ZBERTERZHA
A2023F6H30H ' ERFERNEE1.1%
FREFEMEBEHEQNFEEE  WUETY
{E o

RITEE

A2021F128318  KEBHEHRITE
BE25.9FEE T (20205 ( #) - Edk
FO.9E B E T (20204 : &) o

HREE

AATEMBFHBLARANMERRITIR
HAEEER17.98BET (2020F : &) -
ZRER2021F12A31HE B A EHS8.0
BEET (20205 : &) o

RERERERWE

(@ EEFREXRSH

FR - AEBERTHEEMENFEA
REENHEEEBNEBRESFIER
& 5T 2 Bl B2,727,000% 7T (2020 :
524,0003 jt) M2,727,000% T
(2020 : 524,000 7T) °

(b) Change in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) MMEZTHEHEEEL
2021 2021

Lease

Borrowings liabilities

X HEAE

US$’000 US$’000

FERT FET

At 1 January 2021 2021F181H 181 887

Changes from financing cash flows ZE&RERENEL - (1,096)

New leases EE - 53
Lease modification on extending IERMBEZHEEEET

lease term - 2,674

Foreign exchange movement [EREH = 14

Interest expense FEXZH - 5
Interest paid classified as operating BFESEAKE

cash flows BEReE = (69)
COVID-19-related rent concession 20193 M im S I EE

from lessor HER% = (1)

Drawdowns of bank borrowings S EURITER 913 =

Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER (913) -

181

At 31 December 2021

R2021412831H



TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR M A

32. Notes to consolidated statement of cash 32. ZE R EFRERH T (&)
flows (continued)

(b) Change in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) MEZBHEHRZEEE L (H)
(continued)
2020 2020
Lease
Borrowing liabilities
BX HEAE
US$’000 US$’000
E EP
At 1 January 2020 20201 H81H 169 1,898
Changes from financing cash flows E&5RE&RENEL - (1,254)
New leases HEE - 524
Foreign exchange movement [ =43 B 12 -
Interest expense FEZH - 95
Interest paid classified as operating BFESEAKE
cash flows BERE - (95)
COVID-19-related rent concession 2019 MImSHAERER
from lessors HER% - (281)
At 31 December 2020 72020F12A31H 181 887
(c) Total cash outflows for leases (c) HERSRHAE
The total cash outflows for leases included in the REeEREXPEFENHERSRER
statement of cash flows is as follows: BT
2021 2020
US$’000 US$’000
FEn EH
Within operating activities EREEFHH 55 95
Within financing activities EREEEH 1,096 1,254
1,151 1,349
33. Commitments 33. &I
Capital commitments & AR EIE
Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet provided for at REBEHRR  EHESHNEEARBANE
end of the reporting period is as follows: AHAZIEHNOT :
2021 2020
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FEx

Property, plant and equipment ME - BMEREE 1,197 1,018




34. Financial instruments by category M. EMITEZER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial FHEINEMIARBESARAEABELT :
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
2021 2021
Financial assets SREE

Financial asset at
fair value through
other comprehensive

income
BRATEEGA
Htn2EBEH
SREE
Equity Financial assets at
investment amortised cost Total
REBHER AT
RERE HEHEREE wst
US$'000 Us$’'000 US$’'000
S S S
Equity investment at fair BOFEEA
value through other Hit2EREMN
comprehensive income RERE 1,065 - 1,065
Financial assets included in WK Lt ERZ ALK
trade and other receivables £RMEE - 37,656 37,656
Pledged bank deposits BEANRITER - 17,000 17,000
Cash and cash equivalents BRE&REEZEY - 24,757 24,757
1,065 79,413 80,478
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
B AT E
HEmas
US$’000
Financial liabilities e =R FER
Financial liabilities included in trade FEAS AR B B A
and other payables E’J%Eﬁ 3 & 32,885
Interest-bearing bank borrowing RITFTHEER 181

33,066
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34. Financial instruments by category
(continued)

2020
Financial assets

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M. TR ITAERER (&)

2020
EREE

Financial asset at
fair value through
other comprehensive

income
BAVEHESA
Hi2E WS
tREE
Equity Financial assets at
investment amortised cost Total
REHER AT
RERE BENeREE et
US$°000 US$’000 US$’000
TEn TEn Txn
Equity investment at fair BOFEEA
value through other Hi 2 E RN
comprehensive income RERE 929 - 929
Financial assets included in  FEIF R H B AR
trade and other receivables & REE - 16,486 16,486
Pledged bank deposit SEANRTER - 130 130
Cash and cash equivalents HEREEZEY - 50,827 50,827
929 67,443 68,372
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
RESH AT E
Hemas
US$’000
Financial liabilities SRAE FEx
Financial liabilities included in trade FEAS 5k e EL At B A TR A
and other payables NeEmas 20,393
Interest-bearing bank borrowing RITFTEER 181

20,574




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: ~
e

35. Related parties transactions

(@)

China Electronics Corporation (“CEC”),

a state-

owned information technology conglomerate under the
administration of the central government of the PRC,
through one of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Huada
Semiconductor Co. Ltd., owns approximately 28.3% of the
issued shares of the Company and is thus a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Transactions between the
Group and the subsidiaries or associates of CEC are
regarded as transactions with related parties.

The following transactions were carried out with related

o R

B.EHIRS

(a) TEEFEEEXZEBARLAT ([H
BET)) REERBRBEPREA
EENEEETENRMECEER
ARHEX>EMBLAREARYFERE
FRATEAN283%ANT ZBITR
B DARATZEERR - REMHE
CECHBARSEBBANIZER
BBARS

UTRERABH 25 -

parties:
2021 2020
Notes US$’000 us$’000
Bt =E FER FET
Sales: SHERE -
Subsidiary of CEC FEREFHOMBA (i) 60,166 (i) 19,364
Associate of CEC FEIE FRBE A (ifi) 2,155 1,549
Rental service charges: HERGE :
Subsidiaries of CEC FEREFHMBA (iv) 365 305
Notes: Btat -

@i

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

This represented the transaction amount for the supply of
IC and driver products (“IC Products”) from the Group to
CEACI during the year ended 31 December 2021, based on
the agreement dated 22 October 2020 (the “IC Products
Supply Agreement”), as subsequently amended on 23
March 2021 entered into between the Company and CEACI.
The IC Products Supply Agreement has a term of three years
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. The IC products
supply transactions contemplated under the IC Products
Supply Agreement constituted non-exempt continuing
connected transactions for the Company under the Listing
Rules and the Company has complied with the relevant
requirements under the Listing Rules in respect of the non-
exempt continuing connected transactions.

This represented the transaction amount for the supply of
IC and driver products (“IC Products”) from the Group to
CEACI during the year ended 31 December 2020, based on
the agreement dated 17 July 2018 (the “IC Products Supply
Agreement”) entered into between the Company and CEACI.
The IC Products Supply Agreement has a term of three years
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. The IC products
supply transactions contemplated under the IC Products
Supply Agreement constituted non-exempt continuing
connected transactions for the Company under the Listing
Rules and the Company has complied with the relevant
requirements under the Listing Rules in respect of the non-
exempt continuing connected transactions.

This represented the transaction amount for the supply of
IC and driver products from the Group to an associated
company of CEC which constituted a related party
transaction and not a continuing connected party transaction
under the Listing Rules.

This represented the rental service charges from a subsidiary of
CEC to the Group which constituted a fully exempt continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BEARBIEARLD T ECEACIFTE]
HH#IA2020F 108228 M1 (T1C
ERfEHRE] RHEEZR2021F3
B23B 5] AEBREZ 2021
128310 It F E [ICEACIf£ FEIC
& B B 28 E M (rlcEnuJ) M5
ﬁ%‘EoICFE’M EHEOBHRAE=
F . f2021%1 810 B2023%F 12
H318 ° ICERMERHZE T
??E@lCEW#\FE?a%%ﬁM:m%EEU
BTARAANABRRFEBRER
2 ﬁﬁAtﬂEE?ﬁ%Z%éF%ﬁaM;
BEXSET LHHRERNERERE

ERRBIEARLD T ECEACIFTE]
HHI A2018FE7R17E Wi (T1C
EREBEHS]) AEEREE
2020128 31H Ik F E B CEACIH
EIckEessEER TICER] X
B ICEREERENTRA
=% . H2018%F181H £2020%F
128310 ° ICE mHEHZRE T &
ETHICERMHEISERLETR
AIETAQARNEREFERER
5 MARATCHEZESHRRISE
BRERZEST FHRANEREEE -

= 14 &k & & B [ CECH Hﬁ‘
2 R FEIC K BE B 25 /= E’JSE
2 ﬁEﬁxE%ﬁkEﬁﬂ?‘E?&%
ERRBIRETWREREA LR

N

il

ERRCECH) — XM B2 & [
BWRHNEAEREE A
REBRAUBTHEEHRREER
BR5 o




O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR M A

35. Related parties transactions (continued) 35 BE 535 (&)

(@) (continued) (@) (#&)
The following were balances arising from such sales/ HEE RBEKNERE :
purchases:
2021 2020
Notes US$’°000 USs$’000
MIEE FEx FEx
Trade receivables: YK : 23
Subsidiaries of CEC FEE ?E’JWE’L\T 1,689 1,230
Associate of CEC FESFRBEA 561 379
Prepayments: FAMNK 23
Subsidiaries of CEC FEEFHRELQF 233 186
Trade payables: B 28
Subsidiaries of CEC FEEFHRELR - 47
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) XEEXTEEEASHRH :
Group:
2021 2020
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FEx
Director fee EEHS - 10
Salaries, allowance, bonuses and other e B AR
benefits HuER 1,732 1,847
Pension scheme contributions EREFTEIMHR 42 54
Share-based payment expense RAER X 110 11
Total compensation paid to key ENEEEEAEZ
management personnel RENAE %R 1,884 1,922
Details of compensation of the Company’s directors are ARATES Z BRI TERERHM 11
disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements. W o
The transactions in respect of the above compensation of BBEULELAEETEEEAS RN
key management personnel of the Group were exempted o LtTRABEBTHERR ZIFE
from continuing connected transactions under the Listing BERS °

Rules.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM

36. Statement of financial position and
reserves of the Company

= e P

36. XA BMRR KRB

(a) Statement of financial position (a) BMHEMRRE
2021 2020
US$’000 US$’000
FE ESpH
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIE LA THNRE 55,209 55,209
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Trade and other receivables JE U R R E b FE W ER 63 51
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UK B A B 3K 2,196 260
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREeEED 181 209
Total current assets RBEEMAS 2,440 520
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATH B A B3 3,007 479
Accrued expenses and other payables BEREMEMSNRK 326 226
Total current liabilities RBadEst 3,333 705
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE (893) (185)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRE
LIABILITIES =R 54,316 55,024
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the AATEREFEA
Company iR
Issued capital 2 EITIRAK 32,123 31,977
Reserves ®iE 22,193 23,047
Total equity R 54,316 55,024




THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TR M A

36. Statement of financial position and 36. XAARIMBMRRKEREE
reserves of the Company (continued) (&)
(b) Reserves (b) f##HE
Equity
Share compensation Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
BRAER

R4 fE BB Rt ER st
US$’000 US$°000 US$'000  US$’000

TR FER FER FER

At 1 January 2020 202051 81A 109,103 17,751 (103,444) 23,410

Loss for the year FRER - - (418) (418)

Total comprehensive loss 2HEEBEE - - (418) (418)

Equity-settled share option arrangements it < 25 3 A - 50 - 50

Exercise of share options TEERE 11 (6) - 5

At 31 December 2020 H2020%F12A31H 109,114 17,795 (103,862) 23,047

At 1 January 2021 H2021F1A1H 109,114 17,795 (103,862) 23,047

Profit for the year REEREF - - 1,299 1,299

Total comprehensive income 2Ek A - - 1,299 1,299

2020 Dividend paid 2020E REIRE (2,570) - - (2570)

Equity-settled share option arrangements PR 7 1 2k SR A - 204 - 204

Exercise of share options THBRE 315 (102) - 213

At 31 December 2021 M2021%F12831H 106,859 17,897 (102,563) 22,193

37. Approval of consolidated financial . FEMBHREM

statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the RS ERRON2022F3H23AKE

Board of Directors on 23 March 2022. E2EM-




FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
IEHBREE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
US$ million BEE T
Sales HE 168.1 121.3 108.3 98.1 82.5
Gross profit EF 67.3 35.8 21.3 28.2 29.3
Net profit/(loss) FRA (B8) 23.7 11.7 (27.8) (13.8) (10.3)
Assets and liabilities EEREE
- Total assets —-HEE 139.9 94.2 76.9 107.0 116.2
- Total liabilities -HaE 53.2 30.8 25.6 28.0 24.4
- Shareholders’ funds -BRRER 86.7 63.4 51.3 79.0 91.8

US cents31l

Earnings/(loss) per share SRER/ (&18)

- Basic (i) —E7K() 1.0 0.5 (1.1) (0.55) (0.41)
- Diluted (ii) — i) 1.0 05 (1.1) (0.55) (0.41)
Dividends per share BRRE 0.1 0.1 - - -
Net assets per share () BREEFME() 3.48 2.56 2.07 3.19 3.70

(i

The basic earnings/(loss) and net assets per share are based on the weighted average of 2,478,135,913,
2,480,028,242, 2,480,252,351, 2,480,302,624 and 2,488,069,886 ordinary shares in issue during each of the
years ended 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021, respectively.

BREXERN,/ (FR)REREEZFTEE D HRERE2017F » 20185 » 20195 ~ 20204 £2021F12H31H 1t
FERSFEFNCRITZERIMNEFT S E2,478,135,9138% + 2,480,028,2428% ~ 2,480,252,3511% * 2,480,302,6248% &
2,488,069,886/% 51 &

For 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021, the diluted earnings/(loss) per share information is based on
2,478,135,913, 2,480,028,242, 2,480,252,351, 2,480,516,010 and 2,490,824,465 ordinary shares, respectively,
which are the adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion of all
dilutive/potential share options outstanding during the year.

20174 ~ 20185 ~ 20194 ~ 2020F K20215F - ERBFBEFERF (FE) WER £ 513#%2,478,135,913/% ~
2,480,028,242% ~ 2,480,252,351% ~ 2,480,516,0100% }22,490,824,465 R ZBRTE  MEREBEEN (HE)
R EBRREAMBEARTEBERECFERNAREZCRITNETIEERTE -




2013 Share Option
Scheme

201308 R =T &

AMEPD

Augmented Reality (AR)

Board

BExg

Book to bill ratio
RIEHELR

Cayman lIslands
Companies Law

MEFBELAE

HEE

Code Provision(s)

<F AR X

170 Solomon Systech (International) Limited e Annual"Report 2021

The share option scheme approved by
shareholders for adoption at the annual
general meeting held on 28 May 2013

Active Matrix Electrophoretic Display

Augmented reality is an enhanced
version of the real physical world
that is achieved through the use of
digital visual elements, sound, or
other sensory stimuli delivered via
technology.

Board of Directors

Booking amount divided by billing
amount

Companies Act (Revised), Cap. 22 of
the Cayman Islands, as amended or
re-enacted from time to time

CEAC International Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CECI, and a connected person of
the Company

China Electronics Corporation, a
state-owned information technology
conglomerate under the administration
of the central government of the
PRC, is a substantial shareholder of
the Company through its interests in
Huada

Y P EBKREERZBRAAE (CEC
Technology Co., Ltd.**), a company
established in the PRC and an indirect
subsidiary of the CEC, and a connected
person of the Company

Code provision(s) in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

Committee of Sponsoring Organization
of the Treadway Commission is a
private sector initiative that has issued
internationally recognized internal
control frameworks

A2013FE5 28 HE T2 RRBFARE L
B R ERAERM B R ERTE

T EIEMEEKER

BFREREEEYIEY RAERRA
BRYEFHEAZ BITRHMEBR
MEENRERMRER -

Bxg

HESHEBKRUTESHE

FEHEITRENFIENHEFRELHE
22F N AL (A& )

TEEFRMBEBAERAR - REBEM
MY ZBRAR » RCECINZEM B AR

TEEFEEEXREEERAR  —KE
ERERTEPRBGEENERETFE
ERIMEREE  BREGHEANESS
KRB ZEERR

RYFEEREENEARAF 73‘"43
BEMR L 2BREELT BAHTEHE
FTEECEENBAF

EHRBM 14 E 2 B EERT AR
B <7 BI & XX

Committee of Sponsoring Organization

of the Treadway Commission;g — 18 FA

M—riJ CBRREEBIATNAMEE
18




CNY
AR

Company
BAT

Current ratio
MBI =
Director(s)

5=

Debt to equity ratio
B =R

Gearing ratio
EESMBLR

Group

REE

HES
EFANK

HK$/HKD

yi: v

Hong Kong/HK/HKSAR
&g

HKAS

EBEETEL

HKFRS
BRMBHERER

DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY.

Chinese Yuan, Renminbi

Solomon Systech (International)
Limited, a company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands with limited liability,
the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange

Total current assets divided by total
current liabilities

The director(s) of the Company

Interest-bearing bank borrowing
divided by total equity

Electronic Shelf Label

Fair value through profit or loss

Interest-bearing bank borrowing
divided by total equity

The Company and its subsidiaries

tRFERXRNDXRKGEERLA (Beijing
Huada Empyrean Technology Co.,
Ltd.**), a company established in the
PRC, and a connected person of the
Company

Hong Kong dollars

Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

Hong Kong Accounting Standards

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, or collectively for HKAS
and Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

Huada Semiconductors Co. Ltd., a
PRC company with limited liability
to consolidate all IC businesses
under CEC group. It is a substantial
shareholder of the Company

EEKkER

HET - AR

RAYEEARAAT  — KB IRHAE
HENEARAF ERERBXFIER
=)

RBEEABERURDEERE

KRB ZES

RITFH B E R AR S

CES ELE

BRBERARRAFEENMBEE

RITFH B E R A B S

ARAREKBERF

ERERNRBRHEERAT  —HKRH
BRI ATE BRAARNEEAL

R

BEBBAITHE

BBERTER

BEEMBHRELED  NEBSTEIR
BRMBHREENNVEE

EAFEBRERAET - —RCECRESHE
TICEEMAZRNTENERIE - JIA
RAZEERR




“DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY

EEpAR

IP
MBERE

JPY
HJt

KRW

B

LCD

Listing Rules
EmRA

LTPS

LLC
BRAF

Mainland China

B KRB

quel Code
EAESH|

NTD
=k

OLED

Panda-FPD
RESH R B T

Integrated Circuit

Intellectual Property

Japanese Yen

Korean Won

Liquid Crystal Display

The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

Low Temperature Polysilicon, a
technology for the manufacturing of
TFT-LCD

Limited liabilities company

Mainland China, for the purpose of
this report, excludes Hong Kong and
Macau Special Administrative Regions
of the PRC

Metaverse is a digital reality that
combines aspects of social media,
online gaming, augmented reality
(AR), virtual reality (VR), and
cryptocurrencies to allow users to
interact virtually.

Mobile Industry Processor Interface

Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules

New Taiwan dollars

Organic Light Emitting Diode

Nanjing CEC Panda Flat Panel Display
Technology Co., Ltd.*™ » a company
established in the PRC with limited
liability, is a subsidiary of Nanjing
Huadong Electronics Information &
Technology Co., Ltd.**

M ERE

BATT

L

R BB RER

B preE s LR Al

BREZEY —BREFEERERS
BT 28 M Bty

BRQF

PEARLNE - BAHEMS - TEE
TEEBRRMENITHRE

TFHE-BRERRE EESTHX
HEE - ERER - BIBERAR) - EHER
B(VR) MNZEREMEALE AFFAF
ETERN

BEITEEERAE

RS0 B2 EHRITAES
ETESXZNEESTA

Maw

BHRBEX_RE

ERPEAMTFRERNRARLE
—XRAPEEMRL2EREELQT -
DEREREFEENRROERD A
BB 2 R




PMOLED

PRC
 El

R&D

S&D
HER D H

SFO

the Stock Exchange
Bt 32 P

TDDI
TFT

UK
RE

USA
xH

US$/USD
=

Virtual Reality (VR)

Nanjing CEC Panda LCD Technology
Co., Ltd.**,; a company incorporated
in the PRC with limited liability, is an
associate of CEC

Passive Matrix Organic Light Emitting
Diode

The People’s Republic of China, for
the purpose of this report, excluded
Hong Kong and Macau Special
Administration Regions

Product design, development and
engineering

Selling and Distribution

Securities and Futures Ordinance

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Touch and Display Driver Integration

Thin Film Transistor

United Kingdom

United States of America

US dollars

Virtual Reality is the use of computer
technology to create a simulated
environment.

for identification purposes only
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R BEFEMARNL 2BRA T - CECHIE
Z2AL

WA —mEE
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HERDH
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XE T
ERREEFNAERRMAIZERERR




Financial Calendar

Financial Year End
31 December

Announcement of Annual Results
23 March 2022

Share Listing

Listing Venue and Date
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
8 April 2004

HKSE Stock Code
2878

Board Lot
2,000 shares

Trading Currency
HKD

Issued Shares
2,492,352,351 (as at 31 December 2021)

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Agent
Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited

2/F., Century Yard, Cricket Square

P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Center

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185

Website: www.tricoris.com

Independent Auditor

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

Hong Kong Legal Advisor
ReedSmith Richards Butler LLP

Bt B &

MBEELAER
12A31H

AR FEE
20223 523H

R#H EHER

LR A
BBBERZMARDTER
200447 8H

BRR G RS
2878

BREENQ
2,000/

REEY
BT

BETRG
2,492,352,351 (jA2021F12H318)

ROBFBLEE

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
2/F., Century Yard, Cricket Square

P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman KY1-1103

HEHS

EBRMBEELSE
HERFERAERAT
5

2R REFR1835%

B 44

E 5 ¢ (852) 2980 1333
fEH : (852) 2810 8185
#3t : www.tricoris.com

B HED
ZXEFEAEHA
S

S D R 55 B R A BT

B8R
BESREEMTEREIEEESE




CORPORATE AND SHAREHOLDER INFOF

Board Members

Executive Director
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ma Yuchuan (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Hui

Dr. Kang Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leung Heung Ying

Mr. Sheu Wei Fu

Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho

Authorized Representatives
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond
Mr. Ho Yiu Hong, Victor

Company Secretary & Qualified Accountant
Mr. Ho Yiu Hong, Victor
FCCA, CPA, ACG, ACS

Corporate Communications/Investor Relations
Ms. Sylvia Li

Corporate Communications Manager

Tel: (852) 2207 1672

Email: sylviali@solomon-systech.com

Principal Office

Unit 607-613, 6/F Wireless Centre
3 Science Park East Avenue

Hong Kong Science Park

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2207 1111

Fax: (852) 2267 0800

Website
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This 2021 Annual Report (bilingual version in English and Chinese) has
been posted on the Company’s website at www.solomon-systech.com.

Shareholders who have chosen to receive the Company’s corporate
communications (including but not limited to annual reports,
summary financial reports (where applicable), interim reports,
summary interim reports (where applicable), notices of meeting,
listing documents, circulars and proxy forms) via the Company’s
website and for any reason have difficulty in gaining access to the
Annual Report posted on the Company’s website will promptly upon
request be sent by post the Annual Report in printed form free of
charge.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of means of
receipt of the Company’s corporate communications.

Shareholders may request for printed copy of the Annual Report
or change their choice of means of receipt of the Corporate
Communications by sending reasonable notice in writing to the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Center, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong or by sending an email to solomon2878-ecom@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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